
Date Published: 5 November 2018     

Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Tuesday 13 November 2018 at 10.00 am

Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence Andrea Clarke

2  Declarations of Interest 

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.

Andrea Clarke

3  Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 1 - 6) Andrea Clarke

SCRUTINY ITEMS

4  Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2017/18 
(Pages 7 - 46)

Sarah Jasper

5  Quarter 2 Public Health Performance Report (Pages 47 - 52) Sarah Scott

6  Quarter 2 Adult Social Care Performance Report (Pages 53 - 58) Margaret Willcox 
OBE

7  Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group Performance Report 
(Pages 59 - 96)

Mark 
Walkingshaw

8  One Gloucestershire ICS Lead Report (Pages 97 - 112) Mark 
Walkingshaw

9  General Surgery 

To follow

Simon Lanceley

10  Interventional and Community Radiology 

To follow

Simon Lanceley, 
Candace Plouffe



    

INFORMATION ITEMS (TO BE TAKEN AS READ)

11  Director of Public Health Report (Pages 113 - 116) Sarah Scott

12  Director of Adult Social Services Report (Pages 117 - 118) Margaret Willcox 
OBE

13  GCCG Clinical Chair/Accountable Officer Report (Pages 119 - 140) Dr Hein Le 
Roux, Mark 
Walkingshaw

Membership – Cllr Iain Dobie, Cllr Terry Hale, Cllr Colin Hay, Cllr Stephen Hirst, 
Cllr Carole Allaway Martin, Cllr Nigel Robbins OBE, Cllr Pam Tracey MBE, Cllr Robert Vines and 
Cllr Eva Ward

Co-opted Members - Cllr Stephen Andrews (Cotswold District Council), Cllr Janet Day 
(Tewkesbury Borough Council), Cllr Collette Finnegan (Gloucester City Council), 
Cllr Martin Horwood (Cheltenham Borough Council), Cllr Steve Lydon (Stroud District Council) and 
Cllr Helen Molyneux (Forest of Dean District Council)

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Please declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or 
personal interests that you may have relating to specific matters which may be discussed 
at this meeting, by signing the form that will be available in the Council Chamber.  
Completing this list is acceptable as a declaration, but does not, of course, prevent 
members from declaring an interest orally in relation to individual agenda items.  The list 
will be available for public inspection.

Members requiring advice or clarification about whether to make a declaration of interest 
are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer (Jane Burns Tel: 01452 328472 /fax: 01452 
425149 e-mail: jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact:
Andrea Clarke, Senior Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324203/e-mail: andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see p88 of the 

Constitution).
2. Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 

permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 324203) to make the necessary 
arrangements ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not 
wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on 
duty at the meeting.

mailto:jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk


    

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point. Please remain there and await further 
instructions.



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

HEALTH AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on Tuesday 
11 September 2018 at the Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT:
Cllr Stephen Andrews
Cllr Janet Day
Cllr Iain Dobie
Cllr Collette Finnegan
Cllr Terry Hale
Cllr Colin Hay
Cllr Stephen Hirst

Cllr Martin Horwood
Cllr Steve Lydon
Cllr Carole Allaway Martin
Cllr Nigel Robbins OBE
Cllr Robert Vines
Cllr Eva Ward

Apologies: Cllr Helen Molyneux and Cllr Pam Tracey MBE

Also in attendance
Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group (GCCG)
Mary Hutton – Accountable Officer 
Becky Parish – Associate Director Patient and Public Engagement
Dr Andy Seymour –Clinical Chair
Maria Metherall – Senior Commissioning Manager Urgent and Emergency Care

Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT)
Deborah Lee – Chief Executive
Peter Lachecki – Chair
Simon Lanceley – Director of Strategy and Transformation
Dr Ian Shaw – Consultant Gastroenterologist

Gloucestershire County Council
Margaret Willcox –Director of Adult Social Services 
Sarah Scott – Director of Public Health
Cllr Roger Wilson – Cabinet Member Adult Social Care Commissioning 
Cllr Tim Harman – Cabinet Member Public Health and Communities
Zoe Clifford – Public Health Consultant

Healthwatch Gloucestershire 
Bob Lloyd Smith
 
Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust/2Gether NHS Foundation Trust
Paul Roberts – Chief Executive
Ingrid Barker - Chair
Jane Melton - Director of Engagement and Integration

41. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
Cllr Stephen Hirst declared a personal interest as Chair of Tetbury Hospital. 

Cllr Stephen Andrews declared a personal interest as he is a Community First Responder 
with the South Western Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

Cllr Carole Allaway Martin declared a personal interest as she is a member of the Royal 
College of Nursing. 

Cllr Martin Horwood declared a personal interest as a family member works for the NHS.  

42. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
The minutes of the meeting on Tuesday 10 July 2018 were agreed as a correct record and 
signed by the Chairman subject to the following amendment: -
Cllr Iain Dobie had sent his apologies.

43. THE IMPACT OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 2013-2018 
43.1 Cllr Roger Wilson, Chairman of the Gloucestershire Health and Wellbeing Board and Sarah 

Scott, Director of Public Health (DPH), gave a presentation informing the committee on the 
responsibilities of the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB), work undertaken so far, and 
plans for the future. The DPH highlighted that the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
(JHWBS) was currently being refreshed and would be completed by April 2019. The 
committee thanked Zoe Clifford, Public Health Consultant, for the clear and informative 
report. 

43.2 The presentation referred to guidance from the Centre for Public Scrutiny on HWBs which 
reflected the HWB role in local democracy. Some members stated that as the HWB 
membership did not include any opposition members this did not seem, to them, to be 
democratic. Cllr Wilson explained that the council had only a limited number of spaces on 
the HWB, and that the Leader of the council had elected to place the Cabinet Members 
responsible for health and wellbeing matters on the HWB. 

43.3 Comments were also made with regard to the LGA prevention peer review that took place 
earlier this year with some members feeling that the committee should have had greater 
involvement in this process and the actions to address the recommendations from the LGA 
peer review. However the Director of Public Health reminded the committee that she had 
provided regular updates in her reports to committee and that elected members were 
included in the 106 interviews that were undertaken as part of the review. In response to a 
question the DPH acknowledged that the Peer review had highlighted that the HWB did 
need to strengthen its communication/working with communities and that Appendix 4 of the 
report received by the committee indicated how this matter would be taken forward. She 
also reminded the committee that the prevention peer review was, in the main, very 
positive about Gloucestershire.

43.4 It was commented that the report was very public health focussed; and that one of the 
statutory responsibilities of the HWB was to line up the needs of the local population. It was 
explained that the Joint Commissioning Partnership Board and Executive meet every 
month and this work fed into the work of the HWB. The HWB also received an annual 
report on integrated commissioning. There was a line of sight demonstrating that the HWB 
does influence commissioning. 

43.5 In response to a question it was explained that there was district representation on the 
HWB, although this was currently under review.

43.6 The committee was clear that it wished to continue to scrutinise the work of the HWB, 
particularly the JHWBS; this was welcomed by Cllr Wilson. This would be discussed at the 
committee’s work planning meeting this month, and could also be discussed through the 
review of scrutiny which was due to start in the autumn.

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

44. GLOUCESTERSHIRE URGENT AND EMERGENCY CARE SUSTAINABILITY 
PLAN 2018/19 (WINTER PLAN) 

44.1 The committee received a detailed presentation from Maria Metherall, Senior 
Commissioning Manager Urgent and Emergency Care at the Gloucestershire Clinical 
Commissioning Group (GCCG). (For information the presentation slides were included in 
the meeting agenda pack.)   

44.2 It was noted that NHS England has instructed Clinical Commissioning Groups to now refer 
to sustainability rather than winter plans; this reflected the significant level of demand 
across the year rather than just over the winter period. The sustainability plan built on the 
Winter Resilience Plan 2017/18 and picked up the learning opportunities discussed at the 
committee’s meeting on 6 March 2018. The committee was informed that NHS England 
have approved the GCCG sustainability plan and that it had been stamped as ‘best in 
class’. 

44.3 The committee agreed that this was a robust plan, and members hoped that it would be 
successful but recognised the challenges faced by the NHS in Gloucestershire, particularly 
regarding the pressures on A & E. 

44.4 In response to a question it was clarified that the GP support in the Emergency Department 
(ED) at Gloucestershire Royal Hospital (GRH) was a pilot programme. This would be 
reviewed and evaluated in order to identify whether this scheme should be taken forward 
across both EDs at Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT). 
Members were informed that there was an onsite GP at Cheltenham General Hospital 
(CGH) for the Out of Hours Service. 

44.5 A member commented that the A & E data was showing that the ED at GRH had missed 
the target for the last four months. He stated that he felt that there was a fundamental 
structural problem with A & E in Gloucestershire. The Clinical Chair, GCCG, acknowledged 
that there were differences between the two EDs but was clear that the current position 
was a significant improvement from where the system was some years ago. The Chief 
Executive, GHNHSFT, stated that it was important that we collectively recognised that the 
urgent care system has changed significantly over the last five years. 

44.6 In response to a question the committee was informed that the business case for the 
service change proposals relating to urgent care was still being worked through. A 
significant challenge related to the workforce. However it was important to note that 
Gloucestershire was bucking the national trend with regard to the recruitment and retention 
of GPs. 

44.7 As part of the sustainability plan the committee was informed of a proposal relating to the 
pilot reconfiguration of gastroenterology. This proposal aims to bring all gastroenterology 
inpatient activity into a single ward at CGH to optimise care quality and outcomes. Simon 
Lanceley, Director of Strategy and Transformation, GHNHSFT, and Dr Ian Shaw, 
Consultant Gastroenterologist presented the detail of the proposals, including the key 
performance metrics that would be baselined and tracked to ensure that the expected 
outcomes were achieved. The committee agreed that it could support this pilot given the 
expected benefits for both patients and staff. It was also commented that this proposal, and 
the stroke rehabilitation proposal received at the previous meeting, demonstrated that 
centres of excellence were the way forward, and it was hoped that there would be other 
opportunities to do this. It was also commented that no one was arguing for everything to 
be locally based, but that it was important to understand the pressures, eg. access to 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

transport; it would be important to ensure that health inequalities did not ‘creep in’. The 
committee would be briefed on the evaluation of the pilot next year and the planned course 
of action should the pilot have proved successful.

45. GLOUCESTERSHIRE CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP PERFORMANCE 
REPORT 

45.1 The main discussion focused on the type of performance data that the committee needed 
to do its job well. It was suggested that the committee could benefit from looking at how 
EDs performed over time, and outcome data by postcode. The committee was reminded 
that the government directed NHS bodies on which data needed to be reported. Members 
were also informed that there were many complexities and confounding factors involved in 
trying to report by postcode or at ward level. 

45.2 The committee was reminded of the planned NHS performance workshop at which these 
questions could be better explored, including ambulance trust data, particularly as it was 
important to manage expectations on both sides. 

45.3 The committee was informed that each year the government identified a chosen outcome 
and that last year this had been asthma. The committee asked to receive this report.
ACTION: Deborah Lee

45.4 The committee was concerned to see that the Mental Health Children and Young People 
Services (CYPS) referral to treatment indicators (level 2 and 3) had dropped significantly 
from 2017/18 outturn position of 78% receiving treatment within 8 weeks and 86% within 10 
weeks. The committee was informed that this was due to an increasing demand for 
specialist treatment in the second half of 2017/18. The service have looked for a number of 
efficiencies and would be providing a report with completed actions and expected demand 
and capacity gap going forward. The committee asked to receive this report when 
available.
ACTION: Jane Melton

46. QUARTER 1 PUBLIC HEALTH PERFORMANCE REPORT 
46.1 In response to a question relating to the rate of STI referrals it was explained that the 

manner in which the data was reported made it difficult to identify the trend. The committee 
was informed that the increase in Gloucestershire was not at the same rate as nationally. 
Members agreed that it was good to see that more people were coming forward to be 
checked. 

46.2 Committee members remained concerned with performance against drug and alcohol 
targets.  The Director of Public Health (DPH) agreed to provide a more detailed briefing on 
this issue in a future DPH report to committee. 
ACTION: Sarah Scott

46.3 A member questioned whether there was any evidence that the number of people with 
mental health problems presenting at the criminal courts was increasing. The 2gether NHS 
Foundation Trust informed the committee that they have a good working relationship with 
the criminal justice system, and this was a question that they would work through with this 
member outside of the committee meeting.

47. QUARTER 1 ADULT SOCIAL CARE PERFORMANCE REPORT 
47.1 The committee remained concerned about performance against the percentage of service 

users who have had a full reassessment of their needs in the last 12 months. The Director 
of Adult Social Services informed members that this was the most challenging area of 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

work. Work continued to address this situation but it was important to be aware that the 
demand from the front door, particularly from Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust, was the immediate priority. It was suggested that it might be helpful to have a 
workshop on this matter to support members’ understanding of the issues involved. This 
would be discussed at the forthcoming work planning meeting.

48. ONE GLOUCESTERSHIRE ICS LEAD REPORT 
48.1 The committee was interested in the three pilot locality boards (now called networks) and 

members questioned whether they would be able to see the terms of reference and who 
sits on the boards. 
ACTION: Mary Hutton

48.2 In response to a question the committee was informed that there was a lot of progress on 
mental health and that more information would be shared in future reports.
ACTION: Mary Hutton

49. GCCG CLINICAL CHAIR/ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER REPORT 
The committee noted the report.

50. DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH REPORT 
The committee noted the report.

51. DIRECTOR OF ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES REPORT 
The committee noted the report.

CHAIRMAN

Meeting concluded at 12:50

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults 

Board  
 

Annual Report 2017/18  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

2 
 

Contents  

Foreword: Introduction from Chair .............................................................................. 3 
1. Vision .......................................................................................................................... 5 
2. Key Achievements 2017-18 and Strategic Plan 2015-18 ......................................... 6 
3. Key Issues & Challenges for the coming year ......................................................... 9 
4. Case Studies ............................................................................................................ 10 
Case Study 1 .............................................................................................................................. 10 
Case Study 2 .............................................................................................................................. 12 
Case Study 3 .............................................................................................................................. 13 

5. Partnership Achievements 2017/18 and Priorities 2018/19 ................................... 15 
5.1 Gloucestershire Constabulary ........................................................................................... 16 
5.2 2gether NHS Foundation Trust (2getherNHSFT) ................................................................. 17 
5.3 Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT) ............................................. 18 
5.4 Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust (GCSNHST) .......................................................... 20 
5.5 Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group (GCCG) ...................................................... 22 

6. Safeguarding Adults Reviews ................................................................................. 25 
7. GSAB Management Committee .............................................................................. 28 
8. Sub Group Achievements 2017/18 and Priorities 2018/19 .................................... 28 
8.1 Workforce Development .................................................................................................. 29 
8.2 Fire Safety Development. ................................................................................................ 30 
8.3 Communication & Engagement ..................................................................................... 32 
8.4 Policy & Procedures ......................................................................................................... 33 
8.5 Activity & Data 2017/18 .................................................................................................... 34 
8.6 Quality Assurance ............................................................................................................. 37 

9. Safeguarding Adults at Risk Self-Assessment Audit Tool 2017/18 ...................... 38 
10. The Board’s Resources ...................................................................................... 39 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



 

3 
 

Foreword: Introduction from Chair  

 

I am pleased to introduce the Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board (GSAB) 
2017/18 Annual Report, which contains details of how adult safeguarding has been 
promoted and developed in the past 12 months.  
 
It has been a particularly busy year for the Board and its sub groups and I would like 
to extend my thanks for all the hard work and commitment shown by all Board and 
sub group members and our partners.  
 
We are very fortunate in that we have had a Safeguarding Adults Board in 
Gloucestershire since 2009 (some 6 years before boards became statutory), which 
reflects the continued support, commitment and importance that Board partners and 
agencies in Gloucestershire place on adult safeguarding.  
 
My role as the Independent Chair is to support, encourage and challenge partners 
and agencies in Gloucestershire to work collaboratively for the benefit of adults with 
care and support needs and bring about continuous improvement. It is also my 
responsibility to hold agencies to account, ensuring that individually, they do what 
they say they are going to do, and that collectively agencies are working together to 
address issues surrounding abuse and neglect.  
   
The report provides an open and transparent comprehensive insight into the work of 
the Board over the past year which is the last year of our 3-year Strategic Plan 2015-
18.  
 
The past 12 months have been particularly challenging as we have seen an increase 
in referrals in respect of individuals who are engaging in risky behaviour who are 
deemed not to have care and support needs. Many of these individuals are known to 
have suffered adverse childhood experiences and pose a real challenge for agencies 
to engage with. It is imperative that we prioritise this group of individuals and develop 
a multi-agency response that is able to help and manage these individuals who are 
high risk to themselves.  
 
Last year we took part in a thematic review of Safeguarding Adult Reviews across 
the South West region, in order to benchmark ourselves and establish best practice. 
We are using the findings from this review to ensure that we learn from Safeguarding 
Adult Reviews and other learning events. Furthermore, as a result of the 
Safeguarding Adult Reviews and learning events undertaken by the Board, we have 
been invited to participate in an academic study with the University of Sussex, in 
respect of how we embed the learning from reviews into front line practice, in order 
to minimise the risk of the circumstances occurring again.      
 
This year has seen a number of key developments and improvements being put in 
place in order to enhance safeguarding or minimise the risk of harm to adults with 
care and support needs.  

 

Page 9



 

4 
 

These include: 
 

 Launch of our new Communications and Engagement Sub Group 

 Launch of our Service User and Co-Production Sub Group 

 Delivery our six Safeguarding Adults Roadshows – themed on “Finding the 

Balance” between meeting an individual’s preferred safeguarding outcomes 

and balancing with any risks posed in meeting those needs 

 Production of a new quarterly report, including tables, graphics and narrative, 
to improve performance data reporting 

 18,500 Gloucestershire staff and volunteers completed GSAB approved 
safeguarding training  

 ‘Four Questions’ produced by the Fire Safety Development sub group.  These 
questions have been adopted by the National Fire Chief’s Council.  Prompt 
cards have also been designed for staff going into people’s homes 

 
The role of the newly formed Service User Co-Production Sub Group is a key 
development. It will play a vital role for the board and its sub groups and is essential 
to ensure that the voice of individuals with care and support needs is heard, thereby 
directly contributing to continuous improvements in adult safeguarding in 
Gloucestershire. 
 
It is our shared responsibility to safeguard adults at risk in Gloucestershire, which 
can only be achieved by collaboration, working together and understanding the 
challenging and dynamic environment that our partners face on a daily basis. 
Safeguarding adults is everyone’s business. 
 
We are about to finalise our new draft 3-year Strategic Plan 2018-21 on which we 
have been consulting widely for a number of months. Prevention is a major theme 
that the Board wishes to prioritise during the tenure of our new strategy in order to 
minimise the risk of individuals with care and support needs becoming a victim of 
abuse or neglect. Making Safeguarding Personal, in order to ensure that the wishes 
and views of service users is respected and are central to their experience of 
safeguarding, remains a further priority. 
 
Finally, I am cognisant of the ever increasing demand on the members of the Board 
and I would like to acknowledge the hard work, commitment and dedication of all 
front line practitioners who work in the field of safeguarding adults with care and 
support needs, along with families, carers, the public, and the voluntary and 
community sector.  

 

Paul Yeatman 

Independent Chair 
Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board  
Back to Contents 

Page 10



 

5 
 

1. Vision  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

“Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board seeks to empower and protect adults with 
care and support needs who are at risk of abuse and neglect, as defined in legislation 
and statutory guidance”. 
 
There continues to be an increasing focus on the profile of safeguarding adults work. It is 
clear from national developments that partnerships are a critical aspect in sustaining the 
impetus for improvement and hence the importance of pressing ahead with a local vision 
for Gloucestershire. Gloucestershire’s Safeguarding Adults Board’s (GSAB) Strategic 
Plan sits alongside a number of other key documents, enabling the Board to strategically 
review and plan work.  Each provides direction and continuity to the strategic annual plan, 
ensuring that the achievements of the Board are built upon each year and actions are 
focused on the Board’s overall priorities and objectives. 
 

The priorities reflect the direction set out in current national drivers for change. For this 
reason the priorities are designed around the six key principles that underpin all adult 
safeguarding work (Care Act, 2014), as reflected in the Strategic Plan 2015/18. 
 
To achieve this vision the Board will need to work throughout the partnership and with 
local communities to:-  

 Prevent abuse and neglect from happening;  
 Identify and report abuse and neglect;  
 Respond to any abuse and neglect that is occurring;  
 Support people who have suffered abuse or neglect to recover and to regain trust 

in those around them; and  
 Raise awareness of safeguarding adults and the role everyone can play in 

responding to, and preventing, abuse and neglect.  
 

GSAB Vision – sets out the overall vision of the Board and the outcomes it wants to 
achieve for adults at risk in Gloucestershire. 
GSAB Priorities – establishes the strategic themes that need to be delivered to achieve 
the Board’s vision; providing the overarching direction to inform subsequent years’ 
strategic plans. 
GSAB Strategic Plan – provides a detailed plan of specific key actions, supporting actions 
and timescales required to deliver the Board’s vision and priorities. 
GSAB Annual Report – reviews progress in relation to the actions laid out in the strategic 
plan. 
 
The Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board has worked to promote an 
understanding and taken action to demonstrate that “safeguarding is everybody’s 
business”. The development of this vision marks the commitment from partners to a 
shared aim of keeping adults safe and protected from abuse and neglect. 

Page 11



 

6 
 

2. Key Achievements 2017-18 and Strategic Plan 2015-18  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Board’s key achievements during the past year include: 
 

 Holding six ‘Finding the Balance’ Roadshows, in four locations across 
Gloucestershire, with presentations on the Mental Capacity Act, the different 
types of Advocacy available in Gloucestershire and an interactive play by 
Dramatic Change, Inclusion Gloucestershire 
 

 A Board Development Event for Board members covering the learning from 
Safeguarding Adults Reviews and the new draft Strategic Plan 2018-21 

 
 Completion of a partner agency Safeguarding Adults at Risk Self Assessment 

Audit  
 

 Production of a new quarterly report, including tables, graphics and narrative, to 
improve performance data reporting 

 
 Publication of a Positions of Trust Framework and Elected Members’ Induction 

Pack   
 

 Launch of new Communication and Engagement sub group  
 

 Launch of new Co-Production and Service User Engagement Group  
 

 ‘Four Questions’ produced by the Fire Safety Development sub group.  These 
questions have been adopted by the National Fire Chief’s Council.  Prompt cards 
have also been designed for staff going into people’s homes. 

 
 Completion and publication of the ‘Danny’ Safeguarding Adults Review (SAR)  

 
 18,500 Gloucestershire staff and volunteers completed GSAB approved 

safeguarding training  
 

 Establishing stronger links with community groups in Gloucestershire 
 

 Updated website – http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gsab/  
 
 

 
 

 

Page 12

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gsab/


 

7 
 

Strategic Plan 2015-18 – The high-level priorities set out in the Board’s 
Strategic Plan are reflected across these 5 areas: (a copy of the Strategic Plan 
can be accessed via this link Strategic Plan which details the Board’s objectives and 
how these have been met). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Priority - Empowerment 
We will give individuals relevant and clear information about recognising abuse, how to 
report it and the choices available.   
 

 

Priority - Protection and Prevention  
We will support people to report signs of abuse and we will respond and take actions to 
reduce risk and prevent further abuse occurring.   
 
 

Priority - Partnership  
We will have effective multi agency partnership arrangements and information sharing 
agreements.   

 

Priority - Proportionality 
We will make sure professionals work in the best interests of adults at risk and only get 

involved as much as needed.  

 

Priorities - Leadership, Accountability & Governance 
We will ensure that the Board and all partners know what is expected of them and that lines 
of accountability are clear.   
 

 

Page 13

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gsab/safeguarding-adults-board/safeguarding-adults-annual-reports-and-strategic-plan/


 

8 
 

Strategic Plan 2018-21 
 
Under the Care Act, one of the core duties of the Board is to develop and publish a 
Strategic Plan, setting out how the Board will meet its objectives and how its member 
and partner agencies will contribute.  The Strategic Plan is a living document which 
will evolve and be updated over the three year period.   
 
A new draft three year Strategic Plan has been produced and the Board is consulting 
widely on this, both with professionals and members of the public.  Three different 
types of feedback form have been produced for the consultation and include Easy 
Read and Easier Read versions.  All three forms and a copy of the new draft 
Strategic Plan can be found on the GSAB website, accessed by the following link: 
 
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gsab/draft-strategic-plan/ 

 
The Board also produces a Risk Register which details, manages and monitors risks 
which can potentially impact upon its ability to deliver the priorities as set out within 
its three year Strategic Plan.  
 
The Risk Register identifies the potential consequence of the risk and what actions 
have been taken in order to mitigate, manage or reduce the risk. Each risk is RAG 
Rated (Red/Amber/Green) based on its score.  The Board currently has no risks 
which are rated Red, which would be of considerable concern to the Board.   
 
A new Risk Register will be produced once the 2018/21 Strategic Plan has been 
finalised.  
 
The Board’s current Risk Register can be found in supporting documents.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Back to contents 

Page 14

http://links.govdelivery.com/track?type=click&enid=ZWFzPTEmbXNpZD0mYXVpZD0mbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTgwNDE4Ljg4NTc5MTcxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE4MDQxOC44ODU3OTE3MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE3MTIxMzA1JmVtYWlsaWQ9Y2Fyb2x5bi5iZWxsQGdsb3VjZXN0ZXJzaGlyZS5nb3YudWsmdXNlcmlkPWNhcm9seW4uYmVsbEBnbG91Y2VzdGVyc2hpcmUuZ292LnVrJnRhcmdldGlkPSZmbD0mZXh0cmE9TXVsdGl2YXJpYXRlSWQ9JiYm&&&101&&&https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gsab/draft-strategic-plan/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gsab/safeguarding-adults-board/safeguarding-adults-annual-reports-and-strategic-plan/


 

9 
 

3. Key Issues & Challenges for the coming year 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Back to Contents 

 

Service User Engagement   
 

 We have made some progress on this priority over the past 12 months with the 
establishment of a Co-production and Service User Engagement Group. Over the 
coming year we are holding a number of meetings at various venues in order to 
reach and engage with our diverse communities. Through these meetings we 
hope to recruit individuals who are interested in joining our Co-production and 
Service User Engagement Group. We are striving to establish a core sustainable 
group of 12-15 individuals who are prepared to meet regularly as well as a virtual 
county wide group.  

 

Learning from Safeguarding Adults Reviews (SARs) and other Learning Events  
   

 We have undertaken 14 SARs/Learning Events over the past few years and it is 
vitally important that we learn from these events and that positive change takes 
place in front line practice. In partnership with the University of Sussex and 7 
other local authorities we are seeking to identify best practice in embedding 
learning in order to minimise the risk of such events happening again in the 
future. Over the next 12 months, along with our partners, we are trialling various 
methods by which to disseminate to, and engage with, front line practitioners and 
to ascertain its impact and effectiveness.  
 

High Risk Individuals 
 

 Over the past 12 months we have come across an increasing number of 
individuals who are deemed to have capacity and yet choose to engage in risky 
behaviour, for example, drug and alcohol misuse. These individuals often lead 
very chaotic lives and are notoriously challenging and difficult to engage 
with.  Many of these individuals have suffered adverse childhood experiences, 
which has a tremendous impact on their adult life.  
 

 We will prioritise these individuals and establish a multi agency process in order 
to help safeguard them and also to assist agencies in managing them efficiently 
and effectively.  

 

Page 15



 

10 
 

4. Case Studies  

Many safeguarding enquiries in Gloucestershire with effective interagency working 
evidence speedy responses and achieve a better outcome for the individuals 
involved. The following examples of self-neglect, Adverse Childhood Experiences 
(ACEs) and out of county cases demonstrate this.  All the names and locations have 
been changed to protect confidentiality. 

Case Study 1 

Celeste is a 70 year old woman living in a housing association property.  Her care 
needs aren’t entirely clear as she refuses to engage with Adult Social Care, but she 
is known to have had a bowel re-section, suffers from diverticulitis and by her own 
admission drinks alcohol daily – alcohol has always been a big part of her life. She 
frequently rings 999 when she has fallen, and is often found naked with faeces on 
her body when first responders attend. She is not observed to be intoxicated 
although there is often a number of empty vodka bottles around the property. There 
are also concerns that her property is cluttered, and on occasion it has been 
reported that there are faeces and used continence pads scattered around. Celeste 
is described as frail, and it is reported that there is never much food in the fridge or 
kitchen. 
 
Actions taken: 
 
An earlier safeguarding concern had been raised by the Housing provider, however 
this did not proceed for a Section 42 enquiry as Celeste gave the impression that 
she would accept help. This is usually considered to be the most appropriate route to 
tackle the concerns.  The most recent concern did, however, prompt a Section 42 
enquiry as Celeste was admitted to hospital following a fall, when previously she was 
always uninjured and simply wanted help to get up. This latest fall indicated a 
possible increased risk, and efforts to support her to resolve the situation had not 
worked. 
 
The Housing provider has tried to engage with Celeste regularly over the five years 
she has lived in the property.  The provider has tried to encourage her to keep a 
habitable environment to prevent enforcement action being taken. Previous deep 
cleans of the property have been undertaken but it is not considered appropriate 
again, as the situation deteriorates quickly, and there are also cost implications.  
 
The Fire Service has visited on numerous occasions, and fitted smoke detectors as 
well as attending as First Responder.  They have indicated that the level of clutter is 
5-6 on the Clutter Image Rating Scale.  
 
Celeste’s GP has visited her at home, and recognises that there are concerns 
around her living conditions, but has reported that there are no concerns in relation 
to Celeste’s capacity to understand the risks.   
 
Adult Social Care has been involved, and Celeste’s allocated worker has 
painstakingly tried to build a relationship with her.  Celeste has refused a section 9 
care needs assessment but one has been undertaken in accordance with the Care 
Act duty to assess (where it appears the adult may have needs for care & support 

Page 16



 

11 
 

and is experiencing or at risk of self-neglect).     
 
A series of multi agency meetings have taken place to share information and 
updates, and to try to tackle the issues. Celeste has always been invited but has 
chosen not to attend.  Consideration has been given to discussing call-out fees with 
Celeste for the occasions when she has used the First Responder service. 
Additionally, it has become clear that Celeste is now at real risk of losing her 
tenancy. 
 
Outcome:  
 
Through compassionate persistence, the Social Worker has been able to build a 
relationship with Celeste, and she is taking steps to try to address the concerns 
about her living conditions. Celeste explained that things changed for her when her 
husband died, shortly before she moved into the housing association property. She 
suffered from depression after his death and explained that she had just “given up” 
and stopped caring about her surroundings. The worker put her in touch with a 
bereavement counselling service and other groups locally who could offer support 
and companionship. 
 
Celeste is now actively seeking quotes from companies who would be able to clean 
her flat, and she has accepted the need for a cleaner to help her remain on top of 
things. Another possible prompt to encourage Celeste has been a more formal 
approach from the housing provider. Celeste recognises that she could lose her 
property, and this has coincided with more concerted efforts to engage with 
professionals.  Legal action against Celeste has ceased. In relation to the falls, these 
are not considered to be alcohol related and tests are being undertaken to determine 
the cause.  
 
Issues highlighted / learning: 
 
This case shows that a person’s situation is not fixed, and it was identified that there 
was a point when a Section 42 enquiry was appropriate. It can sometimes be a 
challenge to identify when this point might be reached but identifying it is easier 
when a multi agency approach is taken due to regular updates and the value of 
differing perspectives.  
 
Research into people who self-neglect has identified that short term efforts to 
improve the situation (i.e. arranging for the property to be cleaned) rarely have a 
lasting effect. It has also identified that bereavement can be a significant factor in 
self-neglect. Time taken to build a relationship with the person may help to uncover 
the underlying reasons for the self-neglect, and offering support with the underlying 
causes is more likely to assist the person in making more sustainable changes. This 
requires a non-judgemental approach and for workers to use compassionate 
persistence when trying to engage with the person. 
 
People who self-neglect and are deemed to have capacity present a dilemma to 
professionals when trying to take a Making Safeguarding Personal approach, as they 
frequently express a desire to be left alone. This then requires professional 
judgement to decide when abiding by the person’s wishes is the appropriate thing to 

Page 17



 

12 
 

Case Study 2 

do, and when the risks are such that intervention is necessary.  

Jade is a 22 year old woman who has been dependent on heroin and crack since the 
age of 13. She injects drugs into her groin which has caused large ulcers and she 
possibly has a blood clot on her lung due to her heavy drug use and lifestyle. She 
has presented to the Emergency Department on three occasions in 2018, and 
eighteen occasions in 2017, five of which resulted in admissions. In addition to this, 
there were 2 outpatient appointments. 
 
Jade is anxious to engage with drug & alcohol services.  She is currently involved 
with an older man who is described as being “best friends” with her since she was a 
child.  
 
Another man gives Jade significant sums of money and drugs. He demands she 
sleeps at his house and when she is intoxicated rapes her.  This has been ongoing 
since Jade was very young; there is reason to believe she has been a victim of a 
paedophile ring since the age of 6 and a belief that her mother, who she currently 
lives with, is involved. 
 
It is understood that Jade is ‘not allowed’ to claim benefits by one of the men who 
abuse her.  
 
Jade is desperate to move to a different part of the county to escape these 
influences but this is being hampered by her belief that if she moves, her mother will 
inform those she is currently involved with. Additionally, Jade’s previous behaviour 
causes housing providers to decline any applications to rehouse her.  
 
Actions taken: 
 
Jade has an outreach worker who has raised a Safeguarding concern in relation to 
the sexual abuse and control that others are perpetrating towards Jade.  Jade has 
made a specific allegation of sexual assault which is being investigated. However, 
despite Jade saying at times she would take part in a video interview, this has not 
yet happened due to Jade not attending. The Police consider that Jade has the 
capacity to decide whether to engage in the criminal justice process, but is choosing 
not to co-operate with the Police. The case is therefore still open but on hold.  
However, in the intervening period Jade was herself arrested for supplying class A 
drugs and released pending further investigations. 
 
A referral was made to Gloucestershire Domestic Abuse Support Service (GDASS) 
who are willing to work with Jade, as well as Housing and drug and alcohol services.  
 
Jade’s outreach worker has managed to open a bank account for her, and is trying to 
arrange for her to claim benefits and arrange a script in relation to her drug use.  
 
There are frequent attender and safeguarding plans in place for Jade at the hospital. 
The safeguarding plan states that the Independent Domestic Violence Advocate 
(IDVA) should be contacted when she presents at hospital. 

Page 18



 

13 
 

 

Case Study 3 

 
The case proceeded for a non-Statutory safeguarding enquiry because Jade has 
support needs only, rather than care and support needs, so does not meet the 
criteria for a statutory enquiry. A multi agency meeting took place with all agencies 
mentioned to discuss the concerns and try to establish a protection plan. Jade 
decided not attend, however the IDVA represented her views and wishes at the 
meeting.  
 
Outcome: 
 
Efforts are continuing to work with Jade although successes are sporadic.  She has 
tentatively started working with the agencies who can support her, although there are 
periods of non-engagement.  With ongoing liaison between agencies, regular multi 
agency meetings  and a sensitive approach taking her difficulties in engaging into 
consideration, it is hoped that more sustained success to help Jade will follow.  
Jade’s circumstances are now being considered in terms of a Modern Slavery 
situation.  
 
Issues highlighted / learning: 
 
The concerns around Jade illustrate the often lifelong impact of severe abuse and 
neglect in childhood (now referred to as Adverse Childhood Experiences). Jade is 
indicating she would like to work with agencies, and while she may have the capacity 
to decide not to, she appears to be subjected to coercion and duress by people in 
her life, which is hampering efforts to support her. Her arrest also demonstrates that, 
although she may be committing criminal acts, this is very likely to be a symptom of 
the fact that she is under pressure from others to commit these offences.   
 
A great deal of resources are taken up trying to support young adults like Jade; more 
work is needed nationally to identify the best ways to support adults to overcome the 
damage caused by their childhood experiences, to empower them to live a life free 
from abuse. 
 
In this case it seems that the key to being able to assist Jade most effectively is with 
the Police being able to disrupt the gangs that are exploiting her.  This is proving 
difficult without Jade’s testimony although thinking creatively of this as a possible 
Modern Slavery issue may open up a way forward.    
 

Byron is a 28 year old man with a moderate learning disability, living in a residential 
home with four other adults. His placement is funded by a county in the north of 
England. He has started attending an art group every Wednesday and while there he 
has disclosed to a worker that one of the other male residents at his home, who is 
also funded by a local authority elsewhere in the country, is very unpleasant to him – 
calling him names, entering his room without permission and throwing items at him. 
Byron also says on two occasions the man has hit him, including the day before, and 
he’s frightened it will happen again 

Page 19



 

14 
 

 
Byron says he’s explained all this to his key worker and the home manager as it’s 
happened regularly, and while they seem to listen to him, nothing changes and he is 
becoming increasingly sad about the situation. He says that he likes living in the 
home but not with this man. Byron appears to be the only person subject to such 
treatment by this man.  Byron is described as a ‘gentle giant’ who would never 
retaliate. 
 
Actions taken: 
 
The art group worker spoke directly to the home manager but didn’t feel reassured 
that they were taking the matter as seriously as required. A Safeguarding concern 
was raised by the art group worker, and it was identified that the former manager of 
the home had contacted the Safeguarding advice line two years previously to 
indicate what was described as a minor issue between Byron and the other resident. 
At the time the matter did not proceed under Safeguarding as the manager gave 
assurances that they were able to manage the relationship between both men, and 
prevent any reoccurrences – it was described as a one-off random event. The home 
manager confirmed they had reported the incident to both residents’ social workers.  
 
The Safeguarding Adults team proceeded the case for a formal Section 42 enquiry 
as Byron has care & support needs, is experiencing abuse and is unable to protect 
himself as a result of his care & support needs. It was identified that neither Byron 
nor the other man had been visited by their social workers for several years to review 
their placements. Neither funding authority had been made aware of any incidents 
since the one reported by the previous home manager two years before. Byron’s 
social worker was advised to visit him to support him, discuss how he is feeling and 
assure herself of the safety and appropriateness of the placement.  
 
The social worker for the perpetrator was also advised to visit their service user to 
explore what the issues are from his perspective, and support the home in managing 
his behaviour and assuring themselves of the safety and appropriateness of the 
placement.  
 
The home manager was required to investigate the concerns and report their 
findings to the Safeguarding Adults team. It was recommended that they speak 
directly to Byron to assure him they are committed to keeping him safe, and explain 
to him how they would do this. It was also recommended that they interview all staff 
and review incident forms and daily records to gain an understanding of what was 
going on.  
 
CQC and GCC’s Commissioning team were informed of the situation to inform their 
responsibilities in ensuring fundamental standards of care are being met, and that 
the residents are living in a safe environment.  
 
 
Outcome: 
 
In the short term, the perpetrator moved to another home operated by the care 
provider, which was considered to be more suitable to his needs.  

Page 20



 

15 
 

5. Partnership Achievements 2017/18 and Priorities 2018/19 

 
This year’s annual report, like previous versions, focuses upon the achievements 
and priorities of our statutory partners.  
 
However, it is recognised that the delivery of safeguarding in Gloucestershire 
extends well beyond the statutory county partners, across each of our district 
councils and into the communities and voluntary sector.  
 
Over the past 12 months we have continued to work with a number of 
Gloucestershire strategic partnerships, some of which are listed below; however this 
list is not exhaustive, as it has not been possible to list all of them in this document. 
 

Health and Wellbeing Board 
Mental Health Partnership Board 

 
Back to Contents 

 

 
Byron was visited by his social worker after three weeks, and she considered that 
the placement was the right one for Byron. He expressed that he was happy now 
that the other man had been moved. A referral for an advocate was made on Byron’s 
behalf.  
 
The home manager’s investigation was considered to be lacking in detail and despite 
being asked supplementary questions by the Safeguarding Adults team, there are 
still some points waiting to be answered. This has been shared with CQC and GCC’s 
Commissioning team.   
 
Issues highlighted / learning: 
 
This case illustrates problems which can arise when a person is placed out of area. It 
is essential that placing authorities maintain contact with the person, including 
regular reviews of the placement to ensure its continued suitability. People placed 
out of area are often more vulnerable to abuse because they are more likely to be at 
a distance from their family and friends, which makes it even more important that the 
placing authority assures itself that the person is safe and their placement remains 
appropriate. This was the situation at Winterbourne View Hospital and a recent 
Safeguarding Adults Review (written by Margaret Flynn, author of the Winterbourne 
report) criticised the placing authorities involved for doing little more than “place 
finding” for the people they placed at the service in question. She has called for 
regulation to be introduced by the Government in this area.  
 
Another issue is the importance of ensuring residents are suitable to live together. 
While Byron is now safe and returning to a sense of happiness about where he’s 
living, the provider has a responsibility when accepting new residents to consider the 
compatibility of the people who will be living together.  
 

Page 21



 

16 
 

Learning Disability Partnership Board 
Safer Gloucestershire 
Transforming Care Board 
Learning Disability Review Steering Group 
Gloucester Diocesan Board 
Anti-Slavery Partnership Board 
NHS England Quality Surveillance Group 
Child Sexual Exploitation Board 
Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Implementation Group 
Multi Agency Public Protection Arrangements 
Dangerous Drugs Network (County Lines) 
Sexual Assault Referral Centre Strategic Board 
Community Safety Partnership Board 

 

5.1 Gloucestershire Constabulary  

Over the last twelve months, Gloucestershire Constabulary has continued to evolve 
their Adult Safeguarding service delivery.  We continue to support all aspects of the 
Board and its sub groups, and have ensured our staff have been given Continuous 
Professional Development across a number of areas including vulnerability, 
domestic abuse, and modern slavery/human trafficking.   
 
The Vulnerability Identification Screening Tool (VIST) which was introduced within 
last year’s report is now embedded as best practice, and there has been an increase 
in the quantity and quality of VIST submissions into the Multi Agency Safeguarding 
Hub (MASH). This increase is in line with national trends for vulnerability referrals, 
with the upwards trajectory predicted to continue over the coming years.  Currently 
37% of all vulnerability referrals relate to adult vulnerability. 
 
A priority for the organisation this year is to ensure that the relocation of the MASH 
from police premises to Shire Hall takes place on/before our target date of 
September 2018. This will align multi-agency triage and decision makers: Police, 
GDASS, Health and Education with the Children’s Services ‘front door’, ensuring that 
we expeditiously and holistically safeguard those most vulnerable within our 
communities. It will be important for us to explore how we can work with partners to 
seek the future inclusion of Adult Safeguarding into an enhanced MASH. 
 
The Public Protection Service Delivery Board (chaired by Assistant Chief Constable 
Julian Moss) has commissioned a Strategic Problem Profile for ‘Adults at Risk’ which 
will include an attempt to assess the number of service users in the County, the 
demographics of the population, and the likely future demand.  Assisted by 
colleagues from across the Constabulary, not least Neighbourhood PCSOs, we can 
then map vulnerability within our communities, begin to close some of our 
intelligence gaps, and subsequently use all this information as evidence to help 
shape our resourcing model to appropriately meet demand. 
 
The use of the THRIVE+ (Threat, Harm, Risk, Investigation, Vulnerability, 
Engagement, Prevention & Intervention) model in the Force Control Room and by 
operational staff provides a consistent and clear model for vulnerability to be 

Page 22



 

17 
 

considered and assessed.  The 2017 HMICFRS PEEL Efficiency inspection 
assessed the Constabulary as “Good” in this specific area.   
 
We look forward to working with our colleagues on the Board to continually improve 
our service throughout 2018/19 and beyond. 
 
Kath Davis 
Detective Superintendent, Head of Public Protection 
  

5.2 2gether NHS Foundation Trust (2getherNHSFT) 

 
2gether NHS Foundation Trust (2g) continues to play an active part and is fully 
committed to multi agency working, with all partners of the Gloucestershire 
Safeguarding Adults Board, in order to safeguard adults at risk of neglect and abuse. 

 
Key Achievements 2017/2018 
2g has continued to improve the take up of training for safeguarding adults using a 
‘Think Family’ approach (internal single agency - level 2) and multi-agency (level 3) 
training. This involved increasing the availability of level 3 multi agency training, 
jointly run with the County Council.  
 
In line with the GSAB objectives, 2g has shared learning from Safeguarding Adult 
Reviews and other learning models; from Multi Agency Audits and ensured all 
communication from GSAB is disseminated to all staff in the organisation.  
 
2g particularly focused on Modern Slavery, improving documentation of safeguarding 
activity, Self-neglect, MAPPA and the Prevent agenda (including level 3 training).  

 
2g has continued to actively participate in GSAB and GSCB sub group activity, 
helping to ensure a ‘Think family’ approach to Safeguarding within the service users’ 
network.  
 
Priorities for 2018/2019 
2g plan to continue working in partnership to improve overall safeguarding activity. 
This will involve participation in all sub groups, focusing on learning from multi 
agency and internal single agency audits; learning from Domestic Homicide 
Reviews, Safeguarding Adult Reviews, Serious Case Reviews and other learning 
models (e.g. Practice Learning Reviews). 2g will also concentrate on increasing the 
provision of safeguarding supervision to teams working with children and adults; 
improving the quality of safeguarding referrals by evidencing ‘Making Safeguarding 
Personal’ (MSP) and increase awareness (multi agency policy and procedures) 
around Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (DASV); Prevent, MAPPA - and to 
include MSP and early help for children and families.  

 
In order for us to ensure we have the capacity to deliver all requirements, we have 
committed to recruiting substantively for a Safeguarding nurse within our team. 

 
2g looks forward to continually improving practice with partner agencies to ensure 
outcomes for adults improve. Safeguarding Children and Adults remain a priority in 

Page 23



 

18 
 

the delivery of Mental Health services, irrespective of financial demands and 
constraints in the current economic climate.  

 
Quality Assurance - 2g will continue to provide assurance to the Board that 
Safeguarding Priorities are in line with best practice and evidences positive 
outcomes for families. Through our own internal Safeguarding Sub committee we will 
monitor our objectives to ensure they are delivered in line with the Safeguarding 
Adults Board strategic agenda. 
 
Marie Crofts 
Director of Quality, 2gether NHSFT   
 

5.3 Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT) 

 
Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT) provides specialist 
NHS acute hospital care and treatment, where the health care needs of the person 
requires the care of an acute hospital consultant. This can be planned care, or care 
in an emergency. 

 
Our Trust continues to be a committed, proactive partner as part of safeguarding 
adults at risk and we are a core, statutory member of Gloucestershire’s Safeguarding 
Adults Board (GSAB). We are actively engaged as part of the annual action plans of 
all GSAB sub-committees, with dedicated, senior representation as part of each.  
 
Structure and Approach to Safeguarding Adults within GHNHSFT   
Within our Trust Safeguarding is led by our Chief Nurse, as our Executive Lead for 
Safeguarding. Our Trust Associate Chief Nurse has an active Safeguarding 
leadership role. Our Trust Safeguarding Strategic Board, chaired by our Executive 
Safeguarding Lead, has been reviewed and is now an integrated board, combining 
safeguarding of Adults at Risk, Domestic Abuse pathway and Safeguarding Children. 
There is representation from all key Trust stakeholders involved in Safeguarding. 
Our Trust Safeguarding Board has responsibility for implementation of Trust 
Safeguarding Adults at Risk policy and our Trust’s annual Safeguarding 
improvement plan, including Trust Dementia Care Strategy, Learning Disability Care 
Strategy and Mental Capacity Act/Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards annual 
improvement plan. Safeguarding activity and outcomes are reported to our Trust 
Quality Performance and Quality Committee, to Trust Main Board and to GSAB. 
Safeguarding is also reflected in our Trust Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

 
Key Achievements 2017/2018 
 

 We work together with all our partners to support safeguarding. We are making 
further improvements to our safeguarding pathway to strengthen our 
participation as part of Making Safeguarding Personal and to working with our 
patients, their carers and families. We work particularly closely with 
Gloucestershire County Council’s Safeguarding Adults Unit and Hospital Adult 
Social Care Teams. 

 Our Trust Safeguarding Adults at Risk Advisory Team provides real time 
support and guidance for all Trust staff. This includes guidance and resources 

Page 24



 

19 
 

to support best practice application of the Mental Capacity Act and Deprivation 
of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS). A new Safeguarding Adults at Risk Advisory 
Sister joined our team in April 2018, extending our team to three members of 
staff. A key part of this new role is direct support for teams in practice and a key 
outcome is to further improve safeguarding response actions and application of 
the Mental Capacity Act in practice. 

 The Trust Safeguarding Adults at Risk Advisory Team deliver training Trust 
wide and have a responsibility to develop, implement and review Trust policy 
and process. We have developed and implemented resources to support staff 
to fulfil their safeguarding roles in practice. We have a bespoke Trust 
Safeguarding Intranet webpage for our staff. We are continuously working to 
make improvements and to learning from feedback.  

   We have implemented a Trust DoLS checklist, this is used by our teams to 
assess patient care needs to determine if a DoLS need is triggered. Also a 
guide to help staff to complete the DoLS application form has been 
implemented.  

   A Trust bespoke capacity assessment sticker, flow chart and pocket prompt 
guidance is being pilot tested in practice. This will be evaluated and the pilot 
testing extended. It is anticipated that this will be implemented Trust wide.   

 Safeguarding training is mandatory for all Trust staff. We actively promote 
training and target training to specific groups of our staff, so as to best promote 
safeguarding in action.  

   We have implemented Trust specific actions to support GSAB Fire Safety and 
Prevention sub group’s annual plan. Home fire safety and safeguarding is a 
core part of our level 2 Safeguarding Adults at Risk training. We have 
supported the pilot testing and the evaluation in practice of the multi agency 
home fire safety and safeguarding risk assessment document. 

 We are a core partner in the development of Gloucestershire’s Multi agency 
Safeguarding Adults at Risk and Pressure Ulcer Policy. We have implemented 
a Trust specific clinical practice guide to support our teams. 

 Our Trust is working in partnership with our core partners in best supporting 
patients presenting with risk and safety factors. We are strengthening our 
pathway in collaboration with 2getherNHSFT and Gloucestershire 
Constabulary.   

    Our Trust public Safeguarding Internet webpage has been further improved.  
          www.gloshospitals.nhs.uk/your-visit/staying-us/keeping-you-safe/ 
 
Key Objectives 2018/2019 
 

 To continue to work in partnership with GSAB to safeguard adults at risk, with 
care and support needs, within our Hospitals, our community and as part of 
Gloucestershire’s Safeguarding Adults strategic plan.  

 To continue to proactively support the work of GSAB sub groups and to work 
with all our partners in support of Gloucestershire’s Multi agency 
Safeguarding Adults at Risk Policy and Procedures. 

 To continue integrated working across all safeguarding pathways. Working 
together in support of safeguarding of Adults at Risk (under the Care Act), 
Domestic Abuse pathway and Safeguarding Children and Young People 
pathway. 

Page 25

http://www.gloshospitals.nhs.uk/your-visit/staying-us/keeping-you-safe/


 

20 
 

 To be proactive partners in support of safeguarding and transition planning. 

 To implement the recommendations from GSAB Safeguarding Adult Reviews.  

 A review is planned of the multi agency discharge policy to further support 
improved communications. 

 For Trust Safeguarding Adults at Risk Advisory Team, to continue to 
proactively support all our teams in practice in achieving their safeguarding 
role and responsibilities and to monitoring, reporting and to improving 
outcomes.    

 Delivering the best care for everyone, promoting positive patient and carer 
experience and outstanding care for all our patients.  

 
Lynne McEwan-Berry 
Senior Sister Safeguarding Adults at Risk Advisory Team 
Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust  

 
Jon Burford 
Associate Chief Nurse 
Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
 
Steve Hams  
Chief Nurse 
Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

 

5.4 Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust (GCSNHST) 

 

Gloucestershire Care Services (GCS) remains committed to ensuring safeguarding 
is part of its core business and recognises that safeguarding adults with care and 
support needs is a shared responsibility with the need for effective joint working 
between partner agencies and professionals. In order to do this Trust colleagues 
work closely with others to ensure that all of the services provided have regard to the 
duty to protect individual human rights, treat individuals with dignity and respect and 
safeguard them against abuse, neglect, discrimination, harassment or poor 
treatment. 
 
The Trust recognises that all its colleagues have a legal responsibility to prevent the 
abuse of adults at risk of abuse, harm, or neglect (including self-neglect) and to act 
positively to report abuse. 
 
Team 
 
Adult Safeguarding leads within the Trust are the Director of Nursing, who has 
executive responsibility, the Named Nurse Safeguarding Adults and the Specialist 
Nurse for Safeguarding Adults (including learning disabilities). 
 
Supporting Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board activity 
 
The Trust is an active partner of the Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board 
(GSAB) and is represented on the Board by the Director of Nursing.  During 2017/18 
the Trust has participated in GSAB activities which have included attendance at 

Page 26



 

21 
 

Board meetings, involvement in sub group work, updating the Gloucestershire multi-
agency policies and procedures and participating in Safeguarding Adult Reviews 
(SARs).   
 
Safeguarding Adult Reviews 
 
Recommendations resulting from SARs undertaken in the 2017/18 period produced 
two specific actions for the Trust; both of these actions have been completed to the 
satisfaction of the GSAB: 
 
A thematic review of SARs across the South West region has identified a number of 
issues including poor risk assessment processes and failure to assess mental 
capacity.   
 
Those regional themes reflect those of local reviews and of issues in practice 
experienced by Trust colleagues.  This is also evidenced through the Trust’s internal 
incident reporting system and associated investigations.   
 
The themes identified have been highlighted throughout all the Trust’s safeguarding 
adults and Mental Capacity Act training delivered within this reporting period and will 
continue to influence the focus of the Trust’s adult safeguarding agenda and 
development of training for the following year. 
 
Training 
 
Adult Safeguarding training is provided for all Trust colleagues through the 
statutory/mandatory training programme and new staff induction programme. All 
colleagues receive mandatory updates, either face to face or by eLearning, every 
three years. Compliance with training attendance is recorded via the Electronic Staff 
Record and monitored through monthly reports to line managers. 
 
Adult safeguarding training compliance at the beginning of April 2018 was 89.1% for 
level 2 Adult Safeguarding training, an increase of 3.5% on the previous year and 
95.3% for level 1, and increase of 13.29%.   
 
Mental Capacity Act and Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards training has been 
delivered to 406 colleagues.  Of these, 7 undertook the train the trainer session. 
 
Concerns 
 
The number of safeguarding concerns reported by the Trust decreased significantly 
from 315 in the period 2016/17 to 146 in the year 2017-18.  This is consistent with a 
decrease in the number of concerns reported by all agencies and is likely to be due 
to the increased number of calls to the safeguarding advice line.  Many of these calls 
concern queries about whether or not to raise a safeguarding concern, consequently 
limiting the number of concerns raised. 
 
Whilst the figures are lower, our referral rate has been consistently higher than other 
Gloucestershire providers. The GSAB acknowledges, however, that these figures 

Page 27



 

22 
 

are likely to be inaccurate as the Trust is often incorrectly categorised. 
Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) is undertaking work to rectify this. 
 
Challenges for 2018/2019 
 
Whilst we have improved our compliance with statutory and mandatory safeguarding 
training we need to ensure we achieve our target of 95% compliance. Working with 
operational colleagues will progress in order to achieve this. 
 
We will also progress in delivering MCA & DoLS training as we are aware that 
colleagues find it difficult to implement this legislation.  We will, therefore, continue 
our schedule of visits to support staff in applying MCA in practice. 
 
To monitor progress we will be progressing our audit schedule and will be 
implementing more robust data collection processes in regards to DoLS 
applications/authorisations.  
 
The Trust adult and children’s safeguarding teams are now co-located and planning 
further integration.  We are also exploring joint working with safeguarding colleagues 
in 2gether Trust in anticipation of the proposed merger of the two Trusts. 
 
The Trust Adult Safeguarding team has received training in supervision methods and 
hopes to be able to offer some supervision to adult practitioners across the Trust; 
this has previously not been available. 
 
It is our intention to improve and increase Domestic abuse and DASH training. 
 
Susan Field 
Director of Nursing, Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust 
 

5.5 Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group (GCCG) 

GCCG continues to recognise, endorse and promote our requirement to safeguard 
adults at risk of abuse and neglect when commissioning health services across 
Gloucestershire.   We understand our shared responsibility and are committed to 
seeking assurances from across the health partnership that our most vulnerable 
adults are effectively safeguarded.   The GCCG key leadership roles ensure a clear 
line of accountability as well as provision of clinical expertise and strategic advice.  
GCCG is well represented at Board level by GCCG’s Executive Nurse, as well as at 
Management and Subgroup levels by both the Safeguarding Lead (Named Nurse) 
and the Specialist Nurse Safeguarding.   GCCG Safeguarding Lead has taken 
additional responsibility as Chair of the Safeguarding Adult Review Subgroup.  We 
also benefit from the clinical expertise of our Named GP for Safeguarding, 
supporting excellent working links across Primary Care.    
       
Key Achievements 2017/2018 
 

 Named GP as an expert advisor, giving practical and strategic support to 

Primary Care in relation to chronologies and IMR provision, assuring active 

Page 28



 

23 
 

contribution and high quality standards. GCCG now directly supports Primary 

Care to meet any required improvements related to Safeguarding.   

 Adult Safeguarding Forum is now established as 3 times per year.  Led by 

GCCG Named GP and Specialist Nurse, this forum is increasingly well 

attended with numbers up to 50 county GPs per session.  The CCG informs 

on pertinent ‘hot topics’ and focused learning, including Domestic Abuse and 

Sexual Violence (DASV), Mental Capacity Act (MCA) and Do Not Attempt 

Resuscitation (DNAR) guidelines. There is learning from SARs and a standing 

item to discuss cases and concerns. 

 GCCG Safeguarding Team ensured 46 community Clinical Pharmacists (GP 

Practice based) received a multi-agency safeguarding adults (and children) 

training day in collaboration with GSAB and GSCB approved trainers.   

 Dental Forums are held 3 times per year and evidence excellent attendance 

from across the county.  Again, these sessions cover both adult and child 

safeguarding topics, and welcome all dental staff groups.     

 CCG Safeguarding Team has successfully facilitated locality based and 

Primary Care focused, Adult Safeguarding Training - Level 2.  Delivered by 

GSAB approved trainers, the aim was to provide a standardised training 

session for Gloucestershire GPs and Practice Staff.  The project achieved an 

incredibly high uptake with over 300 staff trained.   

 Created and produced the short animation ‘Abuse can be hard to spot’, 

devised to promote Safeguarding awareness particularly for Care Home and 

Domiciliary Care staff. 

 GCCG Safeguarding Lead initiated a CCG funded one year programme of 

externally facilitated group supervision currently in place for Named Nurses 

(Safeguarding Leads within their organisation) from all 3 Provider Trusts 

(adult and child). 

 Representation on Gloucestershire Anti-Slavery Partnership Board and 

leading in the health contribution for a multi-agency Modern Slavery 

Reception Centre and Response Planning.    

Priorities for 2018/2019  
 

 To update GCCG’s Strategy for Safeguarding Adults and Children to reflect 

CCG strategic Safeguarding priorities.    

 To seek both Provider and Patient assurances for Out of County and In 

County care placements, establishing a high regard for visibility and oversight 

of safeguarding considerations.    

 To provide evidence of the impact of CCG learning events, forums, bespoke 

and external training events (GSAB) through timely and informative 

evaluations.  GCCG is trialing a recently devised ‘Smart Survey’ as a way of 

effectively capturing this.     

 To continue with innovative work, being collaborative and maintaining 

awareness for adults with care and support needs.  The team is currently 

Page 29



 

24 
 

working with Inclusion Gloucestershire; plans to create a short film will re-

badge ‘did not attend’ as ‘was not brought’ for those adults needing active 

support to attend medical appointments.   

 To actively support the delivery of the GSAB strategic objectives. 

 
Marion Andrews-Evans 
Executive Nurse & Quality Lead, Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group 
 

5.6 Gloucestershire District Councils  

 
Key Achievements 
District Councils are uniquely placed to work with our communities to support the 
safeguarding agenda.  With this in mind the six district councils have formed a 
safeguarding network that shares good practice and challenges and allows us to 
work together to reduce the risk to our communities.  Through this group we have 
worked with the GSAB to look at the training we offer our staff and how best to 
ensure they are equipped to deal with the safeguarding of adults who directly and 
indirectly come into contact with our Councils.  We have also worked with the police 
to raise awareness of County Lines so that our staff are able to respond should they 
become of aware of the problem.  We have also looked at how we can work together 
better on the issue of Modern Slavery especially getting the message out to the 
public. 
 
Priorities for 2018/2019 
In the coming year as we embed a new quality assurance framework for 
safeguarding children we will consider how we can extend this to ensure the quality 
of our safeguarding adults practice.  We also hope to work more closely with 
partners across the system around the complex issues of self-neglect and hoarding, 
ensuring that districts take appropriate actions when necessary.  We will continue to 
work through the network and other partnerships with the Police to reduce the impact 
of organised crime on the most vulnerable in our communities.  As a network we 
have just begun to explore the topics of Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) and 
hope to develop ways of using this to support our work with vulnerable children and 
adults to support them and the communities they live in to thrive. 
 
Tracy Brown 
Safeguarding and Partnerships Manager 
 

5.7 Gloucestershire PREVENT Partnership Board  

 
Gloucestershire PREVENT Partnership Board (GPPB) is a multi-agency steering 
group committed in safeguarding communities within Gloucestershire against 
radicalisation and extremism through the PREVENT Duty.  Members represent LAs, 
GCC Safeguarding Boards, educational establishments, Police, Fire & Rescue, 
Probation services, GARAS, Independent Advisory Group and Health Organisations. 
 
Key Achievements 2017/18 

Page 30



 

25 
 

The Home Office conducted a 1-day Peer Review that found GPPB has a strong 
appetite to succeed with commitment from senior officers across all partners. 
Relationships between police and key partners are strong. The use of an 
anonymised Channel case, with strong positive outcomes, was being used to bring 
Channel to life in training but greater inclusion of adult services within Prevent and 
Channel arrangements was required. 
 
Members from the Muslim Community attended a GPPB meeting to give members 
an insight into how the Prevent Strategy affects both their working and personal lives 
on a daily basis.  A frank and honest discussion was had and one of the outcomes 
highlighted was the need for greater community engagement. 
 
A Prevent Workshop was attended by members which not only concentrated on 
Prevent with regards to Islamic extremism, but also the rise of the extreme right 
wing, gang membership and dissident Irish republicanism. This workshop also 
looked in detail at the journey that individuals go on and how they become 
radicalised. 
 
40 referrals had been received from April 2017 to March 2018.  Approximately 20% 
are adults and the majority of referrals originate from health organisations or 
Probation Service. 
 
Looking forward for 2018/19 
GPPB continues to engage with partner agencies to strengthen governance 
arrangements for Prevent across statutory safeguarding boards via the Safer 
Gloucestershire Board. Looking to develop an appropriate and effective referral 
system/process for multi-agency information gathering, ensuring that Adult Social 
Care is involved.  GPPB now have representation from Adult Social Care and are 
looking to arrange a stand at forthcoming Adult Safeguarding roadshows.  The Board 
is committed to proactively working with community groups in raising awareness as 
well as informing communities on how to spot signs as well as where/who to contact 
with their concerns. 
 
Jayne Putland 
Civil Protection Office & PREVENT Co-ordinator 

6. Safeguarding Adults Reviews 

The Safeguarding Adults Review sub group receives all requests made to the GSAB 
Chair, assisting the process of information gathering, identification of relevant 
agencies and proceeding to assessment and analysis of each case.  The sub group 
has a responsibility to recommend whether a request meets the requirements for a 
statutory or non-statutory review (Care Act 2014).     
 
Safeguarding Adults Reviews 
For the preceding year (2016/17) SAR themes were solely linked to that of self-
neglect; the learning from each of those cases (‘KH’, ‘Ted’ and ‘AT’) advised that 
agencies consider unwise decision making within the complexity of deemed mental 
capacity, and how mental health, physical illness and learning disability may impact 

Page 31



 

26 
 

on delivery of health or social care services.  The GSAB Roadshows support wide 
disseminated of learning to all agencies.    
 
The GSAB has published two SARs this year, 2017/18:  
 
‘Hannah’ was a young woman from Gloucestershire who died aged 26, on 27th May 
2016.  Hannah died in hospital of natural causes.  Health concerns prior to her death 
included the effects of obesity and an on-going wound infection which she had had 
during the last six months of her life.     
 

Hannah used a lot of services and on many occasions, both mental health and 
physical health services.  The Review showed how much is expected of people as 
patients today where they are expected to cooperate with and be “in control” of their 
own care.  This isn’t always straightforward for anyone who may be more vulnerable.  
In general, however, there were many things which worked sufficiently well for 
Hannah.  On occasion, it was harder to see who the lead professional in the situation 
was due to the arrangements for acquiring and monitoring care.   Therefore, an 
aspect noted for further consideration was the overall working arrangements 
between commissioners and providers of domiciliary care services.   
 
The review recommended that steps to encourage greater “parity of esteem” or 
equality between the response to mental health needs and physical health needs, be 
strengthened.  Also, it has been recommended that efforts be made to promote a 
wider availability of different accommodation for people with mental health needs.     

   
‘Danny’ was a white British man, aged 64 when he died. Throughout his life he had 
significant mental health and learning disabilities, with diabetes diagnosed in 2001. 
His physical health was exacerbated by lifestyle choices he made regarding his diet.  
He lived in Supported Accommodation with an extensive care package aimed at 
supporting his independence whilst ensuring personal and home care needs were 
met.  His support worker team was consistent over many years and the service was 
effective, despite several hospital admissions, until his final few months when his 
needs became complex and challenging in this setting.  

 
Concerns had arisen regarding the way in which organisations worked together to 
ensure Danny’s safety and wellbeing, especially around hospital admissions and 
discharges, with areas for learning and improvement identified.  Danny’s discharges 
from hospital were planned in advance but delays and failure to communicate 
effectively and in a timely way led to rapid readmissions. Funding the different 
components of Danny’s care was also not straightforward and needed improvement.  

 
The sub group has worked effectively as a multi-agency group.  Meetings are 
consistently well represented by key partners, and well supported by the GSAB 
Business Manager and an Administrator.    
 
A significant challenge from January 2017 was having a number of action plans each 
addressing many specific recommendations.  The professional commitment of the 
sub group has been instrumental in all elements of the Review process; providing 
excellent multi-agency representation for the Reviews undertaken and ensuring that 
there is robust professional challenge and quality assurance throughout each report.  

Page 32



 

27 
 

The sub group has considered SAR action plans in a pragmatic and pro-active way, 
identifying the relevant organisational lead for each agreed recommendation.  As a 
result, the group is confident that progressive actions are well evidenced within each 
‘closed’ plan report.   

 
Significant action outcomes for 2017/18 include:  
 

 Holding Public Health and Commissioning Leads to account; specifically in 

relation to the commissioner-care provider continuum, and linking the GSAB 

with the national work of the Health Select Committee regarding suicide 

prevention.    

 Direct influences to adapt and enhance Adult Safeguarding (Level 3) training 

and Mental Capacity Act training to include supporting a person-centred 

approach regarding ‘unwise’ decision making.  

 Advising the work of multi agency and single agency auditing – e.g. Lead 

Professional in Sec 42 Enquiry.  

 Self-neglect guidance; a full review and update, linked with a GSAB 

communication plan for training and dissemination.   

Overview of SAR referrals received 2017/18 
The table below demonstrates an overview of the SAR referrals made to GSAB, 
capturing the breadth of referral sources as well as time period when referrals were 
made.     
 

 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Referrals 
Received  

1  0 4 4 

Referral 
Source  

Health - 2gether  -  Suicide Crisis 

 GSAB Chair 

 Family  

 Adult Social 
Care 

 Adult Social Care 

 Health - GCS  

 GCC – SG Adult 
(SAFE1)  

 Police  

SAR 
Undertaken 

0 0 1  0  

Name MQ -  LD (Out of County 
SAR)   

- 

Learning 
Event  

1  0 0 0 

Comments  Learning Event 
held June 2018 

-  GSAB linked (OOC)  X2 cases pending 
decision (DL/HK) 

 
Planning for 2018 
GSAB has commissioned one SAR and one Local Learning Review.  A further SAR 
is taking place out of county whereby GSAB will be involved and disseminate the key 
learning.  Nationally, there is an emerging theme relating to out of county 
placements, commissioner oversight, confidence in appropriate case management 
and management of risk.  Gloucestershire SARs this year appear to reflect aspects 
of this theme.  

Page 33



 

28 
 

      
A new SAR Tracker will be instrumental in improving future oversight and analysis of 
all the SARs undertaken.  Advantages will include being able to reflect on previous 
SAR learning, actions taken and learning methodology; this should better govern 
decision making in all aspects of SARs.   
 
The SAR sub group welcomes the GSAB Strategic Plan that will connect the work of 
all GSAB sub groups.   

  
The full reports can be found on the GSAB website at: 
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gsab/ 

7. GSAB Management Committee 

 
The role of the Management Committee is to effectively manage the Board’s 
business, co-ordinating the work programme and overseeing key business functions 
on behalf of the Board. This includes: 

 Co-ordinating the development and implementation of objectives and priorities 
outlined in the strategy; 

 Driving the development of good practice in safeguarding adults work; 
 Establishing sub groups and task and finish groups; 
 Providing direction and support to sub groups and task and finish groups; 
 Monitoring and reviewing safeguarding adults performance in Gloucestershire 

and providing an analysis of performance through quarterly reports to the 
GSAB; 

 Promoting effective community engagement with safeguarding adults work 
and ensuring that the voice of the citizen is heard; 

 Implementing lessons learned from Safeguarding Adults Reviews; 
 Receiving minutes from the Board and undertaking actions arising from the 

minutes as required; 
 Production of the GSAB Annual Report. 

 
During 2017/18 the Management Committee met quarterly and worked to a standard 
agenda which included oversight and updates to the Risk Register. A function of the 
Management Committee is also to review any reports that will be presented at Board 
meetings.   
 
The Management Committee will be changing its name to the Business Planning 
Group and increasing its remit in 2018/19.  The group will take on additional 
responsibility for the work of the GSAB sub groups and only exception reporting will 
go to the board.  New Terms of Reference have been produced to reflect the 
changes.   The format of future Board meetings will also change to make them more 
engaging and to increase the board’s assurance role.   

8. Sub Group Achievements 2016/17 and Priorities 2017/18  

 

Page 34

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gsab/


 

29 
 

8.1 Workforce Development  
 

 Training figures (found in supporting documents) highlight the take up of 
GSAB training and e-learning by partners during the year. In summary,18,500 
Gloucestershire staff (and volunteers) undertook GSAB approved 
Safeguarding courses; nearly half of these completed level 1 e-learning and 
the other half participated in training at levels 2, 3 and 4. There was an 
increase in e-learning completions within the Acute Trust due to programme 
enhancements which required staff to update.  

 Within 2gether NHSFT, level 3 training was made mandatory for all staff at 
band 6 and above. We worked jointly to develop capacity to ensure an 
estimated additional 200 staff per year have access to this programme. 
Additional courses are now being delivered by the Trust’s GSAB approved 
trainer, with input from our Safeguarding team and quality assurance by 
GSAB’s multi agency level 3 trainer. In order to ensure the multi agency 
model is maintained, 10 places on each course are offered to partners. 

 The annual train the trainers workshop for new level 2 trainers was held in 
September with 21 participants. Organisations represented included GFRS, 
Glos. Constabulary, Age UK, Adult Education, a faith group and health & 
Social Care providers. Follow up supported observations have been delayed 
although we have recently commissioned an external trainer to prioritise the 
eight outstanding trainer observations and also the quality assurance 
requirement for two yearly follow up observations for all trainers.  

 The annual CPD day for trainers took place in October with 60 trainers 
attending. The theme this year was Making Safeguarding Personal with 
presentations on dementia, coercion & control, fuel poverty and Advocacy in 
Gloucestershire. All participants rated the event highly.  

 Work was undertaken to review and refresh our database of GSAB approved 
trainers in Gloucestershire.  We currently have 63 active approved 
safeguarding trainers, with 8 awaiting observations. 

 The second set of annual GSAB roadshows were held during March and 
April, with excellent feedback. This year’s theme was ‘finding the balance’ 
looking at the issue of capacity within safeguarding and the impact on Making 
Safeguarding Personal.   

 The annual CPD session for Board members was held at the Guildhall in 
April. A presentation by the Head of Safeguarding Adults on the outcomes 
from South West SARs was followed by group activity to review and feed 
back on the new draft strategic plan. 
 

2018/19 priorities include ensuring we deliver on the generic safeguarding 
awareness induction programme, re-focusing on obtaining impact evaluation, 
learning from the engagement sub-group on how people with lived experience can 
contribute to workforce development and reporting the percentage training 
compliance rates within statutory health & social care partners. 

 
2017/18 Training Figures can be found in supporting documents. 
 
 
 
 

Page 35

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gsab/safeguarding-adults-board/safeguarding-adults-annual-reports-and-strategic-plan/


 

30 
 

8.2 Fire Safety Development 
 
This past year the group has made progress in many areas.  Last year’s priorities 
were as follows: 
 
SJ SAR Recommendations: 
The group has ensured that the recommendations to come out of the SJ SAR have 
been actioned.  It has designed a prompt card for staff going into people’s homes 
around the four questions that formed part of the SAR. 

 
 

 
 

Page 36



 

31 
 

These questions have been adopted by the National Fire Chief’s Council and were 
used as part of the work undertaken nationally following the Grenfell Tragedy.  
Locally, all media campaigns, interviews and newspaper articles include the four 
questions and staff across Gloucestershire can access the prompt cards. 
 
Risk Identification and referral pathways: 
Whilst we have made good progress in the area of risk identification, there is some 
further work to embed fire risk as a standard part of assessments in people’s homes 
carried out by partners.  Referral pathways are established.  Both risk identification 
and referral pathways are included in safeguarding training which partners access.  
The e-learning package that was developed by the Royal College of General 
Practitioners has been shared with the Safeguarding Workforce Development Sub 
Group and will be included in their suite of e-learning packages. 
 
Comms and Engagement: 
The FSDG will be represented on the Safeguarding Board’s Comms and 
Engagement sub group.  Comms is a standard agenda item which looks at up and 
coming campaigns to see how partners can support.  This summer will see a 
#safesummer campaign which will run through all GFRS open days.  Partners will be 
invited to attend in order to spread their messages at the popular events.  The group 
continues to look at how they can better engage with hard to reach groups.  One 
example is the advertising of Safe and Well visits on pharmacy bags in an attempt to 
reach people in one of the risk groups (prescription drugs). 

 
 
The Group will be signing a consensus statement which describes our intent to work 
together to encourage joint strategies for intelligence-led early fire safety intervention and 
prevention; ensuring people with complex needs get the personalised, integrated care and 

Page 37



 

32 
 

support they need to live full lives, sustain their independence for longer and in doing so 
reduce preventable hospital admissions and avoidable fire injuries and fatalities.  
 

In order to achieve this partners who sign up to this consensus statement commit to: 
 

 Work together to use our collective capabilities and resources more effectively to enhance 

the lives of the people we work with and we will support and encourage our local networks 

to do the same in their communities. 

 Work together to develop ways of sharing information to help front line staff provide better 

safety solutions based on fire risk. 

 Work together to use our collective capabilities and resources to ensure the people we work 

with get the appropriate safety equipment at the right time. 

 Work together to ensure our staff understand fire risk and its wider implications. 

 Work together to ensure there is a referral pathway into Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue 

Service. 

 Work together to, as far as possible, mitigate risk for people in their homes. 

 
The group has developed a Fire Fatality report that looks at all information gathered 
following a fire fatality in order to decide if it needs to be referred for SAR consideration.  If 
the group decides that it doesn’t meet the threshold of a SAR then the Fire Fatality report 
sets out recommendations which the group actions. 
 
One of the main areas of work this year will be to complete the Coroner’s Gap Analysis.  
This will look at all coroner recommendations nationally that have come out of fire fatalities 
over the past ten years to do a Gloucestershire comparison and gap analysis.  This will 
inform next year’s Action plan. 
 
There has been some fantastic work done this year and we will continue to deliver against 
the high targets we set ourselves. 

 
 
8.3 Communication & Engagement  

 
The Communication and Engagement sub group was reinvigorated in 2017/18 and 
physical meetings resumed in September 2017. The sub group brings together 
statutory agencies, partners and providers. 

 
Achievements in 2017/18 

 Relaunched and publicised physical quarterly meetings of the sub group with 

new partners involved, particularly from the voluntary and community sector 

 Created Terms of Reference for the Communication and Engagement sub 

group 

 Created and ratified Communication and Engagement Strategy for the GSAB 

 Set up Co-production and Engagement Forum to provide user’s perspective 

on safeguarding processes and co-produce policies, procedures and publicity 

 Created Terms of Reference for the Co-production and Engagement Forum 

and co-produced aims and values for the group  

Page 38



 

33 
 

 Chair of the sub group attended the South West ADASS annual safeguarding 

conference and Making Safeguarding Personal conference. Both informed the 

priorities of the sub group and forum and the latter informed the design and 

planning of the Co-production Forum. 

 
 
Priorities for 2018/19 

 Raise awareness of safeguarding and promote the welfare of adults at risk, 

utilising the networks that members of the Communication and Engagement 

sub group have in the community. 

 Increase engagement with the voluntary and community sector so that they 

can support the preventative agenda. 

 Ensure GSAB policies and procedures are communicated to partner agencies 

and communities in formats that are accessible and engaging. 

 Disseminate advice and guidance on identifying, recognising and reporting 

abuse. 

 Grow membership of the Co-production and Engagement Forum and ensure 

that the group is supporting the GSAB to deliver person-centred approaches 

to safeguarding and hear the voice of people with care and support needs. 

 Monitor implementation of the Communication Strategy by the wider board. 

 
8.4 Policy & Procedures  

 
Achievements for 2017/18 
The continued engagement from partner agencies has ensured the Policy and 
Procedures sub group has been able to produce and update a significant number of 
documents in the last year.  This includes:  
 

Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board 

Communication and Engagement Sub-Group 
Purpose - raise the public profile of the GSAB and raise awareness of key issues to 

promote safeguarding of adults 

For - a diverse range of colleagues from the voluntary and community sector, statutory 
and non-statutory agencies 

Coproduction and Engagement Forum 
Purpose - provide the voice of people who have been through (or are at risk 

of) safeguarding processes to shape, support and challenge the GSAB 

For - adults who have experienced Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults 
Procedures or are at risk of abuse/neglect and their families/carers 

Page 39



 

34 
 

 The Out of Contact Protocol was updated in May 2017 

 The Safeguarding Adults Review (SAR) Protocol was updated in May 2017 

 Safer Recruitment Guidance was amended in May 2017 

 Whistleblowing Guidance was updated in May 2017 

 The Escalation Policy was refreshed in May 2017 

 The Positions of Trust Framework was produced in September 2017 

 Policy and Procedures Easy Read version was updated in November 2017  

 The GSAB Member Induction Pack was updated in November 2017 

 The Elected Member Induction Pack was created in November 2017  

 GSAB Constitution & Memorandum of Understanding was ratified in 
November 2017 

 
Priorities for 2018/19 

 The Gloucestershire Multi Agency Safeguarding Adults Policy and Procedures 
will be updated later in the year following a refresh by the West Midlands 
Editorial Group.  

 

 Safeguarding Transition Guidance will be produced, aligning both the Adults 
and Children’s Boards; a Task and Finish group will be created to take this 
forward.  

 

 The formation of the South West Editorial Group, chaired by Sarah Jasper, 
Acting Head of Safeguarding Adults, with direct links back to the Policy and 
Procedures sub group.  

 

 The creation of a Management of Risk Policy and Organisational Abuse 
Procedures. 

 

 The Safeguarding Adults Review (SAR) Protocol will be updated.  
 

 Production of the Safeguarding Adults Pressure Ulcer Protocol.  
 

 Stronger links are being forged through a new GSAB Co-production and 
Service User group.  Feedback on future policies and procedures, at the 
production stage, will be sought through this group.  Easy read versions of 
relevant documents will also be produced.   

 

 Common language will be used to ensure future documents are accessible to 
everyone, encompassing the principles of making safeguarding personal. 

 
8.5 Activity & Data 2016/17 

 
Calls to the Safeguarding Adults Team Advice Line, where professionals can call to 
discuss a case and receive advice on whether or not to raise a safeguarding concern 
remain high, with 3398 calls.  The number of Safeguarding concerns raised on 
behalf of adults at risk was 1673, when this is added to the number of advice line 
calls it makes a total of 5071 contacts with the team.   
 

Page 40



 

35 
 

Of the 1673 concerns, 684 went on to become section 42 enquiries and 175 became 
‘Other’ enquiries, making a total of 859. ‘Other’ relates to enquiries which have not 
met the criteria for a statutory enquiry, however some form of safeguarding enquiry 
is deemed to be required, for example, the person is at risk of abuse and has 
support needs, but not care needs.  

162 of the safeguarding concerns reported to the Adult Social Care help desk were 
made by Gloucestershire Police, an increase from 124 last year.  Of these 60 led to 
enquiries.  The Police provided information for 475 enquires and 32 were recorded 
as a criminal matter.  
 
Advice Line Calls 2017/18 
 

Quarter Month Advice Line Calls 

Q1 Apr 2017 258 

May 2017 220 

Jun 2017 269 

Total 747 

Q2 Jul 2017 375 

Aug 2017 227 

Sep 2017 253 

Total 855 

Q3 Oct 2017 305 

Nov 2017 302 

Dec 2017 235 

Total 842 

Q4 Jan 2018 309 

Feb 2018 318 

Mar 2018 327 

Total 954 

 
  

Page 41



 

36 
 

Concerns Leading to Section 42 or Other Safeguarding Enquiries 2017/18 
 

 
 
Closed Section 42 Enquiries and Risk  
 

 
 
Quarter Total Closed S 42s Risk Remains Risk Reduced Risk Removed No Risk Identified 

Q1 189 18 90 62 18 

Q2 189 17 83 57 31 

Q3 215 22 107 64 24 

Q4 249 29 105 97 17 

Total 842 86 385 280 90 

 
 

Page 42



 

37 
 

 
 
 
Section 42 Enquiries by Age Group 
 
 

 
 
 
8.6 Quality Assurance  

 
Audit Group 
 
One of the Audit sub group’s main responsibilities is to complete an agreed multi 
agency annual programme of planned audits in response to emerging themes or 
areas of concern - identified by GSAB, its Management Committee or the Audit 
Group (in agreement with GSAB).  
 
The group has undertaken 8 multi agency case file audits this year, which consisted 
of 3 general audits with the other five covering the following themes: 

 financial abuse 

 repeat concerns 

 section 42 decision making 

 Mental Capacity Act 

Page 43



 

38 
 

 Making Safeguarding Personal.  

The results of the audits are fed back to the teams concerned, including where there 
is evidence of good practice. Any broader learning identified is directed to the 
relevant group for sharing more widely. For example the findings from the recent 
Mental Capacity Act audit have been shared with the Mental Capacity Act 
Governance Lead to inform the strategy of that group. 
 
GCC’s Internal Audit team will be carrying out an audit of the work of the group. This 
consultancy review will seek to determine whether there is a robust framework in 
place for ensuring the effective identification, assessment and delivery of the multi 
agency annual programme of planned audits. 

 
Priorities for 18/19 include: 
 

 A further audit on repeat concerns in order to understand the reasons why 
adults frequently have more than one safeguarding concern raised.  

 Sexual abuse concerns – continuing to track responses to such concerns in 
the light of the Home X Serious Case Review. 

 Domestic abuse – recognition of domestic abuse as it relates to adults with 
care and support needs. 

 Self-neglect – auditing whether the learning from the Safeguarding Adults 
Reviews in this area is being embedded into practice. 

 Developing the work of the group further by seeking new methods of auditing 
safeguarding adults work that goes beyond case file audits and encompasses 
the work of partner agencies other than Adult Social Care. 

 Incorporating emerging issues from SARs into the work of the group as 
required by GSAB.  

9. Safeguarding Adults at Risk Self Assessment Audit Tool 
2017/18 

 
In January 2018 an updated Safeguarding Adults at Risk Self Assessment Audit tool 
was sent out to partners for completion.  The aim of the audit tool is to provide 
organisations in Gloucestershire with a consistent framework to assess and monitor 
Safeguarding Adults arrangements.  This in turn supports the Board in ensuring 
effective safeguarding practice across the county.    
 
The tool provides an overview of the Safeguarding Adults arrangements in place 
across the county, identifying: 
 

 Strengths, in order that good practice can be shared 

 Common areas for improvement where organisations can possibly work 
together with the support of the Board 

 Single agency issues that may need to be addressed by the Board 
 
The audit tool is a two-part process, with initial completion of the self assessment 
audit, followed by scrutiny and challenge.  Over the next two months meetings will be 

Page 44



 

39 
 

held with partners to quality assure the self assessments and highlight any areas 
where further work is needed.  A further update will be provided in the GSAB 
2018/19 Annual Report.  

10. The Board’s Resources 

 
Independent Chair’s comments on Board attendance  
We have worked hard once again to ensure that all partner organisations on the 
Safeguarding Adults Board are represented by a post holder of sufficient seniority 
and expertise and that ideally the same person should attend each meeting. 
However, there are inevitably operational pressures on individuals. I am very grateful 
to the senior representatives of each organisation who have given so much time, 
interest and commitment to the work of the Board during 2017/18. 
A full list of the Board’s current membership can be found in supporting documents. 
 
Funding Contributions 
The Board is pleased to confirm that the Gloucestershire Constabulary & the Clinical 
Commissioning Group (on behalf of 2getherNHSFT, Gloucestershire Hospitals 
NHSFT and Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust) have agreed to continue 
their financial contribution to the Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board.  The 
Bristol, Gloucestershire, Somerset and Wiltshire Community Rehabilitation 
Companies (Probation Service) have also provided a contribution.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GSAB Business and Activity Costs 2017/18 
 

Independent Chair                                                      20,000 
Other staffing                                                            101,400 
(Includes 30% Head of Safeguarding Adults,  
100% GSAB Business Manager, 15% Admin 
Manager & 100% Administrator) 
                                               
Workforce Development                                             65,000 
Safeguarding Adult  Reviews                                      20,000 
Comms. & Publicity                                                       4,000 
Total                                                                         210,400 
 

 

 

GSAB Partner Contributions 2017/18 
  
Health    38,877 
Police    20,440 
Probation     1,000 

Page 45

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gsab/safeguarding-adults-board/safeguarding-adults-annual-reports-and-strategic-plan/


 

40 
 

These contributions help with costs associated with the running of the Board, 
including its Independent Chair, the Gloucestershire County Council Head of 
Safeguarding Adults post, costs in conducting Safeguarding Adults Reviews, 
Communication & Publicity and delivering on the Board’s Workforce Development 
and Training Pathway.  
 
Other partners have contributed with their time and commitment to the Board’s work 
and by providing access to resources such as meeting venues, conferences, etc. 
 
All documents and supporting reports referred to in this annual report can 
also be found on the GSAB website, supporting documentation. 
 
Special thanks are reserved for all agencies who have contributed to this 
report and the achievements of the Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults 
Board over the last year.  
Back to Contents 

Page 46

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gsab/safeguarding-adults-board/safeguarding-adults-annual-reports-and-strategic-plan/


Public Health HOSC

Quarter Two 2018/19

Produced by the Performance and Improvement Team

Key to symbols

Performance better than tolerance

Performance within tolerance

Performance worse than tolerance

No information

Missing target

No value

Bigger is better A bigger value for this measure is good

Smaller is
better

A smaller value for this measure is good

Reporting Basis

Year to
Date

Performance accumulated over the
year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12
month period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in
time

Reported In

JHWS Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy

HOSC Health & Care Overview & Scrutiny

CYPP Children & Young People’s Plan

ASMT Adult Social Care Management Team

CDS Core Data Set

1

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 5



Number of Healthy
Lifestyles customers
demonstrating a significant
improvement in their
mental wellbeing score

Bigger is
Better

158 226 197 131 81

There has been a drop in the number and percentage of customers seeing a significant
improvement in their mental wellbeing score since last quarter  81 (47%) in Q2 compared
to 131 (62%) in Q1.

N.B  this is a subset of those people receiving support from the service as not everyone
agrees for their wellbeing to be measured

Improving mental wellbeing is not a primary function of the service. However, we included
this as an indicator to monitor what, if any, impact a lifestyle change intervention by the
service could have on mental wellbeing.

There are a number of things that impact on someone's mental wellbeing so it is difficult
to disaggregate the impact that the service can have from external influences. However,
we will track this indicator to gain more insight on the wider impact the service can have
outwith its primary function.

However the data show that a significant number of those accessing the service to improve
lifestyle behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.
81/173 (47%) saw a significant improvement
33 (19%) showed some improvement
37 (21%) remaining the same.
22 (13%) got worse

So in total 114/173 (66%) experienced some improvement in their mental health
compared to 22 (13%) that experienced a drop in their score. This demonstrates that
although the services prime objective is to improve physical health it can also positively
impact on the overall wellbeing of service users.

% of Healthy Lifestyles
customers demonstrating a
significant improvement in
their mental wellbeing
score

Bigger is
Better

82.0 % 77.0 % 69.0 % 62.0 % 47.0 %

There has been a drop in the number and percentage of customers seeing a significant
improvement in their mental wellbeing score since last quarter  81 (47%) in Q2 compared
to 131 (62%) in Q1.

N.B  this is a subset of those people receiving support from the service as not everyone
agrees for their wellbeing to be measured

Improving mental wellbeing is not a primary function of the service. However, we included
this as an indicator to monitor what, if any, impact a lifestyle change intervention by the
service could have on mental wellbeing.

There are a number of things that impact on someone's mental wellbeing so it is difficult
to disaggregate the impact that the service can have from external influences. However,
we will track this indicator to gain more insight on the wider impact the service can have
outwith its primary function.

However the data show that a significant number of those accessing the service to improve
lifestyle behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.
81/173 (47%) saw a significant improvement
33 (19%) showed some improvement
37 (21%) remaining the same.
22 (13%) got worse

So in total 114/173 (66%) experienced some improvement in their mental health
compared to 22 (13%) that experienced a drop in their score. This demonstrates that
although the services prime objective is to improve physical health it can also positively
impact on the overall wellbeing of service users.

% of all Healthy Lifestyles
customers who achieve a
significant risk factor
improvement

Bigger is
Better

71.0 % 69.0 % 83.0 % 73.0 % 76.0 %

High numbers of service users continue to make behaviour changes that will impact on
their health with 852 / 1125 (76%) of users achieving a significant improvement.    Service
users are contacted within 2 days, see the same coach throughout their programme and
coaches are trained in motivational interviewing and see people at a place that is
convenient to them.   I believe that this approach increases the likelihood of a positive
outcome.

Of the 273 that did not meet the threshold for significant improvement 189 (17%) made
some improvement in achieving their behaviour change goal.

Percentage of uptake of
health checks

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

59.7 % 64.6 % 61.2 % 66.6 % ? ?

Unfortunately, Q2 performance data for NHS Health Checks has been
delayed. This is due to the introduction of a new clinical audit tool for
primary care which has caused issues with extracting the data from GP
providers. The Q2 data will be entered retrospectively when the issues
are resolved.

% of children who received
a 1 year check by 1 year

Bigger is
Better

56.0 % 79.0 % 78.6 % 78.1 % 82.1 %

PLEASE NOTE the new data set from Q1 onwards can not be directly compared to the
previous 2017/2018 data reported. This is due to a misinterpretation of the denominator
required to calculate the indicators. We have worked with GCS to identify the issue and
are currently resolving it. This will ensure that data reported nationally and locally are
aligned. This narrative supports the data for all four indicators including the break down by
level of need indicators: Universal (PH97i), Universal Partnership (PH97ii) and Universal
partnership plus (PH97iii).

The purpose of the 912 month developmental review is to assess a child is developing
appropriately for their age. As a universal service the review is offered to all families and
the service aims to review all children by age 912months but the review continues to be a
valid assessment of development up to aged 15 months. Reviews completed outside of
the 12 months time frame may be due to the specific needs of the child. For example, a
number of children requiring Universal partnership plus ( UPP) have complex needs and
Health visitors are delivering priority activity to them or they are accessing other services.
These children may not require the routine check for delayed development. For Q1 18/19
the % of children who received a 12 month review within timeframe (12 months) and out
of time frame (by 15 months) is reported as Universal (Within time: 87.3%/ outside time:
87.3%), Universal Partnership (Within time: 67.5%/ outside time: 91.7%) and Universal
partnership plus (Within time: 75.8%/ outside time: 92.7%). The 7.3% of UPP children that
do not receive a 1 year check by a Health visitors equates to approximately 1 child, this
will be for legitimate reasons such as the child still being in special care and under a
paediatric consultant.  Q1 reflects some delays in delivering universal mandated checks
within timeframe due to prioritising increased safeguarding demand. Public Health are
working closely with GCS, the CCG and Children's Services to improve safeguarding
pathways and identify resource to reduce demand on the PHN service

If a family identified for UP or UPP does not attend review, they are engaged by the service 
and followed up with an opportunistic visit to ensure the review takes place even if its out 
of the 12 month timeframe. If other known agencies or organisations are involved, the 
service would communicate with them to identify any concerns or a change of details.  As 
a further safeguard all children in families receiving the UPP and UP service are discussed 
by Health Visitors at a monthly extended allocation meeting.

% of infants being
breastfed at 68 weeks
(breastfeeding prevalence)

Bigger is
Better

Rolling Year 48.4 % 49.2 % 53.0 % 51.6 % 53.6 %

Q1 18/19 rate of 53.6%  continues the improvement trend from 17/18 but remains below
the local aim of 58%.  GCC continues to commission a revised Breastfeeding Peer
Support service targeting areas with lower rates of uptake and increased numbers of
younger mums than the Gloucestershire average. BFPS offer support in the more deprived
wards of Gloucester, Cheltenham and the Forest of Dean.  Further initiatives contributing
to increasing Breastfeeding rates are facilitated by the Gloucestershire Infant Feeding
Strategic partnership led by GCC.

% live births that receive a
face to face New Birth Visit
within 714 days by a
health visitor

Bigger is
Better

89.0 % 93.3 % 87.8 % 87.6 % 88.8 %

PLEASE NOTE the new data set from Q1 onwards can not be directly compared to the
previous 2017/2018 data reported. This is due to a misinterpretation of the denominator
required to calculate the indicators. We have worked with GCS to identify the issue and
are currently resolving it. This will ensure that data reported nationally and locally are
aligned.  This narrative supports the data for all four indicators including the break down
by level of need indicators: Universal (PH96i), Universal Partnership (PH96ii) and Universal
partnership plus (PH96iii).

For Q1 from 1,377 eligible babies all but 2 received this mandated check but some (34 U,
5 UPP and 2 UP) were outside of the 714 day timeframe and the two not receiving the
check were a universal parent who declined and 1 UPP baby still in NICU.

% of live births to universal
families that receive a face
to face New Birth Visit
within 7 14 days by a
Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

? 93.8 % 88.5 % 88.1 % 90.5 %

% of live births to universal
plus families that receive a
face to face New Birth Visit
within 7 14 days by a
Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

? 89.6 % 85.3 % 84.4 % 71.6 %

% live births to universal
partnership plus families
that receive a face to face
New Birth Visit within 7 14
days by a Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

? 89.0 % 78.1 % 81.0 % 71.7 %

% of eligible children in Reception who participate in
the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 94.4 % 96.0 % 98.0 % 95.0 %

% of eligible children in Year 6 who participate in the
National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 95.0 % 93.6 % 97.5 % 95.0 %

Rate of new STI diagnosis in sexual health services
(excluding under 25 Chlamydia)

Smaller is
Better

? ? 514.0 600.0

**Updated data is not available this qtr.** Data shown is annual data for
2017 and the indicator is updated annually. The rate of new STI
diagnoses in the county is significantly below the national average. A
high diagnosis rate can be indicative of a high burden of infection.

Number of adults receiving
alcohol brief interventions

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 543 798 1,256 389 853 250

Proportion of all Opiate
Users in treatment, who
successfully completed
treatment and did not
represent within 6 months
of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

9.2 % 7.7 % 5.6 % 4.6 % 4.1 % 3.8 %

The provider Change Grow Live ( CGL) through their senior
management team are
•    Following the first year of the contract, appropriate targets have been
set for 2018/19
•    Meeting with all staff regularly to look at barriers to success weekly to
assist their senior  leadership team with monitoring 
•    Monitoring Successful completions and representations  weekly
across the county and with individual team members ,teams and hubs.
There is a good uptake and attendance of groups and workshops across
the county  1369 group attendances in the last quarter. Increased
uptake of those coming into and accessing treatment.  86 services users
successfully completing treatment and now being supported by CGL and
subcontracted partners in their continued recovery at the end of the last
reporting quarter

Proportion of all Non
Opiate Users in treatment,
who successfully
completed treatment and
did not represent within 6
months of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

41.8 35.6 31.0 22.8 21.0 21.0

The provider Change Grow Live ( CGL) through their senior
management team are
•    Following the first year of the contract, appropriate targets have been
set for 2018/19 
•    Meeting with all staff regularly to look at barriers to success weekly to
assist their senior  leadership team with monitoring
•    Monitoring Successful completions and representations  weekly
across the county and with individual team members ,teams and hubs.
There is a good uptake and attendance of groups and workshops across
the county  1369 group attendances in the last quarter. Increased
uptake of those coming into and accessing treatment.  86 services users
successfully completing treatment and now being supported by CGL and
subcontracted partners in their continued recovery at the end of the last
reporting quarter

Effective engagement rate
of Opiate Users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

93.0 % 93.0 % 95.0 % 94.3 % 95.5 % 85.0 %

Effective engagement rate
of NonOpiate users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

76.0 % 78.0 % 75.0 % 75.7 % 76.3 % 55.0 %

Proportion of adult alcohol
misusers who have left
treatment successfully

Bigger is
Better

47.0 % 41.3 % 34.7 % 29.3 % 27.7 % 27.0 %

The provider Change Grow Live ( CGL) through their senior
management team are
•    Following the first year of the contract, appropriate targets have been
set for 2018/19
•    Meeting with all staff regularly to look at barriers to success weekly to
assist their senior  leadership team with monitoring
•    Monitoring Successful completions and representations  weekly
across the county and with individual team members ,teams and hubs.
There is a good uptake and attendance of groups and workshops across
the county  1369 group attendances in the last quarter. Increased
uptake of those coming into and accessing treatment.  86 services users
successfully completing treatment and now being supported by CGL and
subcontracted partners in their continued recovery at the end of the last
reporting quarter

Percentage of clients
waiting under 3 weeks for
drug treatment intervention

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

98.0 % 99.6 % 99.3 % 98.5 % 100.0 % 90.0 %

Percentage of clients
waiting under 3 weeks for
alcohol treatment
intervention

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

97.0 % 100.0 % 99.2 % 97.8 % 100.0 % 90.0 %

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

NHS Health Checks  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

Children's Public Health  Quarterly Trend Analysis No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Comments Jun18

Children's Public Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target  Calendar Year
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Dec15 Dec16 Dec17
Target Dec
17

Comments Dec17

Sexual Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Sep16 Sep17 Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18
Target Jun
18

Comments Jun18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18
Target Jun
18

Comments Jun18

2

P
age 48

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col9')


Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Number of Healthy
Lifestyles customers
demonstrating a significant
improvement in their
mental wellbeing score

Bigger is
Better

158 226 197 131 81

There has been a drop in the number and percentage of customers seeing a significant
improvement in their mental wellbeing score since last quarter  81 (47%) in Q2 compared
to 131 (62%) in Q1.

N.B  this is a subset of those people receiving support from the service as not everyone
agrees for their wellbeing to be measured

Improving mental wellbeing is not a primary function of the service. However, we included
this as an indicator to monitor what, if any, impact a lifestyle change intervention by the
service could have on mental wellbeing.

There are a number of things that impact on someone's mental wellbeing so it is difficult
to disaggregate the impact that the service can have from external influences. However,
we will track this indicator to gain more insight on the wider impact the service can have
outwith its primary function.

However the data show that a significant number of those accessing the service to improve
lifestyle behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.
81/173 (47%) saw a significant improvement
33 (19%) showed some improvement
37 (21%) remaining the same.
22 (13%) got worse

So in total 114/173 (66%) experienced some improvement in their mental health
compared to 22 (13%) that experienced a drop in their score. This demonstrates that
although the services prime objective is to improve physical health it can also positively
impact on the overall wellbeing of service users.

% of Healthy Lifestyles
customers demonstrating a
significant improvement in
their mental wellbeing
score

Bigger is
Better

82.0 % 77.0 % 69.0 % 62.0 % 47.0 %

There has been a drop in the number and percentage of customers seeing a significant
improvement in their mental wellbeing score since last quarter  81 (47%) in Q2 compared
to 131 (62%) in Q1.

N.B  this is a subset of those people receiving support from the service as not everyone
agrees for their wellbeing to be measured

Improving mental wellbeing is not a primary function of the service. However, we included
this as an indicator to monitor what, if any, impact a lifestyle change intervention by the
service could have on mental wellbeing.

There are a number of things that impact on someone's mental wellbeing so it is difficult
to disaggregate the impact that the service can have from external influences. However,
we will track this indicator to gain more insight on the wider impact the service can have
outwith its primary function.

However the data show that a significant number of those accessing the service to improve
lifestyle behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.
81/173 (47%) saw a significant improvement
33 (19%) showed some improvement
37 (21%) remaining the same.
22 (13%) got worse

So in total 114/173 (66%) experienced some improvement in their mental health
compared to 22 (13%) that experienced a drop in their score. This demonstrates that
although the services prime objective is to improve physical health it can also positively
impact on the overall wellbeing of service users.

% of all Healthy Lifestyles
customers who achieve a
significant risk factor
improvement

Bigger is
Better

71.0 % 69.0 % 83.0 % 73.0 % 76.0 %

High numbers of service users continue to make behaviour changes that will impact on
their health with 852 / 1125 (76%) of users achieving a significant improvement.    Service
users are contacted within 2 days, see the same coach throughout their programme and
coaches are trained in motivational interviewing and see people at a place that is
convenient to them.   I believe that this approach increases the likelihood of a positive
outcome.

Of the 273 that did not meet the threshold for significant improvement 189 (17%) made
some improvement in achieving their behaviour change goal.

Percentage of uptake of
health checks

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

59.7 % 64.6 % 61.2 % 66.6 % ? ?

Unfortunately, Q2 performance data for NHS Health Checks has been
delayed. This is due to the introduction of a new clinical audit tool for
primary care which has caused issues with extracting the data from GP
providers. The Q2 data will be entered retrospectively when the issues
are resolved.

% of children who received
a 1 year check by 1 year

Bigger is
Better

56.0 % 79.0 % 78.6 % 78.1 % 82.1 %

PLEASE NOTE the new data set from Q1 onwards can not be directly compared to the
previous 2017/2018 data reported. This is due to a misinterpretation of the denominator
required to calculate the indicators. We have worked with GCS to identify the issue and
are currently resolving it. This will ensure that data reported nationally and locally are
aligned. This narrative supports the data for all four indicators including the break down by
level of need indicators: Universal (PH97i), Universal Partnership (PH97ii) and Universal
partnership plus (PH97iii).

The purpose of the 912 month developmental review is to assess a child is developing
appropriately for their age. As a universal service the review is offered to all families and
the service aims to review all children by age 912months but the review continues to be a
valid assessment of development up to aged 15 months. Reviews completed outside of
the 12 months time frame may be due to the specific needs of the child. For example, a
number of children requiring Universal partnership plus ( UPP) have complex needs and
Health visitors are delivering priority activity to them or they are accessing other services.
These children may not require the routine check for delayed development. For Q1 18/19
the % of children who received a 12 month review within timeframe (12 months) and out
of time frame (by 15 months) is reported as Universal (Within time: 87.3%/ outside time:
87.3%), Universal Partnership (Within time: 67.5%/ outside time: 91.7%) and Universal
partnership plus (Within time: 75.8%/ outside time: 92.7%). The 7.3% of UPP children that
do not receive a 1 year check by a Health visitors equates to approximately 1 child, this
will be for legitimate reasons such as the child still being in special care and under a
paediatric consultant.  Q1 reflects some delays in delivering universal mandated checks
within timeframe due to prioritising increased safeguarding demand. Public Health are
working closely with GCS, the CCG and Children's Services to improve safeguarding
pathways and identify resource to reduce demand on the PHN service

If a family identified for UP or UPP does not attend review, they are engaged by the service 
and followed up with an opportunistic visit to ensure the review takes place even if its out 
of the 12 month timeframe. If other known agencies or organisations are involved, the 
service would communicate with them to identify any concerns or a change of details.  As 
a further safeguard all children in families receiving the UPP and UP service are discussed 
by Health Visitors at a monthly extended allocation meeting.

% of infants being
breastfed at 68 weeks
(breastfeeding prevalence)

Bigger is
Better

Rolling Year 48.4 % 49.2 % 53.0 % 51.6 % 53.6 %

Q1 18/19 rate of 53.6%  continues the improvement trend from 17/18 but remains below
the local aim of 58%.  GCC continues to commission a revised Breastfeeding Peer
Support service targeting areas with lower rates of uptake and increased numbers of
younger mums than the Gloucestershire average. BFPS offer support in the more deprived
wards of Gloucester, Cheltenham and the Forest of Dean.  Further initiatives contributing
to increasing Breastfeeding rates are facilitated by the Gloucestershire Infant Feeding
Strategic partnership led by GCC.

% live births that receive a
face to face New Birth Visit
within 714 days by a
health visitor

Bigger is
Better

89.0 % 93.3 % 87.8 % 87.6 % 88.8 %

PLEASE NOTE the new data set from Q1 onwards can not be directly compared to the
previous 2017/2018 data reported. This is due to a misinterpretation of the denominator
required to calculate the indicators. We have worked with GCS to identify the issue and
are currently resolving it. This will ensure that data reported nationally and locally are
aligned.  This narrative supports the data for all four indicators including the break down
by level of need indicators: Universal (PH96i), Universal Partnership (PH96ii) and Universal
partnership plus (PH96iii).

For Q1 from 1,377 eligible babies all but 2 received this mandated check but some (34 U,
5 UPP and 2 UP) were outside of the 714 day timeframe and the two not receiving the
check were a universal parent who declined and 1 UPP baby still in NICU.

% of live births to universal
families that receive a face
to face New Birth Visit
within 7 14 days by a
Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

? 93.8 % 88.5 % 88.1 % 90.5 %

% of live births to universal
plus families that receive a
face to face New Birth Visit
within 7 14 days by a
Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

? 89.6 % 85.3 % 84.4 % 71.6 %

% live births to universal
partnership plus families
that receive a face to face
New Birth Visit within 7 14
days by a Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

? 89.0 % 78.1 % 81.0 % 71.7 %

% of eligible children in Reception who participate in
the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 94.4 % 96.0 % 98.0 % 95.0 %

% of eligible children in Year 6 who participate in the
National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 95.0 % 93.6 % 97.5 % 95.0 %

Rate of new STI diagnosis in sexual health services
(excluding under 25 Chlamydia)

Smaller is
Better

? ? 514.0 600.0

**Updated data is not available this qtr.** Data shown is annual data for
2017 and the indicator is updated annually. The rate of new STI
diagnoses in the county is significantly below the national average. A
high diagnosis rate can be indicative of a high burden of infection.

Number of adults receiving
alcohol brief interventions

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 543 798 1,256 389 853 250

Proportion of all Opiate
Users in treatment, who
successfully completed
treatment and did not
represent within 6 months
of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

9.2 % 7.7 % 5.6 % 4.6 % 4.1 % 3.8 %

The provider Change Grow Live ( CGL) through their senior
management team are
•    Following the first year of the contract, appropriate targets have been
set for 2018/19
•    Meeting with all staff regularly to look at barriers to success weekly to
assist their senior  leadership team with monitoring 
•    Monitoring Successful completions and representations  weekly
across the county and with individual team members ,teams and hubs.
There is a good uptake and attendance of groups and workshops across
the county  1369 group attendances in the last quarter. Increased
uptake of those coming into and accessing treatment.  86 services users
successfully completing treatment and now being supported by CGL and
subcontracted partners in their continued recovery at the end of the last
reporting quarter

Proportion of all Non
Opiate Users in treatment,
who successfully
completed treatment and
did not represent within 6
months of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

41.8 35.6 31.0 22.8 21.0 21.0

The provider Change Grow Live ( CGL) through their senior
management team are
•    Following the first year of the contract, appropriate targets have been
set for 2018/19 
•    Meeting with all staff regularly to look at barriers to success weekly to
assist their senior  leadership team with monitoring
•    Monitoring Successful completions and representations  weekly
across the county and with individual team members ,teams and hubs.
There is a good uptake and attendance of groups and workshops across
the county  1369 group attendances in the last quarter. Increased
uptake of those coming into and accessing treatment.  86 services users
successfully completing treatment and now being supported by CGL and
subcontracted partners in their continued recovery at the end of the last
reporting quarter

Effective engagement rate
of Opiate Users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

93.0 % 93.0 % 95.0 % 94.3 % 95.5 % 85.0 %

Effective engagement rate
of NonOpiate users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

76.0 % 78.0 % 75.0 % 75.7 % 76.3 % 55.0 %

Proportion of adult alcohol
misusers who have left
treatment successfully

Bigger is
Better

47.0 % 41.3 % 34.7 % 29.3 % 27.7 % 27.0 %

The provider Change Grow Live ( CGL) through their senior
management team are
•    Following the first year of the contract, appropriate targets have been
set for 2018/19
•    Meeting with all staff regularly to look at barriers to success weekly to
assist their senior  leadership team with monitoring
•    Monitoring Successful completions and representations  weekly
across the county and with individual team members ,teams and hubs.
There is a good uptake and attendance of groups and workshops across
the county  1369 group attendances in the last quarter. Increased
uptake of those coming into and accessing treatment.  86 services users
successfully completing treatment and now being supported by CGL and
subcontracted partners in their continued recovery at the end of the last
reporting quarter

Percentage of clients
waiting under 3 weeks for
drug treatment intervention

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

98.0 % 99.6 % 99.3 % 98.5 % 100.0 % 90.0 %

Percentage of clients
waiting under 3 weeks for
alcohol treatment
intervention

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

97.0 % 100.0 % 99.2 % 97.8 % 100.0 % 90.0 %

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

NHS Health Checks  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

Children's Public Health  Quarterly Trend Analysis No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Comments Jun18

Children's Public Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target  Calendar Year
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Dec15 Dec16 Dec17
Target Dec
17

Comments Dec17

Sexual Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Sep16 Sep17 Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18
Target Jun
18

Comments Jun18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18
Target Jun
18

Comments Jun18

3

P
age 49

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col12')


Children's Public Health  Quarterly Trend Analysis No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Comments Jun18

Number of Healthy
Lifestyles customers
demonstrating a significant
improvement in their
mental wellbeing score

Bigger is
Better

158 226 197 131 81

There has been a drop in the number and percentage of customers seeing a significant
improvement in their mental wellbeing score since last quarter  81 (47%) in Q2 compared
to 131 (62%) in Q1.

N.B  this is a subset of those people receiving support from the service as not everyone
agrees for their wellbeing to be measured

Improving mental wellbeing is not a primary function of the service. However, we included
this as an indicator to monitor what, if any, impact a lifestyle change intervention by the
service could have on mental wellbeing.

There are a number of things that impact on someone's mental wellbeing so it is difficult
to disaggregate the impact that the service can have from external influences. However,
we will track this indicator to gain more insight on the wider impact the service can have
outwith its primary function.

However the data show that a significant number of those accessing the service to improve
lifestyle behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.
81/173 (47%) saw a significant improvement
33 (19%) showed some improvement
37 (21%) remaining the same.
22 (13%) got worse

So in total 114/173 (66%) experienced some improvement in their mental health
compared to 22 (13%) that experienced a drop in their score. This demonstrates that
although the services prime objective is to improve physical health it can also positively
impact on the overall wellbeing of service users.

% of Healthy Lifestyles
customers demonstrating a
significant improvement in
their mental wellbeing
score

Bigger is
Better

82.0 % 77.0 % 69.0 % 62.0 % 47.0 %

There has been a drop in the number and percentage of customers seeing a significant
improvement in their mental wellbeing score since last quarter  81 (47%) in Q2 compared
to 131 (62%) in Q1.

N.B  this is a subset of those people receiving support from the service as not everyone
agrees for their wellbeing to be measured

Improving mental wellbeing is not a primary function of the service. However, we included
this as an indicator to monitor what, if any, impact a lifestyle change intervention by the
service could have on mental wellbeing.

There are a number of things that impact on someone's mental wellbeing so it is difficult
to disaggregate the impact that the service can have from external influences. However,
we will track this indicator to gain more insight on the wider impact the service can have
outwith its primary function.

However the data show that a significant number of those accessing the service to improve
lifestyle behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.
81/173 (47%) saw a significant improvement
33 (19%) showed some improvement
37 (21%) remaining the same.
22 (13%) got worse

So in total 114/173 (66%) experienced some improvement in their mental health
compared to 22 (13%) that experienced a drop in their score. This demonstrates that
although the services prime objective is to improve physical health it can also positively
impact on the overall wellbeing of service users.

% of all Healthy Lifestyles
customers who achieve a
significant risk factor
improvement

Bigger is
Better

71.0 % 69.0 % 83.0 % 73.0 % 76.0 %

High numbers of service users continue to make behaviour changes that will impact on
their health with 852 / 1125 (76%) of users achieving a significant improvement.    Service
users are contacted within 2 days, see the same coach throughout their programme and
coaches are trained in motivational interviewing and see people at a place that is
convenient to them.   I believe that this approach increases the likelihood of a positive
outcome.

Of the 273 that did not meet the threshold for significant improvement 189 (17%) made
some improvement in achieving their behaviour change goal.

Percentage of uptake of
health checks

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

59.7 % 64.6 % 61.2 % 66.6 % ? ?

Unfortunately, Q2 performance data for NHS Health Checks has been
delayed. This is due to the introduction of a new clinical audit tool for
primary care which has caused issues with extracting the data from GP
providers. The Q2 data will be entered retrospectively when the issues
are resolved.

% of children who received
a 1 year check by 1 year

Bigger is
Better

56.0 % 79.0 % 78.6 % 78.1 % 82.1 %

PLEASE NOTE the new data set from Q1 onwards can not be directly compared to the
previous 2017/2018 data reported. This is due to a misinterpretation of the denominator
required to calculate the indicators. We have worked with GCS to identify the issue and
are currently resolving it. This will ensure that data reported nationally and locally are
aligned. This narrative supports the data for all four indicators including the break down by
level of need indicators: Universal (PH97i), Universal Partnership (PH97ii) and Universal
partnership plus (PH97iii).

The purpose of the 912 month developmental review is to assess a child is developing
appropriately for their age. As a universal service the review is offered to all families and
the service aims to review all children by age 912months but the review continues to be a
valid assessment of development up to aged 15 months. Reviews completed outside of
the 12 months time frame may be due to the specific needs of the child. For example, a
number of children requiring Universal partnership plus ( UPP) have complex needs and
Health visitors are delivering priority activity to them or they are accessing other services.
These children may not require the routine check for delayed development. For Q1 18/19
the % of children who received a 12 month review within timeframe (12 months) and out
of time frame (by 15 months) is reported as Universal (Within time: 87.3%/ outside time:
87.3%), Universal Partnership (Within time: 67.5%/ outside time: 91.7%) and Universal
partnership plus (Within time: 75.8%/ outside time: 92.7%). The 7.3% of UPP children that
do not receive a 1 year check by a Health visitors equates to approximately 1 child, this
will be for legitimate reasons such as the child still being in special care and under a
paediatric consultant.  Q1 reflects some delays in delivering universal mandated checks
within timeframe due to prioritising increased safeguarding demand. Public Health are
working closely with GCS, the CCG and Children's Services to improve safeguarding
pathways and identify resource to reduce demand on the PHN service

If a family identified for UP or UPP does not attend review, they are engaged by the service 
and followed up with an opportunistic visit to ensure the review takes place even if its out 
of the 12 month timeframe. If other known agencies or organisations are involved, the 
service would communicate with them to identify any concerns or a change of details.  As 
a further safeguard all children in families receiving the UPP and UP service are discussed 
by Health Visitors at a monthly extended allocation meeting.

% of infants being
breastfed at 68 weeks
(breastfeeding prevalence)

Bigger is
Better

Rolling Year 48.4 % 49.2 % 53.0 % 51.6 % 53.6 %

Q1 18/19 rate of 53.6%  continues the improvement trend from 17/18 but remains below
the local aim of 58%.  GCC continues to commission a revised Breastfeeding Peer
Support service targeting areas with lower rates of uptake and increased numbers of
younger mums than the Gloucestershire average. BFPS offer support in the more deprived
wards of Gloucester, Cheltenham and the Forest of Dean.  Further initiatives contributing
to increasing Breastfeeding rates are facilitated by the Gloucestershire Infant Feeding
Strategic partnership led by GCC.

% live births that receive a
face to face New Birth Visit
within 714 days by a
health visitor

Bigger is
Better

89.0 % 93.3 % 87.8 % 87.6 % 88.8 %

PLEASE NOTE the new data set from Q1 onwards can not be directly compared to the
previous 2017/2018 data reported. This is due to a misinterpretation of the denominator
required to calculate the indicators. We have worked with GCS to identify the issue and
are currently resolving it. This will ensure that data reported nationally and locally are
aligned.  This narrative supports the data for all four indicators including the break down
by level of need indicators: Universal (PH96i), Universal Partnership (PH96ii) and Universal
partnership plus (PH96iii).

For Q1 from 1,377 eligible babies all but 2 received this mandated check but some (34 U,
5 UPP and 2 UP) were outside of the 714 day timeframe and the two not receiving the
check were a universal parent who declined and 1 UPP baby still in NICU.

% of live births to universal
families that receive a face
to face New Birth Visit
within 7 14 days by a
Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

? 93.8 % 88.5 % 88.1 % 90.5 %

% of live births to universal
plus families that receive a
face to face New Birth Visit
within 7 14 days by a
Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

? 89.6 % 85.3 % 84.4 % 71.6 %

% live births to universal
partnership plus families
that receive a face to face
New Birth Visit within 7 14
days by a Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

? 89.0 % 78.1 % 81.0 % 71.7 %

% of eligible children in Reception who participate in
the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 94.4 % 96.0 % 98.0 % 95.0 %

% of eligible children in Year 6 who participate in the
National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 95.0 % 93.6 % 97.5 % 95.0 %

Rate of new STI diagnosis in sexual health services
(excluding under 25 Chlamydia)

Smaller is
Better

? ? 514.0 600.0

**Updated data is not available this qtr.** Data shown is annual data for
2017 and the indicator is updated annually. The rate of new STI
diagnoses in the county is significantly below the national average. A
high diagnosis rate can be indicative of a high burden of infection.

Number of adults receiving
alcohol brief interventions

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 543 798 1,256 389 853 250

Proportion of all Opiate
Users in treatment, who
successfully completed
treatment and did not
represent within 6 months
of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

9.2 % 7.7 % 5.6 % 4.6 % 4.1 % 3.8 %

The provider Change Grow Live ( CGL) through their senior
management team are
•    Following the first year of the contract, appropriate targets have been
set for 2018/19
•    Meeting with all staff regularly to look at barriers to success weekly to
assist their senior  leadership team with monitoring 
•    Monitoring Successful completions and representations  weekly
across the county and with individual team members ,teams and hubs.
There is a good uptake and attendance of groups and workshops across
the county  1369 group attendances in the last quarter. Increased
uptake of those coming into and accessing treatment.  86 services users
successfully completing treatment and now being supported by CGL and
subcontracted partners in their continued recovery at the end of the last
reporting quarter

Proportion of all Non
Opiate Users in treatment,
who successfully
completed treatment and
did not represent within 6
months of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

41.8 35.6 31.0 22.8 21.0 21.0

The provider Change Grow Live ( CGL) through their senior
management team are
•    Following the first year of the contract, appropriate targets have been
set for 2018/19 
•    Meeting with all staff regularly to look at barriers to success weekly to
assist their senior  leadership team with monitoring
•    Monitoring Successful completions and representations  weekly
across the county and with individual team members ,teams and hubs.
There is a good uptake and attendance of groups and workshops across
the county  1369 group attendances in the last quarter. Increased
uptake of those coming into and accessing treatment.  86 services users
successfully completing treatment and now being supported by CGL and
subcontracted partners in their continued recovery at the end of the last
reporting quarter

Effective engagement rate
of Opiate Users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

93.0 % 93.0 % 95.0 % 94.3 % 95.5 % 85.0 %

Effective engagement rate
of NonOpiate users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

76.0 % 78.0 % 75.0 % 75.7 % 76.3 % 55.0 %

Proportion of adult alcohol
misusers who have left
treatment successfully

Bigger is
Better

47.0 % 41.3 % 34.7 % 29.3 % 27.7 % 27.0 %

The provider Change Grow Live ( CGL) through their senior
management team are
•    Following the first year of the contract, appropriate targets have been
set for 2018/19
•    Meeting with all staff regularly to look at barriers to success weekly to
assist their senior  leadership team with monitoring
•    Monitoring Successful completions and representations  weekly
across the county and with individual team members ,teams and hubs.
There is a good uptake and attendance of groups and workshops across
the county  1369 group attendances in the last quarter. Increased
uptake of those coming into and accessing treatment.  86 services users
successfully completing treatment and now being supported by CGL and
subcontracted partners in their continued recovery at the end of the last
reporting quarter

Percentage of clients
waiting under 3 weeks for
drug treatment intervention

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

98.0 % 99.6 % 99.3 % 98.5 % 100.0 % 90.0 %

Percentage of clients
waiting under 3 weeks for
alcohol treatment
intervention

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

97.0 % 100.0 % 99.2 % 97.8 % 100.0 % 90.0 %

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

NHS Health Checks  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

Children's Public Health  Quarterly Trend Analysis No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Comments Jun18

Children's Public Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target  Calendar Year
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Dec15 Dec16 Dec17
Target Dec
17

Comments Dec17

Sexual Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Sep16 Sep17 Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18
Target Jun
18

Comments Jun18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18
Target Jun
18

Comments Jun18

4

P
age 50

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col14')


Number of Healthy
Lifestyles customers
demonstrating a significant
improvement in their
mental wellbeing score

Bigger is
Better

158 226 197 131 81

There has been a drop in the number and percentage of customers seeing a significant
improvement in their mental wellbeing score since last quarter  81 (47%) in Q2 compared
to 131 (62%) in Q1.

N.B  this is a subset of those people receiving support from the service as not everyone
agrees for their wellbeing to be measured

Improving mental wellbeing is not a primary function of the service. However, we included
this as an indicator to monitor what, if any, impact a lifestyle change intervention by the
service could have on mental wellbeing.

There are a number of things that impact on someone's mental wellbeing so it is difficult
to disaggregate the impact that the service can have from external influences. However,
we will track this indicator to gain more insight on the wider impact the service can have
outwith its primary function.

However the data show that a significant number of those accessing the service to improve
lifestyle behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.
81/173 (47%) saw a significant improvement
33 (19%) showed some improvement
37 (21%) remaining the same.
22 (13%) got worse

So in total 114/173 (66%) experienced some improvement in their mental health
compared to 22 (13%) that experienced a drop in their score. This demonstrates that
although the services prime objective is to improve physical health it can also positively
impact on the overall wellbeing of service users.

% of Healthy Lifestyles
customers demonstrating a
significant improvement in
their mental wellbeing
score

Bigger is
Better

82.0 % 77.0 % 69.0 % 62.0 % 47.0 %

There has been a drop in the number and percentage of customers seeing a significant
improvement in their mental wellbeing score since last quarter  81 (47%) in Q2 compared
to 131 (62%) in Q1.

N.B  this is a subset of those people receiving support from the service as not everyone
agrees for their wellbeing to be measured

Improving mental wellbeing is not a primary function of the service. However, we included
this as an indicator to monitor what, if any, impact a lifestyle change intervention by the
service could have on mental wellbeing.

There are a number of things that impact on someone's mental wellbeing so it is difficult
to disaggregate the impact that the service can have from external influences. However,
we will track this indicator to gain more insight on the wider impact the service can have
outwith its primary function.

However the data show that a significant number of those accessing the service to improve
lifestyle behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.
81/173 (47%) saw a significant improvement
33 (19%) showed some improvement
37 (21%) remaining the same.
22 (13%) got worse

So in total 114/173 (66%) experienced some improvement in their mental health
compared to 22 (13%) that experienced a drop in their score. This demonstrates that
although the services prime objective is to improve physical health it can also positively
impact on the overall wellbeing of service users.

% of all Healthy Lifestyles
customers who achieve a
significant risk factor
improvement

Bigger is
Better

71.0 % 69.0 % 83.0 % 73.0 % 76.0 %

High numbers of service users continue to make behaviour changes that will impact on
their health with 852 / 1125 (76%) of users achieving a significant improvement.    Service
users are contacted within 2 days, see the same coach throughout their programme and
coaches are trained in motivational interviewing and see people at a place that is
convenient to them.   I believe that this approach increases the likelihood of a positive
outcome.

Of the 273 that did not meet the threshold for significant improvement 189 (17%) made
some improvement in achieving their behaviour change goal.

Percentage of uptake of
health checks

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

59.7 % 64.6 % 61.2 % 66.6 % ? ?

Unfortunately, Q2 performance data for NHS Health Checks has been
delayed. This is due to the introduction of a new clinical audit tool for
primary care which has caused issues with extracting the data from GP
providers. The Q2 data will be entered retrospectively when the issues
are resolved.

% of children who received
a 1 year check by 1 year

Bigger is
Better

56.0 % 79.0 % 78.6 % 78.1 % 82.1 %

PLEASE NOTE the new data set from Q1 onwards can not be directly compared to the
previous 2017/2018 data reported. This is due to a misinterpretation of the denominator
required to calculate the indicators. We have worked with GCS to identify the issue and
are currently resolving it. This will ensure that data reported nationally and locally are
aligned. This narrative supports the data for all four indicators including the break down by
level of need indicators: Universal (PH97i), Universal Partnership (PH97ii) and Universal
partnership plus (PH97iii).

The purpose of the 912 month developmental review is to assess a child is developing
appropriately for their age. As a universal service the review is offered to all families and
the service aims to review all children by age 912months but the review continues to be a
valid assessment of development up to aged 15 months. Reviews completed outside of
the 12 months time frame may be due to the specific needs of the child. For example, a
number of children requiring Universal partnership plus ( UPP) have complex needs and
Health visitors are delivering priority activity to them or they are accessing other services.
These children may not require the routine check for delayed development. For Q1 18/19
the % of children who received a 12 month review within timeframe (12 months) and out
of time frame (by 15 months) is reported as Universal (Within time: 87.3%/ outside time:
87.3%), Universal Partnership (Within time: 67.5%/ outside time: 91.7%) and Universal
partnership plus (Within time: 75.8%/ outside time: 92.7%). The 7.3% of UPP children that
do not receive a 1 year check by a Health visitors equates to approximately 1 child, this
will be for legitimate reasons such as the child still being in special care and under a
paediatric consultant.  Q1 reflects some delays in delivering universal mandated checks
within timeframe due to prioritising increased safeguarding demand. Public Health are
working closely with GCS, the CCG and Children's Services to improve safeguarding
pathways and identify resource to reduce demand on the PHN service

If a family identified for UP or UPP does not attend review, they are engaged by the service 
and followed up with an opportunistic visit to ensure the review takes place even if its out 
of the 12 month timeframe. If other known agencies or organisations are involved, the 
service would communicate with them to identify any concerns or a change of details.  As 
a further safeguard all children in families receiving the UPP and UP service are discussed 
by Health Visitors at a monthly extended allocation meeting.

% of infants being
breastfed at 68 weeks
(breastfeeding prevalence)

Bigger is
Better

Rolling Year 48.4 % 49.2 % 53.0 % 51.6 % 53.6 %

Q1 18/19 rate of 53.6%  continues the improvement trend from 17/18 but remains below
the local aim of 58%.  GCC continues to commission a revised Breastfeeding Peer
Support service targeting areas with lower rates of uptake and increased numbers of
younger mums than the Gloucestershire average. BFPS offer support in the more deprived
wards of Gloucester, Cheltenham and the Forest of Dean.  Further initiatives contributing
to increasing Breastfeeding rates are facilitated by the Gloucestershire Infant Feeding
Strategic partnership led by GCC.

% live births that receive a
face to face New Birth Visit
within 714 days by a
health visitor

Bigger is
Better

89.0 % 93.3 % 87.8 % 87.6 % 88.8 %

PLEASE NOTE the new data set from Q1 onwards can not be directly compared to the
previous 2017/2018 data reported. This is due to a misinterpretation of the denominator
required to calculate the indicators. We have worked with GCS to identify the issue and
are currently resolving it. This will ensure that data reported nationally and locally are
aligned.  This narrative supports the data for all four indicators including the break down
by level of need indicators: Universal (PH96i), Universal Partnership (PH96ii) and Universal
partnership plus (PH96iii).

For Q1 from 1,377 eligible babies all but 2 received this mandated check but some (34 U,
5 UPP and 2 UP) were outside of the 714 day timeframe and the two not receiving the
check were a universal parent who declined and 1 UPP baby still in NICU.

% of live births to universal
families that receive a face
to face New Birth Visit
within 7 14 days by a
Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

? 93.8 % 88.5 % 88.1 % 90.5 %

% of live births to universal
plus families that receive a
face to face New Birth Visit
within 7 14 days by a
Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

? 89.6 % 85.3 % 84.4 % 71.6 %

% live births to universal
partnership plus families
that receive a face to face
New Birth Visit within 7 14
days by a Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

? 89.0 % 78.1 % 81.0 % 71.7 %

% of eligible children in Reception who participate in
the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 94.4 % 96.0 % 98.0 % 95.0 %

% of eligible children in Year 6 who participate in the
National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 95.0 % 93.6 % 97.5 % 95.0 %

Rate of new STI diagnosis in sexual health services
(excluding under 25 Chlamydia)

Smaller is
Better

? ? 514.0 600.0

**Updated data is not available this qtr.** Data shown is annual data for
2017 and the indicator is updated annually. The rate of new STI
diagnoses in the county is significantly below the national average. A
high diagnosis rate can be indicative of a high burden of infection.

Number of adults receiving
alcohol brief interventions

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 543 798 1,256 389 853 250

Proportion of all Opiate
Users in treatment, who
successfully completed
treatment and did not
represent within 6 months
of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

9.2 % 7.7 % 5.6 % 4.6 % 4.1 % 3.8 %

The provider Change Grow Live ( CGL) through their senior
management team are
•    Following the first year of the contract, appropriate targets have been
set for 2018/19
•    Meeting with all staff regularly to look at barriers to success weekly to
assist their senior  leadership team with monitoring 
•    Monitoring Successful completions and representations  weekly
across the county and with individual team members ,teams and hubs.
There is a good uptake and attendance of groups and workshops across
the county  1369 group attendances in the last quarter. Increased
uptake of those coming into and accessing treatment.  86 services users
successfully completing treatment and now being supported by CGL and
subcontracted partners in their continued recovery at the end of the last
reporting quarter

Proportion of all Non
Opiate Users in treatment,
who successfully
completed treatment and
did not represent within 6
months of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

41.8 35.6 31.0 22.8 21.0 21.0

The provider Change Grow Live ( CGL) through their senior
management team are
•    Following the first year of the contract, appropriate targets have been
set for 2018/19 
•    Meeting with all staff regularly to look at barriers to success weekly to
assist their senior  leadership team with monitoring
•    Monitoring Successful completions and representations  weekly
across the county and with individual team members ,teams and hubs.
There is a good uptake and attendance of groups and workshops across
the county  1369 group attendances in the last quarter. Increased
uptake of those coming into and accessing treatment.  86 services users
successfully completing treatment and now being supported by CGL and
subcontracted partners in their continued recovery at the end of the last
reporting quarter

Effective engagement rate
of Opiate Users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

93.0 % 93.0 % 95.0 % 94.3 % 95.5 % 85.0 %

Effective engagement rate
of NonOpiate users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

76.0 % 78.0 % 75.0 % 75.7 % 76.3 % 55.0 %

Proportion of adult alcohol
misusers who have left
treatment successfully

Bigger is
Better

47.0 % 41.3 % 34.7 % 29.3 % 27.7 % 27.0 %

The provider Change Grow Live ( CGL) through their senior
management team are
•    Following the first year of the contract, appropriate targets have been
set for 2018/19
•    Meeting with all staff regularly to look at barriers to success weekly to
assist their senior  leadership team with monitoring
•    Monitoring Successful completions and representations  weekly
across the county and with individual team members ,teams and hubs.
There is a good uptake and attendance of groups and workshops across
the county  1369 group attendances in the last quarter. Increased
uptake of those coming into and accessing treatment.  86 services users
successfully completing treatment and now being supported by CGL and
subcontracted partners in their continued recovery at the end of the last
reporting quarter

Percentage of clients
waiting under 3 weeks for
drug treatment intervention

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

98.0 % 99.6 % 99.3 % 98.5 % 100.0 % 90.0 %

Percentage of clients
waiting under 3 weeks for
alcohol treatment
intervention

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

97.0 % 100.0 % 99.2 % 97.8 % 100.0 % 90.0 %

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

NHS Health Checks  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

Children's Public Health  Quarterly Trend Analysis No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Comments Jun18

Children's Public Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target  Calendar Year
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Dec15 Dec16 Dec17
Target Dec
17

Comments Dec17

Sexual Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Sep16 Sep17 Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18
Target Jun
18

Comments Jun18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18
Target Jun
18

Comments Jun18 5

P
age 51

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col18')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col24')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col19')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col20')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col21')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col22')


Number of Healthy
Lifestyles customers
demonstrating a significant
improvement in their
mental wellbeing score

Bigger is
Better

158 226 197 131 81

There has been a drop in the number and percentage of customers seeing a significant
improvement in their mental wellbeing score since last quarter  81 (47%) in Q2 compared
to 131 (62%) in Q1.

N.B  this is a subset of those people receiving support from the service as not everyone
agrees for their wellbeing to be measured

Improving mental wellbeing is not a primary function of the service. However, we included
this as an indicator to monitor what, if any, impact a lifestyle change intervention by the
service could have on mental wellbeing.

There are a number of things that impact on someone's mental wellbeing so it is difficult
to disaggregate the impact that the service can have from external influences. However,
we will track this indicator to gain more insight on the wider impact the service can have
outwith its primary function.

However the data show that a significant number of those accessing the service to improve
lifestyle behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.
81/173 (47%) saw a significant improvement
33 (19%) showed some improvement
37 (21%) remaining the same.
22 (13%) got worse

So in total 114/173 (66%) experienced some improvement in their mental health
compared to 22 (13%) that experienced a drop in their score. This demonstrates that
although the services prime objective is to improve physical health it can also positively
impact on the overall wellbeing of service users.

% of Healthy Lifestyles
customers demonstrating a
significant improvement in
their mental wellbeing
score

Bigger is
Better

82.0 % 77.0 % 69.0 % 62.0 % 47.0 %

There has been a drop in the number and percentage of customers seeing a significant
improvement in their mental wellbeing score since last quarter  81 (47%) in Q2 compared
to 131 (62%) in Q1.

N.B  this is a subset of those people receiving support from the service as not everyone
agrees for their wellbeing to be measured

Improving mental wellbeing is not a primary function of the service. However, we included
this as an indicator to monitor what, if any, impact a lifestyle change intervention by the
service could have on mental wellbeing.

There are a number of things that impact on someone's mental wellbeing so it is difficult
to disaggregate the impact that the service can have from external influences. However,
we will track this indicator to gain more insight on the wider impact the service can have
outwith its primary function.

However the data show that a significant number of those accessing the service to improve
lifestyle behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.
81/173 (47%) saw a significant improvement
33 (19%) showed some improvement
37 (21%) remaining the same.
22 (13%) got worse

So in total 114/173 (66%) experienced some improvement in their mental health
compared to 22 (13%) that experienced a drop in their score. This demonstrates that
although the services prime objective is to improve physical health it can also positively
impact on the overall wellbeing of service users.

% of all Healthy Lifestyles
customers who achieve a
significant risk factor
improvement

Bigger is
Better

71.0 % 69.0 % 83.0 % 73.0 % 76.0 %

High numbers of service users continue to make behaviour changes that will impact on
their health with 852 / 1125 (76%) of users achieving a significant improvement.    Service
users are contacted within 2 days, see the same coach throughout their programme and
coaches are trained in motivational interviewing and see people at a place that is
convenient to them.   I believe that this approach increases the likelihood of a positive
outcome.

Of the 273 that did not meet the threshold for significant improvement 189 (17%) made
some improvement in achieving their behaviour change goal.

Percentage of uptake of
health checks

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

59.7 % 64.6 % 61.2 % 66.6 % ? ?

Unfortunately, Q2 performance data for NHS Health Checks has been
delayed. This is due to the introduction of a new clinical audit tool for
primary care which has caused issues with extracting the data from GP
providers. The Q2 data will be entered retrospectively when the issues
are resolved.

% of children who received
a 1 year check by 1 year

Bigger is
Better

56.0 % 79.0 % 78.6 % 78.1 % 82.1 %

PLEASE NOTE the new data set from Q1 onwards can not be directly compared to the
previous 2017/2018 data reported. This is due to a misinterpretation of the denominator
required to calculate the indicators. We have worked with GCS to identify the issue and
are currently resolving it. This will ensure that data reported nationally and locally are
aligned. This narrative supports the data for all four indicators including the break down by
level of need indicators: Universal (PH97i), Universal Partnership (PH97ii) and Universal
partnership plus (PH97iii).

The purpose of the 912 month developmental review is to assess a child is developing
appropriately for their age. As a universal service the review is offered to all families and
the service aims to review all children by age 912months but the review continues to be a
valid assessment of development up to aged 15 months. Reviews completed outside of
the 12 months time frame may be due to the specific needs of the child. For example, a
number of children requiring Universal partnership plus ( UPP) have complex needs and
Health visitors are delivering priority activity to them or they are accessing other services.
These children may not require the routine check for delayed development. For Q1 18/19
the % of children who received a 12 month review within timeframe (12 months) and out
of time frame (by 15 months) is reported as Universal (Within time: 87.3%/ outside time:
87.3%), Universal Partnership (Within time: 67.5%/ outside time: 91.7%) and Universal
partnership plus (Within time: 75.8%/ outside time: 92.7%). The 7.3% of UPP children that
do not receive a 1 year check by a Health visitors equates to approximately 1 child, this
will be for legitimate reasons such as the child still being in special care and under a
paediatric consultant.  Q1 reflects some delays in delivering universal mandated checks
within timeframe due to prioritising increased safeguarding demand. Public Health are
working closely with GCS, the CCG and Children's Services to improve safeguarding
pathways and identify resource to reduce demand on the PHN service

If a family identified for UP or UPP does not attend review, they are engaged by the service 
and followed up with an opportunistic visit to ensure the review takes place even if its out 
of the 12 month timeframe. If other known agencies or organisations are involved, the 
service would communicate with them to identify any concerns or a change of details.  As 
a further safeguard all children in families receiving the UPP and UP service are discussed 
by Health Visitors at a monthly extended allocation meeting.

% of infants being
breastfed at 68 weeks
(breastfeeding prevalence)

Bigger is
Better

Rolling Year 48.4 % 49.2 % 53.0 % 51.6 % 53.6 %

Q1 18/19 rate of 53.6%  continues the improvement trend from 17/18 but remains below
the local aim of 58%.  GCC continues to commission a revised Breastfeeding Peer
Support service targeting areas with lower rates of uptake and increased numbers of
younger mums than the Gloucestershire average. BFPS offer support in the more deprived
wards of Gloucester, Cheltenham and the Forest of Dean.  Further initiatives contributing
to increasing Breastfeeding rates are facilitated by the Gloucestershire Infant Feeding
Strategic partnership led by GCC.

% live births that receive a
face to face New Birth Visit
within 714 days by a
health visitor

Bigger is
Better

89.0 % 93.3 % 87.8 % 87.6 % 88.8 %

PLEASE NOTE the new data set from Q1 onwards can not be directly compared to the
previous 2017/2018 data reported. This is due to a misinterpretation of the denominator
required to calculate the indicators. We have worked with GCS to identify the issue and
are currently resolving it. This will ensure that data reported nationally and locally are
aligned.  This narrative supports the data for all four indicators including the break down
by level of need indicators: Universal (PH96i), Universal Partnership (PH96ii) and Universal
partnership plus (PH96iii).

For Q1 from 1,377 eligible babies all but 2 received this mandated check but some (34 U,
5 UPP and 2 UP) were outside of the 714 day timeframe and the two not receiving the
check were a universal parent who declined and 1 UPP baby still in NICU.

% of live births to universal
families that receive a face
to face New Birth Visit
within 7 14 days by a
Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

? 93.8 % 88.5 % 88.1 % 90.5 %

% of live births to universal
plus families that receive a
face to face New Birth Visit
within 7 14 days by a
Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

? 89.6 % 85.3 % 84.4 % 71.6 %

% live births to universal
partnership plus families
that receive a face to face
New Birth Visit within 7 14
days by a Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

? 89.0 % 78.1 % 81.0 % 71.7 %

% of eligible children in Reception who participate in
the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 94.4 % 96.0 % 98.0 % 95.0 %

% of eligible children in Year 6 who participate in the
National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 95.0 % 93.6 % 97.5 % 95.0 %

Rate of new STI diagnosis in sexual health services
(excluding under 25 Chlamydia)

Smaller is
Better

? ? 514.0 600.0

**Updated data is not available this qtr.** Data shown is annual data for
2017 and the indicator is updated annually. The rate of new STI
diagnoses in the county is significantly below the national average. A
high diagnosis rate can be indicative of a high burden of infection.

Number of adults receiving
alcohol brief interventions

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 543 798 1,256 389 853 250

Proportion of all Opiate
Users in treatment, who
successfully completed
treatment and did not
represent within 6 months
of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

9.2 % 7.7 % 5.6 % 4.6 % 4.1 % 3.8 %

The provider Change Grow Live ( CGL) through their senior
management team are
•    Following the first year of the contract, appropriate targets have been
set for 2018/19
•    Meeting with all staff regularly to look at barriers to success weekly to
assist their senior  leadership team with monitoring 
•    Monitoring Successful completions and representations  weekly
across the county and with individual team members ,teams and hubs.
There is a good uptake and attendance of groups and workshops across
the county  1369 group attendances in the last quarter. Increased
uptake of those coming into and accessing treatment.  86 services users
successfully completing treatment and now being supported by CGL and
subcontracted partners in their continued recovery at the end of the last
reporting quarter

Proportion of all Non
Opiate Users in treatment,
who successfully
completed treatment and
did not represent within 6
months of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

41.8 35.6 31.0 22.8 21.0 21.0

The provider Change Grow Live ( CGL) through their senior
management team are
•    Following the first year of the contract, appropriate targets have been
set for 2018/19 
•    Meeting with all staff regularly to look at barriers to success weekly to
assist their senior  leadership team with monitoring
•    Monitoring Successful completions and representations  weekly
across the county and with individual team members ,teams and hubs.
There is a good uptake and attendance of groups and workshops across
the county  1369 group attendances in the last quarter. Increased
uptake of those coming into and accessing treatment.  86 services users
successfully completing treatment and now being supported by CGL and
subcontracted partners in their continued recovery at the end of the last
reporting quarter

Effective engagement rate
of Opiate Users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

93.0 % 93.0 % 95.0 % 94.3 % 95.5 % 85.0 %

Effective engagement rate
of NonOpiate users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

76.0 % 78.0 % 75.0 % 75.7 % 76.3 % 55.0 %

Proportion of adult alcohol
misusers who have left
treatment successfully

Bigger is
Better

47.0 % 41.3 % 34.7 % 29.3 % 27.7 % 27.0 %

The provider Change Grow Live ( CGL) through their senior
management team are
•    Following the first year of the contract, appropriate targets have been
set for 2018/19
•    Meeting with all staff regularly to look at barriers to success weekly to
assist their senior  leadership team with monitoring
•    Monitoring Successful completions and representations  weekly
across the county and with individual team members ,teams and hubs.
There is a good uptake and attendance of groups and workshops across
the county  1369 group attendances in the last quarter. Increased
uptake of those coming into and accessing treatment.  86 services users
successfully completing treatment and now being supported by CGL and
subcontracted partners in their continued recovery at the end of the last
reporting quarter

Percentage of clients
waiting under 3 weeks for
drug treatment intervention

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

98.0 % 99.6 % 99.3 % 98.5 % 100.0 % 90.0 %

Percentage of clients
waiting under 3 weeks for
alcohol treatment
intervention

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

97.0 % 100.0 % 99.2 % 97.8 % 100.0 % 90.0 %

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

NHS Health Checks  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

Children's Public Health  Quarterly Trend Analysis No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Comments Jun18

Children's Public Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target  Calendar Year
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Dec15 Dec16 Dec17
Target Dec
17

Comments Dec17

Sexual Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Sep16 Sep17 Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18
Target Jun
18

Comments Jun18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18
Target Jun
18

Comments Jun18

6

P
age 52

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col18')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col24')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col19')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col20')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col21')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col22')


Health & Care Overview & Scrutiny Scorecard
Quarter 2 Reporting 2018/19

The following scorecards are enclosed:

This report has been prepared by the Performance & Improvement Team using data up to 30/09/2018

Page No.
Key to Symbols 2
Adult Social Care Performance 3
Strategic Risk Register Summary 6

1

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 6

javascript:app.OpenBookmark(1,2243,true,null,null,false,'','');


Risk Impact/Consequence

Likelihood 1
Insignificant

2
Minor

3
Moderate

4
Major

5
Critical

Almost
certain
(5)

5 10 15 20 25

Likely
(4) 4 8 12 16 20

Probable
(3) 3 6 9 12 15

Possible
(2) 2 4 6 8 10

Rare
(1) 1 2 3 4 5

Level of
Risk

Score

Low 1  6
Moderate 7 – 12
High 13 – 25

Performance better than tolerance

Performance within tolerance

Performance worse than tolerance

No information

Missing target

No value

Value Increasing (Smaller is Better)

Value Decreasing (Smaller is Better)

Value Increasing (Bigger is Better)

Value Decreasing (Bigger is Better)

No change

Bigger is better A bigger value for this measure is good

Smaller is
better

A smaller value for this measure is good

Plan is best Where it is best for performance to be on target rather than above or below

Reporting Basis

Year to Date Performance accumulated over the year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12 month
period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in time

Forecast Predicted position at the end of the year

Key to Symbols

Key to Symbols  Risk

Risk Rating
(calculated by multiplying the Impact with

the Likelihood of each risk)

The Gloucestershire Risk Matrix

2

P
age 54



Adult Social Care Performance

Selfdirected Support

Cllr Kathy Williams
Cllr Roger Wilson

ASCOF 1C pt1 Social care clients receiving self
directed support

Bigger is Better Snapshot 82.7 % 97.7 % 97.5 % 97.0 % 96.6 % 94.9 % 90.0 %

ASCOF 1C pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 95.3 % 94.8 % 94.6 % 97.7 % 98.6 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 96.1 % 95.7 % 94.9 % 93.9 % 90.1 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 98.9 % 98.7 % 98.5 % 98.0 % 97.6 %

ASCOF 1C pt2 People in receipt of direct payments Bigger is Better Snapshot 30.3 % 34.0 % 34.2 % 32.9 % 32.3 % 31.7 % 32.0 %

ASCOF 1C pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 19.8 % 19.2 % 16.0 % 17.4 % 15.5 %
ASCOF 1C Pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 17.3 % 17.3 % 17.0 % 17.2 % 16.7 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 28.9 % 29.3 % 28.2 % 27.3 % 26.7 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 62.9 % 63.6 % 62.9 % 61.7 % 62.1 %

ASCOF 1C(1B): Proportion of carers receiving selfdirected
support

Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 % 14.2 % 23.2 %

ASCOF 1C(2B): Proportion of carers receiving direct payments
for support direct to carer.

Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 % 13.7 % 8.8 %

LPIAS323 % of carers with flexible budgets (following
assessment)

Bigger is Better Annual 48.0 % 43.4 % 12.2 % 3.5 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Target Sep18 Comments Sep18

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Target Sep18 Comments Sep18

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments 2017/18

Employment & Settled Accommodation

LPIAS322 Adults with learning disabilities in
employment (Local Definition)

Bigger is Better Monthly n/a 17.6 % 18.1 % 18.9 % 19.2 % 19.3 % 15.0 %

ASCOF 1F Adults (aged 1869) receiving secondary
mental health services in employment

Bigger is Better Quarterly 9.4 % 15.0 % 17.0 % 16.0 % 18.0 % 16.0 % 13.0 %

ASCOF 1H Adults (18  69) contact with secondary
mental health services in settled accommodation

Bigger is Better Quarterly 55.0 % 88.0 % 88.0 % 96.0 % 87.0 % 87.0 % 80.0 %

ASCOF 1G Adults with learning disabilities in settled
accommodation

Bigger is Better Monthly 73.3 % 77.3 % 77.5 % 77.4 % 77.6 % 77.8 % 75.0 %

ASCOF 1E Adults with Learning Disabilities in Employment Bigger is Better Annual 6.5 % 8.7 % 6.8 % 6.4 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Target Sep
18

Comments Sep/18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments

Reablement & Preventative

BOC1 Number of Reablement/Enablement Services Bigger is Better Snapshot 343 363 347 378 366
BOC5 Number of Other care services (i.e Preventative) Bigger is Better Snapshot 449 462 493 468 330

ASCOF 2B pt1 Proportion of older people
still at home 91 days after discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 82.1 % 74.7 % 81.4 % 81.8 % 79.5 %

ASCOF 2B pt2 Proportion of people aged
65+ offered reablement services after
hospital discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 2.2 % 3.0 % 3.4 % 2.9 % 2.2 %

ASCOF 2D % of new clients receiving a
lower level or no ongoing support after a
short term service

Bigger is Better Annual 82.8 % 90.2 % 89.2 % 90.1 % 89.6 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 17/18

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments 2017/18

Admissions & Transfers

ASCOF 2A pt1 Permanent admissions 1864 to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 15.20 10.89 10.62 9.80 11.98 11.66 12.00

ASCOF 2A pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 0.82 1.36 0.82 1.36 1.36
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 3.27 2.72 2.18 2.72 2.17
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 6.81 6.54 6.81 7.90 8.13

ASCOF 2A pt2 Permanent admissions aged 65+ to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 555.90 477.54 492.20 513.80 499.91 427.34 550.00

ASCOF 2A pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 2.31 3.86 3.86 3.86 3.78
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Older People Smaller is Better Rolling Year 475.22 488.34 509.94 496.05 423.56

ASCOF 2C pt 2 Delayed transfers of care from hospital
due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 5.50 2.95 4.07 4.32 4.61 4.39

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Target Sep18 Comments Sep18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Target Sep18 Comments Sep18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (In Arrears)
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Comments Jun18

Long Term Care

LCT1 Total number of Community Care Clients Plan is Best Snapshot 3,377 3,323 3,335 3,340 3,190
LCT2 Total number of Residential Care Clients Smaller is Better Snapshot 1,382 1,358 1,291 1,299 1,259
LCT3 Total number of Nursing Care Clients Smaller is Better Snapshot 670 647 624 632 604
ASC16a % of service users who have been asked at their last
assessment whether they have carer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 %

ASC16b % of carers identified who were then offered a carers
assessment

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC16c % of carers offered a carers assessment who accepted the
offer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC1% of ongoing service users who have had a full reassessment of
their needs in the last 12months

Bigger is Better Snapshot 77.2 % 73.8 % 70.7 % 65.6 % 59.2 % 80.0 %

ASC1b  2Gether Bigger is Better Snapshot 96.3 % 97.2 % 95.4 % 96.7 % 96.8 % 95.0 %

ASC1b  LD Bigger is Better Snapshot 91.0 % 86.6 % 81.9 % 76.2 % 69.8 % 80.0 %

ASC1b  OP Bigger is Better Snapshot 66.9 % 63.2 % 60.6 % 55.4 % 48.1 % 70.0 %

ASC1b  PD Bigger is Better Snapshot 74.0 % 70.0 % 66.5 % 61.6 % 54.5 % 80.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Target Sep18 Comments Sep18

Safeguarding Adults

CDS SAR01 No. of Safeguarding adults concerns raised Bigger is Better Year to Date 460 346 425 528 524
GSAB1a Total  Advice Line Calls Bigger is Better Year to Date 854 842 954 1,181 1,061
CDS SAR02 No. of concerns that led to a safeguarding (S42) Care Act
enquiry

Smaller is Better Year to Date 153 153 192 313 255

GSAB5a % of total concerns leading to Section 42 enquiries Smaller is Better Year to Date 33.3 % 44.2 % 45.2 % 59.3 % 48.7 %
GSAB6a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk was
removed

Bigger is Better Year to Date 30.0 % 29.0 % 40.0 % 45.8 % 37.8 %

GSAB7a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk was
reduced

Bigger is Better Year to Date 44.0 % 50.0 % 43.0 % 41.9 % 43.6 %

GSAB8a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk
remains

Smaller is Better Year to Date 9.0 % 11.0 % 12.0 % 11.8 % 15.4 %

GSAB8b % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where no risk
identified

Bigger is Better Year to Date 16.0 % 10.0 % 5.0 % 0.5 % 3.3 %

GSAB8c % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk not
recorded

Bigger is Better Year to Date 0.5 % 0.4 % 0.8 % 0.0 % 0.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Annual Survey

ASCOF 1A Social care reported quality of life Bigger is Better Annual 19.2 19.3 19.4 19.7 19.1
ASCOF 1B The proportion of those using services who
have control over their daily lives

Bigger is Better Annual 78.1 % 78.0 % 79.2 % 81.9 % 77.5 %

ASCOF 1I1 % of people who use services reporting they
had as much social contact as they would like

Bigger is Better Annual 46.3 % 47.2 % 48.2 % 52.8 % 49.2 %

ASCOF 3A Overall satisfaction of people who use services Bigger is Better Annual 66.4 % 66.9 % 65.7 % 69.0 % 63.5 %
ASCOF 3D1 The proportion of people who find it easy to
find information about services

Bigger is Better Annual 72.8 % 77.3 % 77.3 % 80.1 % 74.4 %

ASCOF 4A Proportion of people who use services who feel
safe

Bigger is Better Annual 71.0 % 67.7 % 71.4 % 75.0 % 70.9 %

ASCOF 4B Proportion of people using services saying
those services have made them feel safe & secure

Bigger is Better Annual 86.6 % 90.9 % 91.1 % 93.4 % 91.7 %

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 17/18

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments 2017/18

3

P
age 55

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col6')


Adult Social Care Performance

Selfdirected Support

Cllr Kathy Williams
Cllr Roger Wilson

ASCOF 1C pt1 Social care clients receiving self
directed support

Bigger is Better Snapshot 82.7 % 97.7 % 97.5 % 97.0 % 96.6 % 94.9 % 90.0 %

ASCOF 1C pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 95.3 % 94.8 % 94.6 % 97.7 % 98.6 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 96.1 % 95.7 % 94.9 % 93.9 % 90.1 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 98.9 % 98.7 % 98.5 % 98.0 % 97.6 %

ASCOF 1C pt2 People in receipt of direct payments Bigger is Better Snapshot 30.3 % 34.0 % 34.2 % 32.9 % 32.3 % 31.7 % 32.0 %

ASCOF 1C pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 19.8 % 19.2 % 16.0 % 17.4 % 15.5 %
ASCOF 1C Pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 17.3 % 17.3 % 17.0 % 17.2 % 16.7 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 28.9 % 29.3 % 28.2 % 27.3 % 26.7 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 62.9 % 63.6 % 62.9 % 61.7 % 62.1 %

ASCOF 1C(1B): Proportion of carers receiving selfdirected
support

Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 % 14.2 % 23.2 %

ASCOF 1C(2B): Proportion of carers receiving direct payments
for support direct to carer.

Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 % 13.7 % 8.8 %

LPIAS323 % of carers with flexible budgets (following
assessment)

Bigger is Better Annual 48.0 % 43.4 % 12.2 % 3.5 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Target Sep18 Comments Sep18

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Target Sep18 Comments Sep18

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments 2017/18

Employment & Settled Accommodation

LPIAS322 Adults with learning disabilities in
employment (Local Definition)

Bigger is Better Monthly n/a 17.6 % 18.1 % 18.9 % 19.2 % 19.3 % 15.0 %

ASCOF 1F Adults (aged 1869) receiving secondary
mental health services in employment

Bigger is Better Quarterly 9.4 % 15.0 % 17.0 % 16.0 % 18.0 % 16.0 % 13.0 %

ASCOF 1H Adults (18  69) contact with secondary
mental health services in settled accommodation

Bigger is Better Quarterly 55.0 % 88.0 % 88.0 % 96.0 % 87.0 % 87.0 % 80.0 %

ASCOF 1G Adults with learning disabilities in settled
accommodation

Bigger is Better Monthly 73.3 % 77.3 % 77.5 % 77.4 % 77.6 % 77.8 % 75.0 %

ASCOF 1E Adults with Learning Disabilities in Employment Bigger is Better Annual 6.5 % 8.7 % 6.8 % 6.4 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Target Sep
18

Comments Sep/18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments

Reablement & Preventative

BOC1 Number of Reablement/Enablement Services Bigger is Better Snapshot 343 363 347 378 366
BOC5 Number of Other care services (i.e Preventative) Bigger is Better Snapshot 449 462 493 468 330

ASCOF 2B pt1 Proportion of older people
still at home 91 days after discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 82.1 % 74.7 % 81.4 % 81.8 % 79.5 %

ASCOF 2B pt2 Proportion of people aged
65+ offered reablement services after
hospital discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 2.2 % 3.0 % 3.4 % 2.9 % 2.2 %

ASCOF 2D % of new clients receiving a
lower level or no ongoing support after a
short term service

Bigger is Better Annual 82.8 % 90.2 % 89.2 % 90.1 % 89.6 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 17/18

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments 2017/18

Admissions & Transfers

ASCOF 2A pt1 Permanent admissions 1864 to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 15.20 10.89 10.62 9.80 11.98 11.66 12.00

ASCOF 2A pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 0.82 1.36 0.82 1.36 1.36
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 3.27 2.72 2.18 2.72 2.17
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 6.81 6.54 6.81 7.90 8.13

ASCOF 2A pt2 Permanent admissions aged 65+ to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 555.90 477.54 492.20 513.80 499.91 427.34 550.00

ASCOF 2A pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 2.31 3.86 3.86 3.86 3.78
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Older People Smaller is Better Rolling Year 475.22 488.34 509.94 496.05 423.56

ASCOF 2C pt 2 Delayed transfers of care from hospital
due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 5.50 2.95 4.07 4.32 4.61 4.39

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Target Sep18 Comments Sep18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Target Sep18 Comments Sep18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (In Arrears)
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Comments Jun18

Long Term Care

LCT1 Total number of Community Care Clients Plan is Best Snapshot 3,377 3,323 3,335 3,340 3,190
LCT2 Total number of Residential Care Clients Smaller is Better Snapshot 1,382 1,358 1,291 1,299 1,259
LCT3 Total number of Nursing Care Clients Smaller is Better Snapshot 670 647 624 632 604
ASC16a % of service users who have been asked at their last
assessment whether they have carer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 %

ASC16b % of carers identified who were then offered a carers
assessment

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC16c % of carers offered a carers assessment who accepted the
offer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC1% of ongoing service users who have had a full reassessment of
their needs in the last 12months

Bigger is Better Snapshot 77.2 % 73.8 % 70.7 % 65.6 % 59.2 % 80.0 %

ASC1b  2Gether Bigger is Better Snapshot 96.3 % 97.2 % 95.4 % 96.7 % 96.8 % 95.0 %

ASC1b  LD Bigger is Better Snapshot 91.0 % 86.6 % 81.9 % 76.2 % 69.8 % 80.0 %

ASC1b  OP Bigger is Better Snapshot 66.9 % 63.2 % 60.6 % 55.4 % 48.1 % 70.0 %

ASC1b  PD Bigger is Better Snapshot 74.0 % 70.0 % 66.5 % 61.6 % 54.5 % 80.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Target Sep18 Comments Sep18

Safeguarding Adults

CDS SAR01 No. of Safeguarding adults concerns raised Bigger is Better Year to Date 460 346 425 528 524
GSAB1a Total  Advice Line Calls Bigger is Better Year to Date 854 842 954 1,181 1,061
CDS SAR02 No. of concerns that led to a safeguarding (S42) Care Act
enquiry

Smaller is Better Year to Date 153 153 192 313 255

GSAB5a % of total concerns leading to Section 42 enquiries Smaller is Better Year to Date 33.3 % 44.2 % 45.2 % 59.3 % 48.7 %
GSAB6a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk was
removed

Bigger is Better Year to Date 30.0 % 29.0 % 40.0 % 45.8 % 37.8 %

GSAB7a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk was
reduced

Bigger is Better Year to Date 44.0 % 50.0 % 43.0 % 41.9 % 43.6 %

GSAB8a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk
remains

Smaller is Better Year to Date 9.0 % 11.0 % 12.0 % 11.8 % 15.4 %

GSAB8b % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where no risk
identified

Bigger is Better Year to Date 16.0 % 10.0 % 5.0 % 0.5 % 3.3 %

GSAB8c % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk not
recorded

Bigger is Better Year to Date 0.5 % 0.4 % 0.8 % 0.0 % 0.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Annual Survey

ASCOF 1A Social care reported quality of life Bigger is Better Annual 19.2 19.3 19.4 19.7 19.1
ASCOF 1B The proportion of those using services who
have control over their daily lives

Bigger is Better Annual 78.1 % 78.0 % 79.2 % 81.9 % 77.5 %

ASCOF 1I1 % of people who use services reporting they
had as much social contact as they would like

Bigger is Better Annual 46.3 % 47.2 % 48.2 % 52.8 % 49.2 %

ASCOF 3A Overall satisfaction of people who use services Bigger is Better Annual 66.4 % 66.9 % 65.7 % 69.0 % 63.5 %
ASCOF 3D1 The proportion of people who find it easy to
find information about services

Bigger is Better Annual 72.8 % 77.3 % 77.3 % 80.1 % 74.4 %

ASCOF 4A Proportion of people who use services who feel
safe

Bigger is Better Annual 71.0 % 67.7 % 71.4 % 75.0 % 70.9 %

ASCOF 4B Proportion of people using services saying
those services have made them feel safe & secure

Bigger is Better Annual 86.6 % 90.9 % 91.1 % 93.4 % 91.7 %

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 17/18

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments 2017/18

4

P
age 56

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col19')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col20')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col21')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col22')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col23')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col24')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col25')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col26')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col29')


Adult Social Care Performance

Selfdirected Support

Cllr Kathy Williams
Cllr Roger Wilson

ASCOF 1C pt1 Social care clients receiving self
directed support

Bigger is Better Snapshot 82.7 % 97.7 % 97.5 % 97.0 % 96.6 % 94.9 % 90.0 %

ASCOF 1C pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 95.3 % 94.8 % 94.6 % 97.7 % 98.6 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 96.1 % 95.7 % 94.9 % 93.9 % 90.1 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 98.9 % 98.7 % 98.5 % 98.0 % 97.6 %

ASCOF 1C pt2 People in receipt of direct payments Bigger is Better Snapshot 30.3 % 34.0 % 34.2 % 32.9 % 32.3 % 31.7 % 32.0 %

ASCOF 1C pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 19.8 % 19.2 % 16.0 % 17.4 % 15.5 %
ASCOF 1C Pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 17.3 % 17.3 % 17.0 % 17.2 % 16.7 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 28.9 % 29.3 % 28.2 % 27.3 % 26.7 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 62.9 % 63.6 % 62.9 % 61.7 % 62.1 %

ASCOF 1C(1B): Proportion of carers receiving selfdirected
support

Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 % 14.2 % 23.2 %

ASCOF 1C(2B): Proportion of carers receiving direct payments
for support direct to carer.

Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 % 13.7 % 8.8 %

LPIAS323 % of carers with flexible budgets (following
assessment)

Bigger is Better Annual 48.0 % 43.4 % 12.2 % 3.5 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Target Sep18 Comments Sep18

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Target Sep18 Comments Sep18

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments 2017/18

Employment & Settled Accommodation

LPIAS322 Adults with learning disabilities in
employment (Local Definition)

Bigger is Better Monthly n/a 17.6 % 18.1 % 18.9 % 19.2 % 19.3 % 15.0 %

ASCOF 1F Adults (aged 1869) receiving secondary
mental health services in employment

Bigger is Better Quarterly 9.4 % 15.0 % 17.0 % 16.0 % 18.0 % 16.0 % 13.0 %

ASCOF 1H Adults (18  69) contact with secondary
mental health services in settled accommodation

Bigger is Better Quarterly 55.0 % 88.0 % 88.0 % 96.0 % 87.0 % 87.0 % 80.0 %

ASCOF 1G Adults with learning disabilities in settled
accommodation

Bigger is Better Monthly 73.3 % 77.3 % 77.5 % 77.4 % 77.6 % 77.8 % 75.0 %

ASCOF 1E Adults with Learning Disabilities in Employment Bigger is Better Annual 6.5 % 8.7 % 6.8 % 6.4 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Target Sep
18

Comments Sep/18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments

Reablement & Preventative

BOC1 Number of Reablement/Enablement Services Bigger is Better Snapshot 343 363 347 378 366
BOC5 Number of Other care services (i.e Preventative) Bigger is Better Snapshot 449 462 493 468 330

ASCOF 2B pt1 Proportion of older people
still at home 91 days after discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 82.1 % 74.7 % 81.4 % 81.8 % 79.5 %

ASCOF 2B pt2 Proportion of people aged
65+ offered reablement services after
hospital discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 2.2 % 3.0 % 3.4 % 2.9 % 2.2 %

ASCOF 2D % of new clients receiving a
lower level or no ongoing support after a
short term service

Bigger is Better Annual 82.8 % 90.2 % 89.2 % 90.1 % 89.6 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 17/18

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments 2017/18

Admissions & Transfers

ASCOF 2A pt1 Permanent admissions 1864 to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 15.20 10.89 10.62 9.80 11.98 11.66 12.00

ASCOF 2A pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 0.82 1.36 0.82 1.36 1.36
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 3.27 2.72 2.18 2.72 2.17
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 6.81 6.54 6.81 7.90 8.13

ASCOF 2A pt2 Permanent admissions aged 65+ to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 555.90 477.54 492.20 513.80 499.91 427.34 550.00

ASCOF 2A pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 2.31 3.86 3.86 3.86 3.78
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Older People Smaller is Better Rolling Year 475.22 488.34 509.94 496.05 423.56

ASCOF 2C pt 2 Delayed transfers of care from hospital
due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 5.50 2.95 4.07 4.32 4.61 4.39

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Target Sep18 Comments Sep18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Target Sep18 Comments Sep18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (In Arrears)
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Jun17 Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Comments Jun18

Long Term Care

LCT1 Total number of Community Care Clients Plan is Best Snapshot 3,377 3,323 3,335 3,340 3,190
LCT2 Total number of Residential Care Clients Smaller is Better Snapshot 1,382 1,358 1,291 1,299 1,259
LCT3 Total number of Nursing Care Clients Smaller is Better Snapshot 670 647 624 632 604
ASC16a % of service users who have been asked at their last
assessment whether they have carer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 %

ASC16b % of carers identified who were then offered a carers
assessment

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC16c % of carers offered a carers assessment who accepted the
offer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC1% of ongoing service users who have had a full reassessment of
their needs in the last 12months

Bigger is Better Snapshot 77.2 % 73.8 % 70.7 % 65.6 % 59.2 % 80.0 %

ASC1b  2Gether Bigger is Better Snapshot 96.3 % 97.2 % 95.4 % 96.7 % 96.8 % 95.0 %

ASC1b  LD Bigger is Better Snapshot 91.0 % 86.6 % 81.9 % 76.2 % 69.8 % 80.0 %

ASC1b  OP Bigger is Better Snapshot 66.9 % 63.2 % 60.6 % 55.4 % 48.1 % 70.0 %

ASC1b  PD Bigger is Better Snapshot 74.0 % 70.0 % 66.5 % 61.6 % 54.5 % 80.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Target Sep18 Comments Sep18

Safeguarding Adults

CDS SAR01 No. of Safeguarding adults concerns raised Bigger is Better Year to Date 460 346 425 528 524
GSAB1a Total  Advice Line Calls Bigger is Better Year to Date 854 842 954 1,181 1,061
CDS SAR02 No. of concerns that led to a safeguarding (S42) Care Act
enquiry

Smaller is Better Year to Date 153 153 192 313 255

GSAB5a % of total concerns leading to Section 42 enquiries Smaller is Better Year to Date 33.3 % 44.2 % 45.2 % 59.3 % 48.7 %
GSAB6a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk was
removed

Bigger is Better Year to Date 30.0 % 29.0 % 40.0 % 45.8 % 37.8 %

GSAB7a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk was
reduced

Bigger is Better Year to Date 44.0 % 50.0 % 43.0 % 41.9 % 43.6 %

GSAB8a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk
remains

Smaller is Better Year to Date 9.0 % 11.0 % 12.0 % 11.8 % 15.4 %

GSAB8b % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where no risk
identified

Bigger is Better Year to Date 16.0 % 10.0 % 5.0 % 0.5 % 3.3 %

GSAB8c % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk not
recorded

Bigger is Better Year to Date 0.5 % 0.4 % 0.8 % 0.0 % 0.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Annual Survey

ASCOF 1A Social care reported quality of life Bigger is Better Annual 19.2 19.3 19.4 19.7 19.1
ASCOF 1B The proportion of those using services who
have control over their daily lives

Bigger is Better Annual 78.1 % 78.0 % 79.2 % 81.9 % 77.5 %

ASCOF 1I1 % of people who use services reporting they
had as much social contact as they would like

Bigger is Better Annual 46.3 % 47.2 % 48.2 % 52.8 % 49.2 %

ASCOF 3A Overall satisfaction of people who use services Bigger is Better Annual 66.4 % 66.9 % 65.7 % 69.0 % 63.5 %
ASCOF 3D1 The proportion of people who find it easy to
find information about services

Bigger is Better Annual 72.8 % 77.3 % 77.3 % 80.1 % 74.4 %

ASCOF 4A Proportion of people who use services who feel
safe

Bigger is Better Annual 71.0 % 67.7 % 71.4 % 75.0 % 70.9 %

ASCOF 4B Proportion of people using services saying
those services have made them feel safe & secure

Bigger is Better Annual 86.6 % 90.9 % 91.1 % 93.4 % 91.7 %

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 17/18

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments 2017/18

5

P
age 57

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col6')


Strategic Risk Summary  Adult Social Care

SR7.1
Failure to protect vulnerable adults in Gloucestershire from abuse
neglect in situations that potentially could have been predicted
and prevented.

Willcox, Margaret High 20 High 15 High 15 Moderate 10 Moderate 10

SR7.6

Unable to support all those who can, to live independently at
home, because demand for home care services outstrips
available capacity, resulting in us relying on temporary
respite/alternative bed based care, in lieu of homecare.

Willcox, Margaret High 20 ? ? High 15 High 15

Strategic Risk 7: Safeguarding Children & Young People and Adults
Ref. Risk Owner Inherent Risk Residual Risk

Dec17
Residual Risk
Mar18

Residual Risk
Jun18

Residual Risk
Sep18

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions for High or Changed Residual Risks

6

P
age 58

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col13')


1 

 Gloucestershire Health and Care 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
CCG Performance Report  

November 2018  

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 7



2 

Report Title 

  

Gloucestershire CCG Performance report  

Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee – November 2018 

Purpose of Report 

  

  

The performance framework report provides the Committee with an overview of Gloucestershire 

CCG performance against the ‘in year’ organisational objectives 2018/19.   

A full summary of performance against all national and local standards as reported to GCCG 

Governing Body is included, with supporting narrative to inform members of key system actions to 

support  continued performance or mitigating actions to give assurance where performance is below 

target or there is outlying variation across the county. 

 

Is this for information 

or decision? 

  

This Report is for information. 

Authors 

  

Kat Doherty, Performance Manager, GCCG 

  

Key Issues:   

• A&E performance at GHFT achieved Q2 local performance trajectory of >90%. 

• National standards for Category 1 ambulance responses achieved for last 2 months in Gloucestershire. 

• Focus on system flow and demand and capacity work ahead of winter to support performance. 

• Cancer target performance for 62 day treatment challenges continue as long standing work force issues are addressed in 

key specialties. 

• Continued good performance in access and recovery for low level psychological therapies (Improving access to 

Psychological Therapies (IAPT) programme). 

 

Recommendations to the Committee:  

We recommend that this report be noted. 

Financial/Resource Implications:  

Financial implications considered in provider contracts.  

P
age 60



Contents 

 

1.0 Scorecard    

 

2.0 Executive Summary  

 2.1 Leadership 

 2.2 Better Care 

 2.3 Sustainability 

 2.4 Better Health 

 

  

3.0 Better Care 

 3.1 Constitution updates  

 reported by exception 

 

 

This document is a highlight report which is presented to give the CCG Governing Body an overview of 

current CCG and provider performance across a range of national priorities and local standards.  

Whilst inevitably this report focuses on areas of concern it should be noted that Gloucestershire is currently 

achieving the majority of the local and national performance standards.  

3 

P
age 61



1.0 Scorecard: CCG Performance Overview 

Better Health 
Good 

Better Care 
Requires Improvement 

Leadership 
Good 

Sustainability 
Good 

CCG Improvement and 
Assessment Framework 

4 

P
age 62



2.1 Executive Summary – Leadership 

This domain assesses the quality of the CCG’s leadership, the quality of its plans, how the 
CCG works with its partners, and the governance arrangements that the CCG has in place to 
ensure it acts with probity, for example in managing conflicts of interest.  
 

2.1.1 Staff engagement : Robust culture and Leadership Sustainability (Organisational 
Development Plan) 
 

2.1.2 Probity and Corporate Governance:  Full governance compliance 

2.1.3 Effectiveness of working relationships in the local system: Effectiveness of working 
relationships in the local system  
 

2.1.4 

 
Quality of CCG leadership:  Review of the effectiveness of culture, leadership 
sustainability and an oversight of quality assurance.   

5 

Green 

P
age 63



2.2 Executive Summary – Better Care 

This domain focuses on care redesign, performance of constitutional 
standards, and outcomes, including in important clinical areas. 
 

Overall  

Rating 

2.2.1 Planned Care 
 

2.2.2 Unscheduled Care 

2.2.23 Cancer   
 

2.2.4 Mental Health   
 

2.2.4 

 
Learning disability   

2.2.5 

 
Maternity   
 6 

Amber 

P
age 64



2.3 Executive Summary - Sustainability 

This domain looks at how the CCG is remaining in financial balance, and is 
securing good value for patients and the public from the money it spends  
 

Rating 

2.3.1 Year to date surplus variance to plan (%) 

2.3.2 Forecast surplus to plan (% variance) 

2.3.3 Forecast running costs in comparison to running cost allocation (%) 

2.3.4 

 

Forecast savings delivery in comparison to plan (%) 

2.3.5 

 

Year to date BPPC performance in comparison to 95% target (%) 

2.3.6 

 

Cash drawdown in line with planned profile (%) 

2.3.7 Forecast capital spend in comparison to plan (%) 

 

7 

Green 

P
age 65



2.4 Executive Summary – Better Health (1 of 2) 

This section looks at how the CCG is 
contributing towards improving the health 
and wellbeing of its population, and bending 
the demand curve. 

Current CCG Performance 

Period National Glos 

CCG 

What is good? Trend 

2.4.

1 
Smoking:  Maternal smoking at delivery: The 

percentage of women who were smokers at the 

time of delivery, out of the number of maternities  

Q1 

18/19 

10.8% 11.2% Low % 

2.4.

2 
Child Obesity: Number of children in Year 6 

(aged 10-11 years) classified as overweight or 

obese in the National Child Measurement 

Programme (NCMP) attending participating 

state maintained schools in England as a 

proportion of all children measured.  

2016/ 

2017 

34.2% 31.1% Low % 

2.4.

3 
Diabetes:  Three (HbA1c, cholesterol and 

blood pressure) for adults and one (HbA1c) for 

children: The percentage of diabetes patients 

that have achieved all 3 of the NICE-

recommended treatment targets 

2016/ 

2017 

39.7% 36.4% High % 

2.4.

4 

 

Falls: Age-sex standardised rate of emergency 

hospital admissions for injuries due to falls in 

persons aged 65+ per 100,000 population  

2016/ 

2017 

2114 1747 Low rate 

2.4.

5 
Personalisation and choice:  Indicators 

relating to utilisation of NHS e-referral service to 

enable choice at first routine elective referral. 

June 

2018 

69% 66% 
 

High % 

These indicators show the latest known position from available data 

8 

Green 

P
age 66



2.4 Executive Summary – Better Health (2 of 2) 

This section looks at how the CCG is 
contributing towards improving the health 
and wellbeing of its population, and 
bending the demand curve. 

Current CCG Performance 

Period National  Glos CCG What is Good? Local Trend 

2.4.6 Personal health budgets Per 

100k population 

Q4 

17/18 
48 378 High rate 

2.4.7 Percentage of deaths which 

take place in hospital 

2017/ 

2018 
45.9% 39.6% Low % 

2.4.8 People with a long-term 

condition feeling supported to 

manage their condition(s). 

 2017/ 

2018 
59.6% 64.1% High % 

2.4.9 Health inequalities: Inequality in 

avoidable emergency admissions  for 

chronic ambulatory care sensitive 

conditions 

Q3 

17/18 
1992.07 1889.33 

Low rate 

 

2.4.10 Health inequalities: Inequality in 

avoidable emergency admissions  for 

urgent care sensitive conditions 

Q2 

17/18 
2000 2012 

Low rate 

 

2.4.11 Appropriate prescribing:  
Prescribing of broad spectrum 

antibiotics in primary care (co-

amoxiclav, cephalosporins, and 

quinolones as a percentage of total 

antibiotics prescribed) 

12 

month

s to 

June 

2018 

8.7% 9.3% <10% 

2.4.12 Carers:  Quality of life of carers 
  

2016-

2017 
7.7 7.4 N/A 

No data 

 

Green 

NB: 2.4.9 metric methodology has been updated so cannot be compared to earlier report versions; 2.4.10 is no longer updated in the IAF framework so will be removed. 

P
age 67



Cancer 

Dashboard 

(YTD - to 

August 2018) 

(CCG) 

2 Week 
Waits 

2 Week 
Waits Breast 

31 Day Waits 31 Day Waits 
Surgery  

88.3% 92.5% 

31 Day Waits 
Drugs  

31 Day Waits 
Radiotherapy 

62 Day GP 
Referral 

62 Day  
Screening 

62 Day  
Upgrade 

94.3% 96.6% 100% 99.6% 76.4% 99.1% 84.3% 

Planned 

Care 

(CCG)  

Referral To Treatment (RTT) 
Incomplete  <18 weeks 

 

Diagnostics >6 
weeks 

September 18 

Diagnostics >6 
weeks 

YEAR TO DATE 

1.01% 1.5% 

3.0 Better Care:  

National Reporting Suspended 

10 

Unscheduled 

Care  

(CCG) 

4 Hour A&E  
Sept 18 

4 Hour A&E   
YEAR TO DATE 

Category 1 
Ambulance 

September 18  

Category 1 Ambulance 
YEAR TO DATE * 

(Gloucestershire) 

89.0% 91.2% 6.8 mins 7.8 mins 

Delayed Transfers of 

Care (DToC) 

September 18 

3.88% 

Amber 

P
age 68



3.1 System Overview Unscheduled Care: Pre Hospital 

Out of Hours Attendances 

111 Call Volume 111 Disposition 

Ambulance – Category 1 

11 

P
age 69



3.1 System Overview Unscheduled Care: In Hospital 

A&E 4 hr Performance GHFT average Length of Stay 

GCS average Length of Stay Delayed Transfers of Care 

12 

P
age 70



  

 

 

September A&E performance has 

dropped below the Sustainability 

Transformation Funding (STF) target of 

90% for the first time in 2018/19, 

narrowly missing the target at 89%. 

However, GHFT achieved the STF target 

over Q2 (90.2%).  The YTD position is 

91.2% patients seen and admitted/ 

discharged within 4 hours.   

 

Notably, the % of breaches of the 4 hour 

target attributed to bed availability 

increased in September compared with 

previous months and medically stable 

numbers for September were at 80 

patients per day, the highest seen so far 

this year.  This number has started to 

come down in October (medically stable 

list stands at 61 patients on the 19th 

October), driven by improved system 

flow, and should impact positively on 4 

hour performance. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

3.1 Unscheduled Care – 4 hour A&E  

13 

Top Line Messages: 

Amber 

P
age 71



3.1 Unscheduled Care – 4 hour A&E by site 

14 

Amber 

50.00%

55.00%

60.00%

65.00%

70.00%

75.00%

80.00%

85.00%

90.00%

95.00%

100.00%

April May June July August September October

GHT Performance

CGH Performance

GRH Performance

STF target

Performance shown weekly throughout 2018/19 financial year, split by ED site and Trust wide at GHFT.  

Most recent performance (week ending 28th October) shows GHFT achieved both the STF (90% 

patients treated and discharged/admitted within 4 hours) and national constitutional targets (95% 

patients treated and discharged/admitted within 4 hours). 

P
age 72



Key schemes supporting Unscheduled Care: 

• Acute Floor Model (provision of assessment and ambulatory care settings). 

• Frailty Assessment Service. 

• Provision of advice and guidance service for GPs via Cinapsis. 

• Refinement to Primary Care Streaming model in A&E. 

• System wide planning for winter pressures through the development of the Gloucestershire Integrated Care 

System sustainability plan. 

 

Actions and key updates: 

• Acute floor model now up and running, with an increase in patients admitted to Acute Medical Initial 

Assessment Unit (AMIA), and an increasing % of these patients are seen and discharged within 24 hours.  

• Frailty assessment service - Service is operating from 8am-6pm, 5 days a week.  Remaining posts have 

now been filled and once new staff start this will expand to 8am-8pm, 7 days a week. 

• System winter plan has been well received by NHSE and initial bed modelling is complete.  

• GHFT is piloting new pathways within Trauma & Orthopaedics and Gastroenterology, supported by the 

CCG and HCOSC, to centralise expertise, improve patient outcomes, and support rapid discharge to usual 

place of residence where appropriate. 

• Cinapsis pilot to go live in early winter 2018 (advice for acute medicine with a Tewkesbury and Forest of 

Dean GP practice initially).   

• Primary Care streaming pilot completed - a project board has been established and will be confirming 

findings of the review and next steps.   

• Communications strategy for winter – an agency to support the local winter communications campaign has 

been appointed.   NHS 111 message has begun already online and on air nationally.  Local messages will 

be rolled out from November onwards. 

• Out Of Hours (OOH) continues to see improved shift fill and an improvement in performance (though still 

below target).  The winter plan has been submitted, including a number of different shift incentive initiatives, 

alongside the confirmation of the national GP winter indemnity scheme (which improves shift take up).  

OOH service is also looking to be supported by pharmacy to extend skill mix. 

3.1 Unscheduled Care – 4 hour A&E Key Updates  

15 

Amber 

P
age 73



3.2 Unscheduled Care – Category 1 Ambulance  

 
 

Category 1 performance is the average time 

taken for the first responder or ambulance to 

reach life threatening calls. 

GCCG performance in Category 1 for 

September was 6.9 minutes against the target 

of a 7 minute average response time.   

 

SWAST has now achieved the Category 1 

national target in Gloucestershire for the last 2 

months.  

The year to date position for GCCG is 7.8 

minutes.   

 

SWAST Performance across all geographical 

areas (South West) was 6.8 minutes, also 

achieving the national target (YTD 

performance across South West is 7.6 

minutes). 

 

Across Gloucestershire localities in August, 

mean response time for Category 1 ranged 

from 5.5 minutes (in Cheltenham) to 9.5 

minutes (in the Cotswolds), reflecting rurality 

and time/ distance to travel.   

 

 

 16 

Top Line Messages: 

Green 

P
age 74



3.2 Unscheduled Care – Category 1 Ambulance by district 

17 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18

M
in

u
te

s 

Category 1 response times (average for county and district) 

Average

Cotswold

Stroud

Forest of Dean

Tewkesbury

Cheltenham

Gloucester

Month Cheltenham Cotswold Forest of Dean Gloucester Stroud Tewkesbury Grand Total 

Apr-18 6.9 11.4 10.4 6.7 10.2 9.3 8.7 

May-18 6.6 12.8 8.6 6.2 10.5 8.1 8.3 

Jun-18 7.0 12.0 10.1 6.4 8.6 8.1 8.0 

Jul-18 5.9 11.6 10.8 5.4 8.8 8.4 7.5 

Aug-18 5.5 9.5 8.2 5.7 8.0 6.3 6.7 

Sep-18 5.5 9.9 9.5 5.5 8.4 7.3 7.0 

P
age 75



 

18 

3.2 Unscheduled Care – Category 1 Ambulance  

Ambulance Response Programme 

A joint plan jointly owned by South West commissioners and SWAST aims to deliver improved performance 

through demand management and service efficiency, including: 

• Increased clinical validation of Category 3 and Category 4 calls to 80%.  

• Falls prevention programme and falls response model. 

• Provision of advice and guidance service via Cinapsis. 

• Review of Directory of Services (DoS). 

• Reduction in handover delays - including a commitment to a reduction in current handover delays of 

50%, and zero tolerance of delays over 30 minutes.   

 

Updates to actions: 

• Small financial contribution is anticipated to support improvement in clinical validation rates and 

identification of the most suitable and effective pathways to focus on. 

• Integrated Better Care Fund (iBCF) funding is being used for additional capacity in Rapid Response 

(RR) to train care homes in direct referral to RR.  This will reduce the use of ambulance services and 

conveyance level to the acute trust.  Training is planned to continue through the winter. 

• Further development of falls deployment model is underway looking at opportunities to work with 

volunteers and housing associations to support non injury fallers. 

• Cinpasis advice and guidance planned for January 2019. 

• New vehicles to SWAST in Gloucestershire will be 33 new capacity, 30 replacement vehicles to replace 

aging fleet.  SWAST has developed a draft business case to support the staffing of the vehicles - this is 

being reviewed by commissioners.  Joint modelling between SWAST and commissioners to confirm the 

most appropriate deployment locations for the new vehicles is underway. 

• Handover delays are within target at Cheltenham General Hospital (CGH), but continue to be above 

target for Gloucester Royal Hospital (GRH) (GRH missed the target in both July and August).  However, 

GHFT as a trust remains one of the best performing trusts in the South West in terms of handover 

delays. 

Green 

P
age 76



3.21 Unscheduled Care – Delayed Transfers of Care 

 
 

19 

Top Line Messages: 
 

 

The GHFT DToC rate is above the 3.5% target 

at 3.88% for September, a slight decrease on 

performance from August’s position of 3.73%.  

This brings GHFT's YTD position to 3.23%. 

 

GCS’s DToC rate for September remained 

below target at 2.3%, their YTD position is 

1.7%. 

 

2Gether Trust’s DToC rate has also remained 

below the 3.5% threshold in Gloucestershire, 

with performance for August at a rate of 2.7%, 

and a YTD position of 1.9% (September data 

not yet available). 

 

GHFT's drop in performance is attributed to a 

rising medically stable list and increased 

demand for adult social care, particularly from 

patients with complex or bariatric needs.  

There have been higher numbers of “long 

stay” patients (patients with a stay of >21 

days) in recent weeks.   

Amber 

P
age 77



20 

3.21 Unscheduled Care – Delayed Transfers of Care 

The Delayed Transfers of Care (DToC) rate has remained slightly above the target of 3.5% in September at 

GHFT to 3.88%.  

A change in calculation methodology, has negatively impacted the DToC rate at GHFT, however the Trust have 

also had a number of complex patients awaiting discharge throughout August and September which has 

challenged performance.  Brokerage continue to work with the provider market to rapidly source appropriate 

placements however there is limited availability of complex beds (e.g. specialist dementia and bariatric) within 

the system contributing to pressure on the performance of the DToC rate.   

 

NHSE have introduced increased scrutiny on long stays within acute trusts, or “stranded and super-stranded” 

patients (whose LoS is over 7 days/ 21 days respectively). 

Gloucestershire’s ambition is to reduce patients staying over 21 days in hospital by 23%, or to 86 beds from a 

baseline of 111.  Current position (at 14th October) is 112, and this is expected to reduce in October as the 

medically stable position improves. CCG have supported improved system flow, working with partners through 

the “10 day plan” at the end of September leading to a reduction in medically stable patients in hospital and an 

improved DToC position. 

 

Key developments this month to support reducing DToCs and stranded patients: 

• All Medically stable patients remaining in GHFT more than 21 days are:  

 Reviewed daily and escalated to the system partnership weekly team if they remain stranded; 

 Those with complex needs are escalated to CCG by partnership team for additional funding or agreement to 

go out of area. 

• Discharge to Assess (D2A) pathway review with audit of every patient in D2A from May to August underway; 

Reablement pathway under review; Non-weight bearing pathway due to be reviewed. 

• Program support recruited to undertake >21 validation daily with senior clinical challenge twice weekly. 

• Additional substantive funding agreed to support brokerage. 

• Additional funding agreed to provide weekend Adult Social Care support in the acute hospital. 

Amber 

P
age 78



3.3 System Overview - Planned Care: 

Referral Trends Diagnostics 

21 

Due to the ongoing issues in relation the electronic Patient Administration System, Referral To 

Treatment (RTT) performance is not currently being reported nationally at GHFT. GHFT expect to 

begin reporting nationally on RTT from February 2019. 

NB – The Electronic Referral System (eRS) only includes all referral activity from 4th June 2018 (paper switch off date), 

Diagnostic performance shown is for GCCG patients at all providers. 

Amber 

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

2018/19 2016/17 2017/18

E-referrals - GP Referred - 2016/17 to 2018/19 (YTD August 2018)  

P
age 79



3.4 Planned Care – Diagnostics >6 weeks 

22 

 

 
CGG Diagnostic performance just missed the 

1% target in September at 1.01%, GHFT 

achieved the >1% target in full in September, 

with just 0.6% patients waiting more than 6 

weeks for a diagnostic test. 

Overall diagnostic performance in September 

has improved from the August position (of the 

CCG at 1.9%, and GHFT at 1.3%).  

There were 80 over 6 week breaches in  

September 2018 of which  39 were at GHFT.  

 

At GHFT the majority of breaches were in 

Colonoscopy.  This is likely due to the impact 

of the Straight To Test (STT) pathway 

implementation for suspected Lower GI 

cancers.  Additional capacity is planned in 

these areas to mitigate the impact of STT, 

with locum specialists due to begin 

imminently.  Performance is expected to 

recover by October at the latest.  

 

There has been a significant improvement in 

performance of Out Of County (OOC) imaging 

services. 

Top Line Messages: 

Amber 

P
age 80



3.5 System Overview Cancer: YTD August 2018 

2WW (GP Ref’d) 2WW (Breast) 

23 

Amber 

P
age 81



3.5 System Overview Cancer: YTD August 2018 

31 day  31 day subsequent treatm’t: Surgery 

24 

31 day subsequent treatm’t: Drugs 
31 day subsequent treatm’t: 

Radiotherapy 

Green 

P
age 82



3.5 System Overview Cancer: YTD August 2018 

62 day: Consultant Upgrade 

62 day: GP referral 62 day: Screening 

25 

Red 

P
age 83



3.6 Cancer – 2 week waits 

 

2 week wait performance has dipped slightly 

to 89% (seen within 2 weeks of referral) in 

August due in particular to suspected Lower 

GI, Upper GI, and skin breaches.  This 

position remains an improvement on 2017/18, 

with a YTD position of 88.3% (against the 

2017/18 outrun of 82.7%).   

 

GHFT have achieved the 93% target in 8 out 

of 11 specialties, including gynaecology where 

performance has been challenging in previous 

months.  Lower GI breaches are a result of 

colonoscopy capacity now that straight to test 

is fully operational, and this is also associated 

with the performance challenges seen in 

colonoscopy and flexi sigmoidoscopy 

diagnostic tests. Capacity is being acquired 

through additional Glanso lists.  

 

Dermatology have experienced a 49% 

increase in referrals in August 2018 compared 

to August 2017, leading to a deterioration in 

performance. A long term project with CCG 

has been launched to look at technological 

solutions for next year as this demand is likely 

seasonal. 

26 

Top Line Messages: 

Red 

P
age 84



3.7 Cancer – 62 days  

 

Performance against the 62 day 

treatment standard remains challenging 

as Lower GI and Urology at GHFT 

continue to work through a backlog of 

patients.   

 

CGG 62 day performance in August was 

78.3% while GHFT achieved 76.6%.  As 

agreed with NHSE and NHSI, 

performance excluding urology (to better 

reflect the overall position of GHFT 

cancer services, acknowledging the long 

standing issues with urology workforce) 

can be reported, leading to an adjusted 

figure of 88.9% for GHFT and 89.7% for 

the CCG. 

 

GHFT has a full speciality level plan 

under review for 62 day cancer recovery 

and a trajectory plan to deliver 

performance trust wide by March 2018, 

which is reviewed by each team 

monthly.  

 
27 

 
 

Top Line Messages: 

Red 

P
age 85



3.7 Cancer – 104 day breaches and Programme Actions 

28 

104 Day Breaches 

There were 13 104 day breaches reported in August 2018: all patients were first seen at GHFT (12 urology, 1 

lung cancer patient). Urology are still awaiting the commencement of their newly appointed consultant (to 

begin in October) which will help to improve the 104 and 62 day position as the backlog is cleared (NB: this 

will adversely affect performance for a projected 6 month period). 

 

System Updates: 

• Cancer system workshop for CCG, GHFT, Cancer Alliance,  NHSE and NHSI partners was held on 1st 

October to cover implementation of new pathways, strategic forward planning and links to ensuring 

sustained improvements in Cancer Waiting Time standard.  

 

Additional actions: 

• Cancer Services general manager and GHFT Deputy Chief Operating Officer are arranging visits to Trusts 

that treat roughly the same numbers but have markedly better performance to see if there are lessons to 

be learnt. 

• Initiation of the Clinical Programme Group (CPG) 2 week wait Cancer  Referrals Improvement project. 

• Locum gastroenterology consultant due to start in October 2018. 

• GHFT closed to out of county referrals for Dermatology. 

• Shadow monitoring actions underway to support reporting of new 2020 cancer targets. 

• All patients are reviewed weekly from Day 26 in larger specialties and Day 15 in smaller specialties 

(extended from 28 days across board). 

• Support for inter-hospital transfers being progressed. 

• GP colorectal masterclass scheduled held 9 October 2018 with a further 4 classes planned over the rest of 

the year. 

• Waiting list clinics in place for colorectal specialty – Additional funding has been allocated for Glanso clinics 

for colorectal & endoscopy specific clinics, until the end of November 2018. 

• Additional funding is being sought to support performance in several cancer specialties, in particular 

urology, lower GI and prostate. 

Amber 

P
age 86



3.8 System Overview: Mental Health – Improving Access to 

Psychological Therapies (IAPT) 

Access Recovery 

Referral to Treatment - 6 wks Referral to Treatment - 18 wks 

29 

Green 

P
age 87



 

 

 

Top Line Messages: 

 

Access: 

Access rate for August was 1.44% 

which meets the stepped cumulative 

target for access (increasing 

throughout 2018 to reach 19% by 

March 2019).  YTD access rate is 

6.73% (as per the local trajectory). 

  

Recovery: 

August performance against the 

IAPT recovery target continues to 

be above target at 51%; the target 

has been met in each month of the 

YTD.   The IAPT service remains 

the subject of a Service 

Development Plan and recovery 

rates (in addition to access and 

treatment wait times) are subject to 

monthly monitoring by the CCG with 

2G. 
 

30 

Green 3.8 Mental Health – IAPT access and recovery 

P
age 88



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Referral To Treatment (RTT) performance remains consistently high, with 98% of patients seen within 6 weeks 

in August 2018.  Performance for RTT within 18 weeks has increased to 99% in August.   

The change in recording methodology and the reclassification of assessment appointment to assessment/ 

treatment appointments materially impacts on the RTT performance measure and moves the majority of the 

waiting list to in stage waiting for a second treatment appointment. This has led to a significant increase in the 

“in stage” waiting list which 2G are addressing:  

• 2G and GCCG continue to work together to resolve this issue without compromising other IAPT 

performance targets: 

 Non-recurrent funding has been awarded to recruit agency staff to address in stage waits, and 2G are 

remodelling the access trajectory to ensure that the backlog is cleared within the financial year. 

 Additional funding to replace the HEE money that has been stopped is also being requested to address 

workforce capacity in the long term. GCCG Commissioners are writing a business case for this funding. 

 

Looking ahead to 2019/20, IAPT services will need to consider Long Term Conditions in their model.  2G are 

scoping the changes to the service with commissioners ahead of contract negotiation and the planning round. 

31 

3.8 Mental Health – IAPT (Referral To Treatment - RTT) 

Key Area Target 
Actual / RAG Status 

(August) 
Actual/RAG Status (YTD) 

National 6 week Referral To 

Treatment  (Discharges) 
75% 98% 94% 

National 18 week Referral To 

Treatment (Discharges) 
95% 99% 97% 

Green 

P
age 89



3.8 System Overview: Mental Health – Children & Young People 

32 

CYPS services continue to perform well around care coordination for children and young people, and for initial 

timely access to services.  The referral to treatment time for Level 2 and 3 interventions for children and young 

people remains below target, and has dropped significantly from 2017/18’s position of  78% receiving treatment 

within 8 weeks, and 86% within 10 weeks).  This is due to increasing demand for specialist treatment in the 

second half of 2017/18. The national target for maximum waiting time is 10 weeks, and current average wait 

times are 13.2 weeks.  The service have looked for a number of efficiencies and have provided a report with 

completed actions and expected demand and capacity gap (including expected waiting time trajectories should 

the current trend continue) going forward.  The CCG has submitted a bid for a national trailblazer pilot to reduce 

waiting times to support the service and is awaiting a decision on funding (to be announced by the end of 

October). 

A South West regional focus on quality for CYPS services has been announced, and 2G and the CCG will be 

supporting the development of a specific dashboard (including outcome metrics) to monitor these services. 

 

Amber 

2018/19 April May June/Q1 July August
September

/Q2
October November

December

/Q3
January February March/Q4

Children and young people who enter a 

treatment programme to have a care 

coordinator - (Level 3 Services) Target : 

98%

99% 98% 99% 98% 98%

95% accepted referrals receiving initial 

appointment within 4 weeks (excludes 

YOS, substance misuse, inpatient and 

crisis/home treatment and complex 

engagement) (CYPS) - Target 95%

96%

Level 2 and 3 – Referral to treatment 

within 8 weeks , excludes LD, YOS, 

inpatient and crisis/home treatment) 

(CYPS) - Target 80%

39%

Level 2 and 3 – Referral to treatment 

within 10 weeks (excludes LD, YOS, 

inpatient and crisis/home treatment) 

(CYPS) - Target 95%

45%

Children and Young People's Mental Health (CYPS)

P
age 90



3.9 Continuing Health Care – Location of assessment 

 

 

 

Top Line Messages: 

33 

NHS Continuing Healthcare (CHC) has 

national targets to ensure that the 

majority of referrals take place promptly 

and in an appropriate setting. 

 

The 28 day referral time starts from the 

date the CCG  receives any type of 

recorded decision that full consideration 

for NHS CHC is required i.e. a positive 

checklist or other notification of potential 

eligibility and ends at the point the CCG 

makes the decision.  The location of 

assessment considers whether the 

assessment was carried out in an acute 

setting - which may not be appropriate 

due to a lack of clarity over a person's 

long term needs.  

 

The Discharge to Assess pathway 

commenced on the  9th May 2016 and 

now only in exceptional circumstances 

does a CHC checklist and full 

assessment  take place in an acute 

hospital setting within Gloucestershire  

as shown by the consistent performance 

YTD in 2018/19.  

Green 

P
age 91



34 

3.9 Continuing Health Care 

CHC Assessments completed in 28 days 
 

 

 

Top Line Messages: 
 

Current performance is below the 80% target 

at for assessments to be carried out in 28 

days (30% of assessments were carried out in 

this timeframe in September 2018), however 

for context, South West and national 

performance at end of Q1 2018/19 are also 

shown.   

 

Some of the ongoing reasons identified as 

causing delays are: 

• Accessing Social workers to constitute a 

Multidisciplinary team. 

• Engaging community nursing teams to 

complete nursing assessments. 

• Backlogs in particular areas, especially 

Learning Disability (both initial assessment 

and outstanding reviews).  

 

 

Red 

P
age 92



Progress against the action plan to date: 

• The CHC Clinical Manager is monitoring delays weekly, identifying internal and external reasons for 

delays and ensuring unblocking actions are progressed.  

• Active CHC cases are identified by each of the Local Authority (LA) localities (6) and information is 

sent weekly to each locality lead requesting updates.  This enables the LA to identify where the 

greatest pressures are in relation to social work support to the CHC assessment process.  

• New administration support is now in place to assist with recording and escalation of delays. 

• Positive checklists are now screened to ensure concerns are raised early with referrers.   

• The CHC Clinical Manager and Lead Commissioner visited Bristol CCG on 1st October to learn from 

how this area has made improvements and are meeting the 28 day target. 

Learning Disability (LD) assessments and reviews: 

• Recruitment of 3 additional LD nurses has commenced to support assessment: 2 fixed term, 1 

substantive post. To date recruitment has been unsuccessful but continues to be pursued. Two agency 

LD nurse assessor are currently supporting work as an interim measure.  

• There were 28 outstanding LD reviews (cases which had not been reviewed for more than 6 years).  

This has now been reduced to 16, and a trajectory is in place to clear these by the end of November. 

• There were 104 LD assessments waiting more than 12 weeks for initial assessment.  49 of these 

assessments have now been completed, and there is a trajectory in place to have completed all 

assessments by the end of December. 

Upcoming actions include: 

• LA Hospital Discharge to Assess team and the LA CHC team will expand and merge under the 

Advanced Practitioner and create an 8 person assessment team that will manage and respond to Self-

funding CHC assessment requests and will support locality CHC referrals. 

• Joint training continues to be carried out with the LA and a greater emphasis will be placed on the 28 

day time frame. 35 

3.9 Continuing Health Care (CHC) 
CHC Assessments completed in 28 days 

Red 

P
age 93



Positive Trends in September 
 

 

Delayed Transfers of Care (DToC) – Community hospital DToC remains below the national target of 

3.5% at 2.3%. 

 

Minor Injury and Illness Units (MIIUs) – 4hr performance continues above the national target of 95% at 

99.1%. The YTD average is 99.3%. 

 

Single Point of Clinical Access (SPCA) – The answering of priority 1 & 2 calls within 60 seconds has 

achieved the 95% target with a performance of 98.8%. This is a considerable improvement from the 17/18 

YTD performance of 90.4%. 

36 

3.10 Gloucestershire Care Services Performance  

P
age 94



September Performance Challenges 
 

Referral To Treatment (RTT):- 

• Performance for 6 of the 8 monitored services are below 95%, the amber threshold for RTT (% 

treated within 8 Weeks). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Commissioners are working closely with GCS regarding the above via Clinical Programme Groups and 

usual contract levers such as Performance, Finance and Information meetings and Clinical Quality 

Review Groups.   

The Speech and Language Therapy (SALT) service is currently defining the activity in both acute and 

community settings and work is ongoing as a service development to ensure recruitment and retention of 

staff in this service supported.  Work is ongoing around the restructuring of the OT service, including 

demand and capacity modelling and new role development in the service. 

37 

3.10 Gloucestershire Care Services Performance  

P
age 95



3.11 Performance – Patient Experience (Friends and Family 

Test (FFT)) 

38 

Response Rate

% Recommend

% Not 

Response Rate

% Recommend

% Not 

Response Rate

% Recommend

% Not 

Response Rate

% Recommend

% Not 

GCS

2g

GHT 

Inpatients

GHT        

A&E

FFT Top Line Messages 

GHNHSFT has continued to report strong Friends and Family Test (FFT) response rates which are in excess of national averages for 

both Inpatients and A&E. Unfortunately % recommend rates for Inpatients remain several % points below the national average. The 

A&E % recommend rates fluctuate month on month, but are closer to the national average.  

GCSNHST Response rates are not recorded for community providers. There has been a 1% improvement in the patients who have 

said they would NOT recommend the service in July 2018. 

2GNHSFT Response rates are not recorded for mental health/ LD providers. The % recommend rate has been below the national 

average for the three months reported above.  

 

National Review of FFT 
Several sites are currently testing questions which could replace the existing mandatory FFT question. Ipsos MORI will be carrying 

out research during the autumn, which will include cognitive testing with staff and patients around potential new questions.  

  
 

Provider Nat Ave Provider Nat Ave Provider Nat Ave

26.80% 25.60% 26.40% 25.20% 27.40% 25.30%

91% 96% 92% 96% 91% 96%

4% 1% 4% 2% 4% 2%

19.50% 12.40% 20.10% 13.00% 18.90% 12.80%

83% 87% 85% 87% 84% 87%

10% 7% 9% 7% 10% 8%

92% 95% 92% 95% 92% 95%

2% 2% 2% 2% 3% 2%

79% 89% 83% 89% 79% 89%

11% 4% 7% 4% 12% 4%

Jun-18May-18 Jul-18

P
age 96



 

 

 

Gloucestershire Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee (HCOSC) 

November 2018 

One Gloucestershire ICS Lead Report 

 
 
 
 

 
These reports provide an update to HCOSC members on the 
progress of key programme and projects across Gloucestershire’s 
Integrated Care System (ICS) to date.   

Gloucestershire’s STP commenced year two of four in April 2018, since then we have made progress in 
embedding and delivering key schemes outlined within the plan, in an increasingly challenging health 
and care environment. We continue to develop our delivery plans against our main priority programmes. 
In the July 2018 report we outlined the progress made in 2017/18 and the priorities for plans in 2018/19; 
in this report we provide an update on 2018/19 progress made against the priority delivery programmes 
and supporting enabling programmes included within Gloucestershire as we transition to an Integrated 
Care System (ICS).  

This report contains updated on the programme areas as well as a specific focus on the following areas 

 Mental Health Clinical Programme Group 

 Integrated Locality Boards 

 Capital Development at Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

 

Gloucestershire’s STP Plan on a page  

 

  

1. Introduction 

Page 97

Agenda Item 8



2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Enabling Active Communities programme looks to build a new 
sense of personal responsibility and improved independence for 
health, supporting community capacity and working with the 
voluntary and community sector.  

 
The development of the Gloucestershire Prevention and Shared Care Plan, led by Public Health, aims 
to reduce the health and wellbeing gap and recognises that more systematic prevention is critical in 
order to reduce the overall burden of disease in the population and maintain financial sustainability in 
our system. 
 

Key priorities for 2018/19 are: 

 Reach the target of over 5,000 patients being on the National Diabetes Prevention 
Programme  

 Appoint a GP Clinical Champion in Diabetes to further raise the profile of diabetic care in 
general practice (completed) 

 Commission a new Child Weight Management Service and implement our new adult Weight 
Management Service Model to support people to reduce their weight in a sustainable way 

 Continue to deliver an early identification and intervention model for victims of domestic 
abuse  

 Develop a Breastfeeding Social Marketing campaign  

 Progress the Gloucestershire Moves project (getting 30,000 inactive people active) and see 
the first pilots underway; including ‘Beat the Street’ and older people at risk of falls  

 Launch a new postpartum contraception service  

 Launch our new Gloucestershire Self-Management Education Programme called ‘Live 
Better, Feel Better’ and Support over 200 individuals through our new Self-Management 
Service  

 Create a direct route into the community wellbeing service from urgent care (A&E, urgent 
treatment centres) to support people who attend for non-medical reasons 

 Expand the arts on prescription service  

 Increase our focus on support the following pathways with self-care and prevention 
schemes: adult mental health; paediatric epilepsy; paediatric Type 1 diabetes; Tier 3 obesity, 
adult chronic pain and adult respiratory pathways 

 

Update on progress over the last two months: 

Supporting Pathways 

 There have been a total of 2,700 referrals to the National Diabetes Prevention Programme 
(NDPP) since August 2017 with an uptake rate of 49%; this proves to be slightly higher than 
the national average.  3 localities are currently referring to the service with expansion to the 
remaining 4 localities set to continue in January 2019 

 The Tier 2 Child weight management service pathway has been drafted and will be 
presented to the healthy weight steering group for discussion at the next meeting in 
December. 

 The Diploma training schedule for specialist midwives has been updated and confirmed, with 
the final locally delivered postpartum contraception training session scheduled for the first 
week in November. 
 

Supporting People 

 Since the start of the early identification of domestic abuse, there has been a 206% increase 
in health referrals to the Gloucestershire Domestic Abuse Support Service with 70% of these 
not being known to the service beforehand. 

2. Enabling Active 
Communities 

Page 98



3 
 

 There have been 60 workshops delivered to 1257 primary care health professionals to 
increase confidence in handling domestic abuse disclosure. The project has now trained 49 
Domestic Abuse champions in GP practices across Gloucestershire. 

 Patient Activation Measures (PAM) have been adopted as business as usual with a total of 
2,364 being completed. 
 

Supporting Places & Communities 

 Active Gloucestershire has appointed a new programme manager who started in post during 
October and will oversee the Gloucestershire Moves Programme.  

 The latest results from the Active Lives survey are now available covering the period of May 
2017 - May 2018. The results show that the percentage of people who are inactive is 22.9% 
in Gloucestershire which is better than the England level (25.2%)  
 

Supporting Workforce 

 A number of new medium to large businesses have been engaged on the Workplace Health 
and Wellbeing project. Work has begun to improve employee health and wellbeing. 

 Better Conversations:  the project team are working with the Institute of Employment 
Studies to further develop the evaluation for the Berkeley Vale cluster site. Delivery of 
training in this area continues with the courses being well attended and well received. 

  

Page 99



4 
 

 

 

The Clinical Programme Approach has been adopted across our 
local health care system to ensure a collaborative approach to 
systematically redesign the way care is delivered in our system, by 
reorganising care pathways and delivery systems to deliver right 
care, in the right place, at the right time. 

 Priorities 2018/19 Progress So Far… 

Respiratory 

Deliver a comprehensive education and 
training package for health care 
professionals working in primary care 
and managing long term respiratory 
conditions.  

Support primary care to stop 
prescribing steroids where they are not 
having a significant impact on an 
individual’s quality of life 

Continue to bring together the hospital 
and community respiratory teams 
together into one integrated team  

The Integrated Respiratory Team 
commenced during September with the 
Integration lead role being developed to 
also include responsibilities as operational 
lead for the Integrated Respiratory service.  

Team engagement events are being 
organised to inspire, engage and provide 
clarity to the team members for how the 
changes will affect their roles and 
maximise the opportunities created by 
integration. 

Musculoskeletal 

Embed the Advanced Practitioner 
Service providing physiotherapy 
support to patients in primary care.  

Roll out MSK triage service which 
provides expert clinical review at the 
point of referral. 

Design and implement a countywide 
integrated approach to falls prevention 

Providers continue to report that the MSK 
Specialised Triage is working well. An 
Integrated MSK educational event is 
planned for November 28th. There is a 
plan to change the triage service from a 
Clinical Assessment Service (CAS) to a 
Referral Assessment Service (RAS) on 
eRS as this will improve the process for 
primary care are administration staff.  

Circulatory 

Improvements to heart failure care 

Develop proposal for cardiac 
rehabilitation 

Progress community stroke 
rehabilitation 

Plans to implement the Community Stroke 
Rehabilitation services are progressing 
well in line with the plan make the changes 
in January 2019. 

The Blood Pressure Award bid to British 
Heart Foundation successful and will 
secure £100k over 2 years from April 2019 

Eye Health 

Explore the enhanced community eye 
care offer to provide additional eye care 
services 

Implement the new NICE guidelines 
within Ophthalmology 

Eye Care Liaison Officer (ECLO) 
expansion business case supported by the 
CPG. This will increase support to patients 
who have been diagnosed with 
deteriorating sight and will be available 
following attendance at outpatient 
appointments. It provides advice and 
support tailored to the needs and 
experience of the individual and supports 
transition between health and community 
services. 

  

3. Clinical 
Programme 
Approach 

Page 100



5 
 

Diabetes 

Recruit a part-time Consultant 
Diabetologist 

Training to care homes on “caring for 
patients with diabetes” 

Multi-disciplinary footcare outpatient clinics 
continue at GRH and CGH with consistent 
input from Diabetologists, Podiatry, 
Vascular and Orthopaedic consultants. As 
expected, there is a downwards trend in 
major amputations. 

Cancer 

Progress towards the 2020/21 ambition 
for more cancers to be diagnosed at the 
earliest stages  

Deliver the Prostate Cancer 
Surveillance Project 

Implement the Colorectal Streamlining 
Project, including the Straight to Test 
pathway & implementation of the 
Optimal Lung Cancer pathway to 
support quicker diagnosis (completed) 

 

The next programme of GP Masterclasses 
have commenced from 9th October 2018 
with Colorectal as a focus. 
 
The Early and Faster Diagnosis 
Programme is focusing on the actions 
needed to achieve the national objective of 
62% cancers diagnosed at Stage 1 or 2. 
 

Children & 
Maternity 

Develop community hubs and integrate 
better together services that support 
women and families in the early years 

Implement our ‘Safer Maternity Care’ 
Action plan 

Develop models of care supporting 
women to have the same carer 
throughout pregnancy, birth & post-
natal care 

Aim to have 30 to 40 children with 
Personalised Care Plans by Mar 19 

The Social Care & Youth Support day staff 
for the Integrated Recovery and 
Intervention Service (IRIS) are in place. 

As part of the Prevention - Better Births 
scheme, a healthy lifestyle programme is 
being developed and implemented with an 
expected launch date scheduled for later 
this year.  

Young Gloucestershire have been 
commissioned to facilitate person centred 
planning and management of the personal 
budgets for the children and young people 
which should increase the number of 
people able to personalise their support.  

Learning 
Disability 

Enabling individuals with a Learning 
Disability to use Personal Health 
Budgets to ensure they have control of 
the support they receive 

Embed the “Stopping Over Medication 
of People with LD” campaign to reduce 
the prescriptions of anti-psychotic drugs 
where they are not clinically 
recommended 

Ensure that 75% of people with a LD on 
the GP LD Register receive an Annual 
Health Check by Quarter 4 19/20 

Increased support for 30 people on the 
Transforming Care Programme and the 
Positive Behaviour Support services are. 

Work continues to provide an improved 
and timely service for the special schools 
in Gloucestershire for disabled CYP. 

We are reviewing staff training to align 
closely to the clinical pathways that staff 
are working on.  

 

  

Page 101



6 
 

Dementia 

Develop a countywide approach to 
community dementia services  

Implement the Community Hospital 
Mental Health Liaison Team pilot 

Current focus is on achieving 6 week 
referral to treatment times for the Memory 
Assessment Service and increasing the 
caseload for Dementia Advisor from the 
service. This should support people with 
longer-term support, improving the focus 
on prevention and living well. 

  

 

Focus on Mental Health Clinical Programme 

 
The Mental Health Clinical Programme Group (MH CPG) was reformed in early 2018 under the clinical 
leadership of Dr Lawrence Fielder (CCG Clinical Lead for Mental Health).  The group has met on 3 occasions 
this year to review previous work undertaken and to agree priority areas.  The following priority areas were 
agreed by the group: 
 

 Personality Disorders:  Development of a business case for specialist personality disorder service 
building on the work undertaken in Gloucestershire over the past 4 years and incorporating more 
recent initiatives (e.g. Kingfisher Treasure Seekers Enablement Pilot, Serenity Integrated Mentoring 
pilot).  

 Primary Care Mental Health:  Over the past year 2gNHSFT have been working with commissioners 
to review the Psychiatric Nursing Element of the MH Intermediate Care Team.  In parallel 2gNHSFT 
have been working with a small number of GP practices in Gloucester city to pilot an Advanced 
Mental Health Practitioner role in Primary Care. 

 Physical Health and Serious Mental Illnesses (SMI):   Requirement for 60% of people on GP SMI 
registers to have an annual physical health check and appropriate NICE recommended interventions.  
2gNHSFT via a CQUIN have been working on improving access to physical health checks for 
individuals known to their services.  We have recently undertaken an audit of GP practices to 
determine the uptake of physical health checks for all SMI patients.  The results of the audit will be 
discussed at the next MH CPG.   

 Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD) Pathways:  In 2018 we introduced an additional 
element to the existing diagnostic service provided by 2gNHSFT.  The intention was to provide 
additional support to primary care for diagnosed individuals in terms of access to specialist review if 
required and advice/guidance.  Following discussions at the MH CPG a G-Care pathway group was 
established to review the existing ADHD pathway against the current model. 

 
Mental Health Crisis Care 
 
The Crisis Care Concordat is a multi-agency agreement to improve services for people experiencing a 
crisis and has the following main components. 
 

 
 

Page 102



7 
 

The Crisis Care Concordat Action plan has been reviewed through the Mental Health and Wellbeing 
Partnership Board and the Crisis Care Concordat Steering Group.  A report will be returning to the MH and 
Wellbeing Partnership Board summarising progress to date and proposed future priorities. 
 
 
Development of a new Gloucestershire Intensive Recovery and Intervention Service (IRIS) for 
Children and Young People 
 
The joint initiative with the Clinical Commissioning Group, NHS England and Gloucestershire County Council 
focusses on a different approach to working with children and young people with mental health issues.    It 
comprises of different strands including residential, independent supported living, Foster Care, Casework 
team, intensive family and young person support, therapeutic day provision and emergency and crisis 
responses. 
 
Mental health crisis café (The Cavern) 
 
Kingfisher Treasure Seekers Ltd are a local voluntary and community sector organisation who provide a crisis 
café for adults in Gloucestershire aged 18+. The Cavern supports people experiencing acute emotional 
distress associated with a mental health problem (whether diagnosed formally or not). They provide a safe, 
welcoming and comfortable place for people who feel they are at risk of reaching crisis or need some support 
in the evenings. The aim of the service is to provide earlier intervention for those at risk of crisis, improve 
people’s coping skills and resilience and prevent the need for admission to an inpatient setting or attending 
the emergency department.  

 
Crisis Care Concordat Workforce Development 
 
The Mental Health Crisis Care Workforce Development Group was set up to oversee the implementation of 
the agreed multi-agency multi-professional workforce development strategy (3-5 years) for Gloucestershire 
that addresses the workforce needs of the Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat to enable earlier intervention 
and responsive crisis services. The strategy addresses the training needs of partner organisations coming 
into contact with people in crisis and aligns with the practice development programme for specialist crisis 
workers in 2gether NHSFT.  The Group continues to meet quarterly to oversee the development, delivery and 
evaluation of a prioritised, and where appropriate bespoke, programme of training and development 
interventions in mental health awareness and mental health crisis care.  Following a successful year two STP 
bid, £30,000 2018/19 funding has been secured from Health Education England for workforce development. 
 
The following programmes, in agreed priority areas, have been delivered since April 2018: 
 
 Police: following the initial programme in November 2017 a full day training programme commenced in 

April and has now been delivered to 154 police staff (mostly response officers who use section 136 
powers) and PSCO’s.  Feedback has been positive and the programme continues to be rolled out. 

 Ambulance: To date 24 ambulance staff have received bespoke training and further dates are booked.  
Feedback has been good.  The sessions are similar to those for the police but with a different emphasis 
for ambulance staff, especially focussing on mental capacity. 

 Housing and Homelessness: A one day course was delivered to P3 in May 2018.  The service 
commissioner and team leader for 2gether NHSFT Accommodation Team also attended.  A bespoke 
programme for housing has been developed and is ready to deliver. 

 Personality Disorder Awareness: The training already delivered for 2gether NHSFT staff was opened 
up to allow 10 free places on each date to be available to staff from other agencies.  A further 4 courses 
have been scheduled for non 2gether NHSFT staff.  To date 32 non 2gether NHSFT staff have attended 
these.  It is recommended that staff attend the Mental Health Crisis Care awareness training prior to this 
programme which is a delivered by a Clinical Psychologist. 

 
 
 

Page 103



8 
 

Additional developments: 
 Gloucestershire Fire & Rescue Service: a bespoke training package has been designed and will be 

piloted and rolled out in November 2018. 
 Multi-agency: the development of a multi-agency half day Mental Health Crisis Care awareness sessions 

are being piloted in the autumn. 
 E-learning: An identified provider has been identified and two levels (awareness and specialist) training 

is being developed. 
 
Other training: 
 Rethink Mental Illness worked with Gloucestershire Constabulary to deliver a series of workshops to 

control room staff to support improved understanding of self-harm and suicide.   
 The Independence Trust also provided ‘crisis’ training to the Gloucestershire Safe and Social 

Environments (cafes, museums, garden centres, libraries, etc).  
 Training of Crisis Staff to enable them to triage Children and Young People 11 years+ and the Mental 

Health Liaison Team to triage 16 years+ has been undertaken in addition to training for working with 
Children and Young People in partnership with the Tavistock and Gloucestershire Counselling Services.  

 
Suicide Prevention 
 
The strategy was developed by the Gloucestershire Suicide Prevention Partnership Forum (GSPPF), with 
input from partners across the public and voluntary sectors. Its objectives reflect the national suicide 
prevention strategy and local context to ensure that all action plans are aligned to ensure duplication is 
minimised and priorities are addressed through the most appropriate route. 
 
Mental Health Acute Response System (MHARS) 
 
The new holistic Crisis model which reflects the partnership working across the County was commissioned in 
April 2017 in line with new Police guidance and legislation.  This provides a single point of access and clear, 
concise pathway of care. 
 
The Contact Centre has been co-located with the Police at Waterwells where they receive referrals from GPs, 
Police and Ambulance as well as providing advice to the police.  The Urgent Response Team has also been 
co-located with the Police. 
 
Additional helpline support is now being provided by ‘Mental Health Matters’  who provide support to people 
who would normally go straight to the Crisis Teams but do not require an acute response.  General advice is 
provided with the option of escalating to the Contact Centre and Urgent Response Team if required. 
 
In addition, a Street Triage Pilot was launched in June 2017 with a mental health clinician attending incidents 
with police offers.  The service has been extended to 4 days from 2pm to midnight on Tuesday, Wednesday, 
Thursday and Friday.  This pilot has seen a significant reduction in the number of Section 136 detentions. 
 
The Mental Health Liaison Team provide support to Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust through 
emergency departments in addition to liaison with the Older People’s Service; Change, Grow, Live (alcohol) 
and Community Hospitals. 

 
The ‘targeted case management approach to Section 136 High Intensity Users’ can be seen as an integral 
element of the High Intensity User Network/Serenity Integrated Mentoring (SIM) Project.  The SIM Project 
Group for the recruitment of police officer who is based initially alongside the Psychiatric Liaison Team with a 
caseload drawn from the existing High Intensity Case Manager caseload.  
 
 
 
 

 

Page 104



9 
 

Place of Safety (PoS) 
 
Following the changes brought in by the Police & Crime Act 2018, the waiting room in the Maxwell Suite had 
subsequently been identified as a Place of Safety if required.  In addition the Police have agreed to remain as 
a chaperone throughout the process if a child is being detained.  Since the introduction of the changes we 
have had no occurrences whereby a child or young person was unable to access a Place of Safety or any 
breaches of the revised 24 hour detention period.  We are therefore currently confident that we have 
sufficient capacity within our Place of Safety to meet demand for Children & Young People/Adults. 
 
Approved Mental Health Professional (AMHPS) 
 
Gloucestershire County Council has a statutory duty to ensure that there are sufficient numbers of competent 
AMHPs available 24 hours a day to consider requests for assessments under the mental health Act 
1983/2007.   An extended hours (9AM-11pm) Hub and Spoke AMHP model was introduced in July 2018 and 
it is the intention of the Council to commission a standalone 24/7 AMHP service (currently 11pm-9am is 
provided by Glos EDT). 
 
Self Harm 
 
A review of the self-harm pathway was undertaken and key recommendations included: 
 
 Improve what happens when people who are self-harming or in extreme emotional distress present 

themselves to ED 
 Strengthen prevention 
 Make it easier for children and young people to get help 
 Join up the services that we already have 
 Specific needs, e.g. personality disorder, children and young people with physical health conditions 
 
A multi-agency plan has been developed and is currently being implemented. 

 

 

  

Page 105



10 
 

 
The Reducing Clinical Variation programme looks to elevate key 
issues of clinical variation to system level and have a new joined up 
conversation with the public around some of the harder priority 
decisions we will need to make. This includes building on the 
variation approach with primary care, promoting ‘Choosing Wisely’ 
and a Medicines Optimisation approach and undertaking a 
diagnostics review. 

 
Key priorities for 2018/19 are 

 The successful Prescribing Support dietetics role will be expanded to support change in the 
recommendation of oral vitamin B vs Vitamin B injections, advice and support around optimising 
the use of calcium and vitamin D, as well as reviewing and producing infant milk guidance to 
ensure appropriate support to patients via primary care 

 Continue to support, develop and extend the Repeat Prescription Ordering Service for 
Gloucestershire patients to support the reduction of prescribed waste medication. 

 Continue to support reducing Polypharmacy (the use of multiple medications at the same time) 
in patients, initial focus on frail patients, and extend it to groups such as those in care homes 
with the aim of reducing unwanted side effects  

 Implement a paper referral switch off so that all referrals to consultant led services are made via 
an electronic system by October 2018 (in line with national guidance.)  

 Implement patient led booking to give patients more control over their follow up care. 

 Implement GP peer review of referrals to support consistency of patient management at a 
locality level. 

 Continued development of alternatives to face to face follow up appointments 

 Reducing the number of people who failed to attend a booked hospital appointment through a 
public awareness campaign and by establishing a reminder services 

 Continue to make improvements to Operating Theatre, Radiology and Pathology pathways to 
reduce waste 

What we’ve achieved so far: 

 Advice and Guidance (A&G) services, where GPs can get advice and support from specialist 
services without referring a patient, continues to increase month on month with a total of 6792 
requested made in the first six months of 2018/19, significantly above the year to date target 
level of 4589. The service rollout continues as planned with 16 specialties now live and two 
further due to go live in the coming months. 

 Work continues to progress the approach to referral management in the key target specialties of 
Dermatology, ENT, Gynaecology, and Urology 

 G-care site (a website containing information for GPs and other healthcare professionals) views 
have increased by 7.3% since April, and a range of new content has been published. G-care 
search function has been redesigned to improve usability and this is currently being tested 
before changes are made to the live version. 

 The social media videos for the Did Not Attend campaign are currently being developed and are 
expected to be finalised within the next few weeks, with the aim of launching the campaign in 
November to reduce the number of wasted appointments. 

 The 2018/19 Savings Plan supports a saving opportunity of £5m across a range of treatments. 
The Prescribing Improvement Plan (PIP) continues within practices. 

 Use of Prescription Ordering Line (POL) to manage continence and stoma prescription requests 
is developing. Practices have expressed interest in making use of this service for these 
prescription groups. Staffing is being increased to ensure capacity to manage the planned 
increase in demand and the extra staffing will be fully in place by the end of November 20118. 

  

4. Reducing Clinical 
Variation 

Page 106



11 
 

 
New Models of Care & Place Based Model 

The One Place, One Budget, One System programme takes a 
place based approach to resources and ensures we deliver best 
value. Our community care redesign will ensure responsive 
community based care is delivered through a transformative 
system approach to health and social care. 

The intention is to enable people in Gloucestershire to be more self-supporting and less dependent on 
health and social care services, living in healthy communities, benefitting from strong networks of 
community support and being able to access high quality care when needed. New locality led ‘Models of 
Care’ pilots commenced in 2016/17 to ‘test and learn’ from their implementation and outcomes, working 
across organisational boundaries, and leading to the formation of 16 locality clusters across the county. 

Key priorities for 2018/19 are 

 Led by ICS partners, pilot three Integrated Locality Boards in both rural and urban areas.  The 
pilots will be in Stroud and Berkeley Vale, Forest of Dean and Cheltenham.  These aim to give 
more control to local GPs to develop and tailor services to best meet the needs of people in the 
local area. 

 Increase the range of roles in primary care available to support GPs and patients including the 
use expanding paramedics, clinical pharmacists and mental nurses 

 Support the roll out of the Community Dementia pilot across the county, following the completion 
of evaluation and a feasibility study. 

 We will continue to work with practices to support them through merger or federation 
conversations as required.  

What we’ve achieved so far: 

 Commissioning Event on 27th September with nationally renowned speakers updating over 200 
attendees on Primary Care Networks. 

 60 staff across Berkeley Vale have attended a 2 day  Health Coaching training “Better 
Conversations” to support  MDT way of working.  Attendees included GPs, Practice Nursing, 2g 
staff and all staff in the ICT. 

 4 Practices from Stroud Central and Berkeley Vale completed the Releasing Time for Care 
programme, focusing on care navigation & clinical correspondence.  

 Design of a frailty model for the Forest which will be based on the Complex Care at Home Model 
is completed.   

 Literature/promotional tools being finalised for use on the information bus, including a ‘frailty 
wheel’ that gives guidance on improving health and wellbeing and a survey to capture public’s 
current understanding of frailty. 

 My Goals and Me At My Best care plans have been templated for System 1 and EMIS 
 

  

5. One Place, One 
Budget, One System 

Page 107



12 
 

 

Focus on Integrated Locality Boards 

Integrated Locality Board (ILB) pilots have been running since April 2018 in Stroud & Berkeley Vale, 
Forest of Dean and Cheltenham.  
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of the Integrated Locality Board (ILB) is to bring together key partners from across the 

organisations that serve the populations of our communities, to consider how together they can improve 

the delivery of health outcomes for their primary care registered populations and Improve the delivery of 

services that all are collectively accountable for.  The ILBs are the local delivery arm of the ICS. 

 

The Gloucestershire STP has been developed across the Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning 

Group (GCCG), Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust, Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation 

Trust, Gloucestershire County Council, 2gether NHS Foundation Trust and South Western Ambulance 

Service Foundation Trust, and it is these partners that will form the basis of working with primary care 

colleagues within the ILB. 

 

ILB members map and share combined resources across their patch, seek to understand their 

demographics and determine the ICS priorities on which they will work.  The ILB are responsible for the 

design and delivery of these priorities, working together to implement them.   

 

This is not a top-down approach.  All providers on the ILB are equal partners, working together on local 

delivery of the STP.   All providers share the same goal of better outcomes for patients within a 

sustainable and resilient health and social care system.   

 

Outcomes we want to achieve through the ILB model 
 

• More resilient primary care 
• Improving outcomes in the locality 
• Contributing to system sustainability  
• Accelerated  pace of service improvement and change to deliver ICS solutions; 
• Better shared understanding of  the local resources available to deliver strategies and work 

programmes, reducing duplication, improving effective use of resource 
• Reduction in unwarranted variation in Practice 
• Greater shared visibility and transparency of resources available in the Locality 
• A forum which facilitates collaboration, shared learning, information sharing and peer support 

creating a culture of innovation in the context of improvement. 
 
Key responsibilities 
 
Specifically the ILBs are seen as offering a new collective way of working that can:  

 Accelerate the pace of service improvement to deliver high quality out of hospital care for the 

local population contributing to a sustainable model of care provision.   

 Champion a place based model of care that significantly contributes to the delivery of the ICS   

 Maintain a focus on the benefit for patients in the local population, ensuring engagement with 

patients, service users and carers 

 Design, implement and evaluate projects 

 Provide local challenge to partners to support continuous improvement and address 

unwarranted variation in practice 

Page 108



13 
 

 Better understand the local infrastructure required to deliver strategies and work programmes 

 Provide visibility and transparency of resources available in the locality and mapped to activity 

 Implement new operational and clinical models to support new ways of working including clinical 

governance 

 Providing a forum which facilitates collaboration, shared learning, information sharing and peer 

support creating a culture of innovation in the context of improvement. 

 

Membership 

Pilot ILB membership will include, but is not limited to the following; 

Organisation Members 

General Practice Locality Provider Lead 
Locality Executive Group Chair 
Cluster Lead GP/s 
Governing Body GP 

2gether NHS Foundation Trust Executive Director with Locality Lead 
Lead Manager  

Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust  Executive Director with Locality lead 
ICT Locality Lead 
Senior operational Locality Lead 

Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust 

Senior representative 

Social Care Provider Lead Manager 

 

This membership is supported by an ILB support team including: senior manager and administrative 

support, finance lead, public health lead and business intelligence lead.  

 

Governance 

The Integrated Locality Boards report to the New Models of Care Board which is of the ICS structure 
and is accountable to the ICS Delivery Board and Gloucestershire Strategic Forum (GSF). The GSF is 
constituted of the Chairs and Chief Executives/Accountable Officers of all of the ICS partner 
organisations.  
 

 
 
Evaluation  
Evaluation of progress is ongoing and will be considered by both the ICS governance structure and the 
CCG Governing Body. Further expansion of the Integrated Locality Board model would require a review 
of existing governance arrangements and HCOSC will be updated on this as progress is made. 

Page 109



14 
 

 
Urgent Care 

Our vision for Urgent Care will deliver the right care for patients, 
when they need it. In order to make this vision a reality and provide 
safe and sustainable services into the future, we need to consider 
how to make best use our resources, facilities and beds in hospitals 
and in the community. 

We want to improve arrangements for patients to access timely and senior clinical decision making 
about their treatment and ensure specialist support is accessed as soon as possible. We propose 
potentially changing the way some care and support is organised in Gloucestershire to meet changing 
demands, make best use of our staff, their skills and the money we have.  
 
Regular updates on the One Place Programme have been shared with HCOSC, describing how the 
programme aims to deliver an integrated urgent care system and hospital centres of excellence to 
ensure we realise the vision for urgent care. Since this update work has continued to develop the 
programme timetable, engaging with clinicians, patients, and staff and community partners to develop 
the proposals for consultation. 
 
Throughout September and October 2018 there has been careful review of the work that has taken 
place and the progress made. In particular we have received strong feedback that we need to build in 
more time for engagement in advance of formal consultation and that people want to understand the 
whole model. In response to this the ICS Delivery Board has agreed that more time is needed to focus 
on co-designing options and proposals with clinicians, community partners, patients and the public 
before we move to consultation. 
 
A new scope, co-production approach, governance and timeline will be finalised shortly. In the 
meantime it is proposed that, in addition to the Trauma & Orthopaedic and Gastroenterology pilots 
already agreed it is proposed that we develop a further General Surgery pilot (separate paper refers). 
 
Alongside this we will progress the commissioning of a new NHS 111, Clinical Advice and Assessment 
Service. This will be informed by learning from the current ‘test and learn’ initiatives and ensuring the 
critical links with other parts of the urgent care system are maintained. Patients, including Healthwatch 
Gloucestershire representation, have been involved in developing the specification for this new service. 
 
The Urgent Treatment Centre test and learn project has refocused on achieving compliance with the 
NHS England national standards and agreeing priorities for implementation before Winter 2018/19. 

 

  

5. One Place, One 
Budget, One System 

Page 110



15 
 

 
 

Our vision is underpinned by our enabling programmes which 
are working to ensure that the system has the right capacity 
and capability to deliver on the clinical priorities. 

 

 Joint IT Strategy – Local Digital Roadmap Governance has been established and will be 
managed by the Countywide IM&T Group with Project Boards and work streams established for 
the key IM&T Enablers.  75 out of the 76 GP practices are all live on the wifi project. Patient 
Online has been rolled out to 96% of Gloucestershire practices, and currently Gloucestershire 
has 22% of patients with an online account. eConsultation procurements are complete for a 
patient triage application which will begin in 5 pilot practices. Joining Up Your Information go-live 
has been successfully achieved for first set of users at 2g (30/08/2018) with go-live support 
activities underway. New version 4.0 Gloucestershire Information Sharing Partnership 
Agreement (GISPA) is now available and published to website  
 

 Joint Workforce Strategy – the Workforce and Organisational development Strategy has been 
refined and updated; the strategy focuses on three themes: capacity, capability and culture. 
Developing 7 day working across urgent care services is a priority for the coming year. Planning 
to develop a shared recruitment function across ICS organisations and expanding the Trainee 
Nursing Associate programme are also central priorities. Continuing to improve workforce 
planning and development across the system will be increasingly important to system-wide 
working. Bids for Health Education England discretionary funding have been approved with a 
total of £322k being allocated. A further allocation of £252k has also been made to support the 
Community Education Provider Network working with primary and community care. The bid to 
expand the current ICS-wide “5 elements for successful leadership” programme was submitted 
to South West Leadership Academy for the £100,000 leadership development funding.  This has 
now been approved and will support 2 further cohorts of development. 
 

 Joint Estates Strategy – the estates strategy is moving forwards with a number of strands of 
work. Significant progress in the Primary Care Infrastructure Plan with a further 4 schemes are 
planned to deliver in full. The re-provision of community hospital services in the Forest of Dean 
will remain a priority following public consultation in 2017/18. Initial meetings have been held 
with Lydney and Severnbank Practices to set out way forward for potential development of a 
new primary and community facility aligned to wider Forest of Dean Community Infrastructure 
Programme  Agreement at ICS health estates group that organisational Estates Strategies to be 
updated and subsequent ICS strategy to be completed for March 2019 with 2031 as the planning 
timeline;  
 

 Primary Care Strategy – the Primary Care Strategy works alongside One Place, One Budget, 
One System to ensure we have really high quality primary care provision. Improved access has 
been successfully rolled out across all seven localities within Gloucestershire and in addition to 
improved access, clusters have been able to utilise funding to support additional workforce 
innovations across the ICS. All seven localities now have the benefit of additional hours and 
appointments; over 42,400 additional appointments have been offered so far in 2018/19.   The 
CCG, in partnership with the Community Education Providers Network, has agreed to develop a 
Health Inequalities Tutor who will support roles which have been persistently difficult to recruit to 
in order that staff are supported and successful; this post has been appointed. The scheme will 
start in January 2019 to match with GP colleagues requirements and three of the four spaces on 
the scheme have been filled.   Currently, a two-tiered approach for online consultations to test 
the benefits for patients and practices, is being looked into, whilst also focusing on future 
developments with 111 online and the NHS App. 

6. Enabling 
Programmes 

Page 111



16 
 

 

Focus on Acute Trust Capital Development 

Following the approval of Gloucestershire Hospitals Wave 3 Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership (STP) capital bid confirmed by Department of Health (DHSC) in April 2018 for £39.5m 
capital funding, work is underway to finalise the Strategic Outline Case (SOC), to be followed by an 
Outline Business Case (OBC) in June 2019 and Full Business Case (FBC) in October 2019, to meet 
NHS Improvement assurance requirements. Construction will start in early 2020 with the new facility 
being open to patients in 2022.  
 
The preferred proposal at Strategic Outline Case stage is:-  

 a new build on the GRH site, between the Tower Block and Gallery Wing. The ground floor 
would be used to re-locate GRH Orthopaedic Outpatient service and associated diagnostics, 
currently located adjacent to GRH Emergency Department (ED) and provide additional 
diagnostic capacity.  The space vacated would be used to co-locate Ambulatory and Primary 
Care.  Each upper floor within the new build would accommodate 30-bed wards, with the option 
to integrate with the Tower Block and Gallery Wing to create co-located specialty floors.  

 development at CGH to provide an improved  Day Surgery Unit and additional theatre capacity 
 
This proposal is not dependent on service change or the outcome of any public consultation process. 
 
The SOC will be presented to GHNHSFT Trust Main Board in November before being submitted to NHS 
Improvement and Department of Health. The programme will then proceed to OBC stage that will 
consider options in more detail and confirm and develop the preferred solution.  The OBC will be 
developed with full engagement of relevant staff, patients, governors and or system partners.  
 
HCOSC will continue to receive updates during the programme via this update. 
 
 A national announcement was made by NHS England that 

Gloucestershire in June 2018 to confirm that Gloucestershire is 
to become one of only 14 Integrated Care Systems (ICS) across 
the country; we will be one of 4 new systems to join the other 10 
systems who have been working in a ICS way during 2017/18. 
 

There was an excellent visit to the system by Don Berwick, President of the Institute for Healthcare 
Improvement (USA) and Sir Professor Chris Ham, Chief Executive of the King’s Fund on the 29th 
October. The visit included a workshop on supporting the continuous quality improvement approach 
across our system and it was a chance to celebrate some of the great progress being made and involve 
staff and stakeholders from across the system. Alongside this we are currently engaging in support for 
the Gloucestershire Strategic Forum to undertake a review of system-level priorities which will be the 
first steps towards developing a refreshed 5 year plan for One Gloucestershire in line with the national 
timeline of Summer 2019. 
 
 
  

This report is provided for information and HCOSC Members are 
invited to note the contents.  
 
Mary Hutton  
ICS Lead, Gloucestershire ICS  

 

8. Recommendations 

7. Integrated Care 

Page 112



Health and Care Scrutiny Committee 

Report from the Director of Public Health

13th November 2018

__________________________________________________________________

National NHS England flu vaccination – new vaccines

Last year (2017/18) was a difficult year for influenza. There were a high number of 
cases of influenza reported, with a substantial impact on the health of our residents 
and the health and social care services which support them. There have been two 
major changes to the national influenza vaccination programme: the introduction of 
an adjuvanted trivalent vaccine for over 65 year olds; and recommendation to use a 
quadrivalent vaccine in all other groups. 

The adjuvanted trivalent vaccine has been introduced to the national programme for 
over 65 year olds, because it produces a better immune response in this group than 
the non-adjuvanted vaccine. This is particularly important because older people are 
some of the most susceptible to poor outcomes from influenza infection, including 
hospital admission and premature death. The new vaccine will offer them better 
protection. There have been some issues with the supply of the adjuvanted trivalent 
vaccine, which NHS England have been managing with Primary Care and 
community pharmacy. There is a phased delivery of vaccine, with all vaccine 
scheduled to be delivered by November. The NHS is working with providers in 
community pharmacy and primary care to help manage demand. If a person is not 
able to obtain the vaccine from their GP or community pharmacy, they should be 
directed to another provider who will give them the vaccine. 

The quadrivalent vaccine should be given to all other risk groups covered through 
the national programme. This covers a wider range of influenza subtypes, which will 
give better protection than the previous trivalent (non-adjuvanted). There are no 
supply issues with this vaccine. 

Gloucestershire County Council Staff vaccination programme

Gloucestershire County Council runs a staff and elected member vaccination 
programme. Clinics have been running throughout GGC sites across the County. 
Additionally, our staff can also access the NHS staff flu vaccination clinics, or drop 
into any Badham’s pharmacy. Uptake has been very high again this year, with 1,200 
vaccines already administered in the first month. 

Care Home staff influenza vaccination pilot

Care home residents are particularly vulnerable to influenza, this can lead to a 
difficult illness, admission to hospital, and premature mortality. Last year 
Gloucestershire had the highest number of reported influenza-like illness outbreaks 

Page 113

Agenda Item 11



in care homes in the South West. While this reflects good reporting practice from 
care homes, it also indicates a high burden of disease. Staff working with care home 
residents have a key role in protecting their residents from contracting influenza. 
Staff themselves are also susceptible to contracting influenza, which represents a 
risk for them personally and the resilience of care teams. Gloucestershire County 
Council with partners in the NHS and nursing home providers have developed and 
implemented a pilot to test two models to improve influenza vaccination uptake 
among care home staff. 36 nursing homes will have influenza vaccination 
administered to staff on-site by either an attending GP, or by a community NHS 
provider. The pilot includes a comprehensive evaluation to assess the effectiveness 
of this approach and to plan for future interventions to improve uptake in this 
important group.

Drug and Alcohol Performance

Previous discussion at HCOSC has identified a concern that performance against 
three key drug and alcohol indicators (successful completions of treatment for 
alcohol, opiates and non-opiates) is declining but is still showing as green in the 
performance scorecard. This is because performance continues to exceed the 
targets set in the contracts, which were set lower than in previous years to reflect the 
reduction in the service budget and provision, as well as the expected dip in 
performance created by recommissioning and transition.

However, we have recognised that this presentation is not necessarily helpful to 
those reviewing or scrutinising performance. As such, performance tolerances have 
been reset in the Council’s performance management system, so that this 
performance now shows as blue, rather than green. Commentary will also be 
provided on a routine basis to ensure that concerns about performance trajectory are 
highlighted, even when performance currently exceeds target.

We continue to closely monitor performance and activity by CGL to improve it, which 
they are doing as a priority through a strong focus on completions in weekly 1:1, staff 
and clinical meetings and a monthly data and performance review.

It should also be noted that these three indicators reflect one aspect of a balanced 
drug and alcohol treatment system and that good performance is being reported in 
other areas, such as the number of service users in structured treatment and waiting 
times for treatment.

Smoking

Smoking is the most important cause of preventable ill health and premature 
mortality in the UK. Smoking is a major risk factor for many diseases.  Smoking 
prevalence rates (2017) show Gloucestershire at 14.3% (similar to England), which 
is higher than the 2016 figure of 12.5%.  Smoking is highest among our most 
deprived populations with 27.8% of routine and manual workers smoking – so it is a 
significant health inequality issue.  Nationally the numbers of people accessing 
support to stop smoking is reducing partly due to the increase use of vaping as a 
quitting aid but also because many of those still smoking are lifelong heavy smokers 
that do not want to, or find it incredibly difficult, to quit.  

Page 114



Smoking cessation support is available from GPs, community pharmacies or the 
Gloucestershire Healthy Lifestyle Service (HLS).  The offer includes behaviour 
change support alongside nicotine replacement therapy. This includes support for 
people who are vaping as well.  The outcomes of the service are measured as four 
week quit rates. The combined quit rate for 2018/19 Quarter 1 is similar to Quarter 4 
of 2017/18 - 49.9%.  The quit rate of those supported by HLS is 73% which is a 
significant achievement and above the 50% national average rate - the GP and 
pharmacy quit rate remains stable at 32.4%. 

In order to continue to support those who wish to stop smoking and colleagues in 
Primary Care who are delivering this service the Public Health team are undertaking 
the following actions:

 We are discussing with the CCG the potential of developing a pilot with the 
GP Health Inequality Fellows to increase the identification and referral of 
smokers.

 We are piloting having a lifestyles coach 1 day a week in a GP Practice and 
Pharmacy in the Forest of Dean to see if this increases signposting to the 
service.

 The Healthy Lifestyle Service are conducting a primary care engagement 
campaign to increase referrals into the service. 

 We have trained a number of new stop smoking advisors, particularly in 
pharmacy. 

 We are working with colleagues in the CCG to adopt a health system 
approach to smoking cessation.  This will focus initially on the respiratory 
clinical programme and will seek to increase referrals into the Health Lifestyle 
Service from primary, secondary and community care.

Another key area of focus is smoking in pregnancy as it increases the risk of 
premature birth, still birth and miscarriage.  Prevalence data for smoking at time of 
delivery shows that Gloucestershire has a prevalence of 10.9%. (Similar to England 
10.8%).  However the national ambition is 6% by 2022.  

The number of pregnant quitters remains stable (31/33 in Quarter 1) but in order to 
significantly reduce the prevalence figure we need more women accessing the 
service and for this we rely on referrals from secondary care.  For those women that 
do access the Healthy Lifestyle Service the likelihood that they will quit is very high.  
In Quarter 1 the quit rate was 94%.  This demonstrates that the service continues to 
provide an exceptional service to pregnant smokers.  In order to increase the 
number of pregnant women engaging with the Health Lifestyle Service, we are 
undertaking the following actions:

 Reducing the number smoking in pregnancy is a priority for the Better Births 
(BB) programme.  A smoking in pregnancy sub group of BB has been 
established and an action plan is being developed.  

Page 115



 Public Health are funding a seconded maternity post for 18 months to work 
strategically across maternity and health visiting to develop, strengthen and join up 
pathways, information and training. 

 A new specialist maternity healthy lifestyles coach will work with the above post to 
increase support particularly to vulnerable women.  

 An engagement campaign around pregnant women will support this work.

Further information on the Healthy Lifestyle Service can be found on their website:  
www.hlsglos.org.uk

Late diagnosis of HIV

Late diagnosis of HIV is an important measure for sexual health in Gloucestershire. 
A late diagnosis negatively impacts on the person’s life chances and their long term 
health. Additionally, early treatment is important to reduce the viral load and 
therefore decrease the risk of infecting others. If a person has a late diagnosis, they 
will likely have a high viral load, and may not have been taking the required 
protective measures. 

Gloucestershire has now had two consecutive periods (three year rolling averages) 
which show that a higher proportion of  diagnosis of HIV in Gloucestershire are 
classified as ‘late’ compared to England. The latest period (2015 to 2017) shows that 
63.8% of diagnosis are late, compared to 41.1% of diagnosis in England. While we 
have relatively few cases of HIV in Gloucestershire, it is important to understand the 
cause of the issue, and to identify interventions to reduce the risk of late diagnosis. 

The Public Health team are working with the Public Health England Field 
Epidemiology Service to review the data behind HIV infection in more depth. A small 
group of key stakeholder organisations is being brought together to review the issues 
(and data) and to identify actions to improve detection rates. The Public Health team 
will continue to monitor this situation and to report actions and impacts to this group. 

Page 116



Health and Care Scrutiny Committee – 
Report from Commissioning Director: Adults and DASS

_________________________________________________

National Social Worker of the Year Awards 2018

There are 16 categories in total across children’s and adult services for individual 
social workers and social work teams from across England. Awards include Social 
Worker of the Year, Team of the Year, Team Leader of the Year and Newly Qualified 
Social Worker of the Year. There are also categories to recognise social work 
students, practice educators, mental health practitioners and qualified social workers 
not employed by a local authority.

We are pleased to say that four members of our Adult Social Care staff have been 
shortlisted for the National Social Worker of the Year Awards 2018 which takes place 
on 30th November.

Congratulations and good luck to …

 Kelly-Ann Page: shortlisted for Team Leader of the Year (Adult Services)
 Rebecca Payne: short listed for Newly Qualified Adult Social Worker of the Year
 Jess Adams: short listed for Adult Social Worker of the Year
 Jo-Ann Doughty: short listed for Adult Social Worker of the Year

GIS (Healthcare)

GIS (Healthcare) deliver the Integrated Community Equipment Service in 
Gloucestershire and following a recent audit have successfully retained the 
Community Equipment Code of Practice Standards (CECOPS) Award and passed 
with distinction.

Adult Care Single Programme of Change

The overall programme to modernise and transform Adult Social Care continues at 
pace. The programme which consists of over 80 projects is still on track to deliver a 
modern Adult Social Care fit for the next ten years. The focus is on managing 
demand and this is being achieved through a culture change away from 
automatically providing services to a model that prevents people entering care 
unnecessarily, reduces dependency and delays people entering into social care 
sooner than is necessary. The approach is based on the new duties for local 
authorities described in the Care Act 2014. The three tier conversations that front 
line staff have with people seeking help is now well embedded. Most staff that are 

Page 117

Agenda Item 12



engaged in this work considers that it produces better outcomes for people because 
support is tailored more precisely to their needs than the previous deficit model. Staff 
satisfaction levels are also high. In the three innovation sites early indications are 
that the average number of completed assessments has doubled per week and the 
working days to complete an assessment have reduced by over 50%. Whilst these 
figures are extremely encouraging it must be noted that we are still in the early 
stages of this work and sample sizes are small. 

Some two months ago Adult Care’s delivery partner iMPOWER revised the way in 
which they work with the Council. This change resulted in the deployment of more 
senior iMPOWER staff members working to a narrower brief. It is now clear that this 
change is working well and having a much greater impact. The iMPOWER team is 
working with council’s officers predominantly on the revised system for tier 2 short 
term services. 

The annual Care Choices - Care and Support Guide is due for publication in mid 
November. This comprehensive directory of care home and domiciliary care 
providers is paid for by the Gloucestershire Care Providers Association. However 
Gloucestershire County Council is allowed to describe within the Directory the 
function and role of Adult Social Care along with an introduction by Cllr Kathy 
Williams. These pages provide an opportunity to communicate Adult Social Care’s 
continuing move towards asset based 3 tier conversations. The Care and Support 
Guide has a wide distribution and constitutes another plank in the management of 
demand at the front door.

Page 118



 

 1 

 
 

Gloucestershire Health and Care Overview and  
Scrutiny Committee (HCOSC) 

13 November 2018  
 

NHS Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group 
(GCCG)  

Clinical Chair and Accountable Officer’s Report  
 
1. Introduction 
 

Section A provides a general NHS Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning 
Group (GCCG) commissioner update, incorporating a national consultation 
section.  
 
Section B provides a CCG commissioner update focussing on primary medical 
care. 
 
Section C provides Trusts’ updates from: 2gether NHS Foundation Trust 
(2GNHSFT); Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust (GCSNHST) and 
Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT). 

 
Integrated Care System (ICS) 
ICS Lead Report is provided as a separate agenda item. 

 
 

2. Section A: Local NHS Commissioner Update, 
 Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group 
 (GCCG)   

These are items are for information and noting.  

Please note some of the items reported below may also feature in more detail in 
other reports prepared for HCOSC e.g. ICS Lead Report, wherever possible we 
seek to avoid too much duplication.  

 

2.0 NHS 70 Awards 
  

To Celebrate the 70th Birthday of the National Health Service, established on 5 
July 1948, Gloucestershire hosted the NHS 70 Awards last month. The 
Gloucestershire NHS 70 Awards was a night of inspiring stories that 
acknowledged the care and support that is given in people's own homes, in GP 
surgeries, in the community, workplaces and in hospitals across the county. 

Page 119

Agenda Item 13



 

 2 

Nominations were received from members of the public, partners and staff 
working in local services. 
 
The awards, held at Cheltenham Racecourse on 27 September 2018, were 
hosted by ‘Embarrassing Bodies’ presenter Dr Dawn Harper, a local 
Gloucestershire GP. The evening included three brilliant performances from the 
Coady Dance Studio. Their dynamic and exciting display was a great way to 
break up the awards and celebrated yet more wonderful things about 
Gloucestershire. Victoria Newland shared her experience of exemplary local 
services in a presentation entitled: My Cancer Journey & The NHS. 
 
A full list of winners can be found at: 
https://www.gloucestershirelive.co.uk/news/health/gloucestershires-nhs-heroes-
hailed-awards-2054967 
 

2.1 Clinical Programmes 
 
2.1.1 KiActiv Programme  
 

KiActiv® Health is a clinically proven digital behaviour change programme that 

redefines the use of physical activity in the improvement management of Diabetes 

and other Long Term Conditions. The CCG took part in a 6 month project to 

demonstrate how Diabetes can be improved by empowering people with Type 2 

diabetes to take responsibility for their self-management of personalised physical 

activity. 93% of participants completed the 12 week programme, with 97% of 

participants improving their physical activity. This resulted in improvements in 

weight, a reduction in blood glucose levels and was particularly notable for its 

impact on comorbidities. 

The Programme was implemented in 3 GP practices with different demographics 

and levels of deprivation to demonstrate scalability and replicability across the 

health economy. These outcomes demonstrate the programme’s positive impact 

on inequalities and highlight the opportunity to support the transition from condition 

specific pathways to a more holistic patient centric service. The initiative was 

supported and funded by the West of England Academic Health Science Network. 

The CCG has commissioned a further 500 places starting in the autumn of 2018 to 

roll this out across the county. The CCG has also been shortlisted for a Health 

Service Journal Award for this project. 

2.1.2 Multidisciplinary Diabetes Foot Team (MDFT) 

Following receipt of National Diabetes Transformation funding from NHS England 

in June 2017, the CCG and Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

(GHNHSFT) now has an established Multidisciplinary Diabetes Foot Team 

(MDFT). The MDFT aims to reduce the number of below knee amputations, which 

can be one of the complications for people with diabetes. 

Whilst there has been an established MDFT clinic at Gloucestershire Royal 

Hospital (GRH) for the last 6 months, a second MDFT outpatient clinic has also 

started at Cheltenham General Hospital (CGH) in September 2018. This clinic will 

Page 120

https://www.gloucestershirelive.co.uk/news/health/gloucestershires-nhs-heroes-hailed-awards-2054967
https://www.gloucestershirelive.co.uk/news/health/gloucestershires-nhs-heroes-hailed-awards-2054967


 

 3 

be facilitated weekly on Tuesday afternoons by podiatry, consultant diabetologist, a 

Vascular consultant and a new foot and ankle surgeon. These clinics provide a 

weekly multi-professional foot care service to patients in order to treat and better 

manage active foot disease with a view to improving patient outcomes through 

reducing complications, ulcerations, amputations and associated costs of caring for 

the complications of diabetic foot problems. 

2.1.3 Tinnitus Support Group 

Following joint working between the British Tinnitus association (BTA), Gloucester 

Deaf Association and the CCG, a support group has been launched to support 

people in Gloucestershire with long term tinnitus for whom no further treatment is 

available. The group is held in Gloucester on the first Tuesday of each month and 

the first group meeting was held in September 2018.  

Through this support and advice we hope to reduce demand on primary care, as 

people become more able to self-manage their tinnitus. A range of speakers will be 

presenting to the support group to share knowledge, use of local services/ 

voluntary and community support. An evaluation will be carried out six months from 

launch to assess the benefit to patients of the support group. Based on these 

findings a decision will be made on further expansion of support groups elsewhere 

in the county. 

2.1.4 Social Prescribing 

Emerging data is showing a trend of reduced A & E attendances and emergency 

admissions for people supported by the Community Wellbeing Service. As a 

national social prescribing demonstrator site for NHS England, the CCG has been 

asked to host a fixed-term part-time post for a South West Regional Social 

Prescribing facilitator.  

Phase two ‘arts on prescription’ projects are due to commence delivery by 

Voluntary and Community Sector arts partners this autumn. These interventions 

are part of a targeted social prescribing offer (Social Prescribing Plus) to support 

people to self-manage their long term conditions. Programmes in October 2018 

are: 

 Breathe In, Sing Out – 12 week singing on prescription programmes for 

people with diagnosed chronic respiratory conditions. Groups run in 

Gloucester, Forest of Dean, Cheltenham and Stroud. Delivered by 

Mindsong 

 Flying High – a nine month art on prescription programme for children and 

young people diagnosed with Type 1 diabetes. Commenced in Gloucester 

with a circus and dance workshop during October half term. Delivered by 

Artshape and Cinderford Artspace 

2.1.5 New Frailty Clinical Programme Group (CPG) established 

Page 121



 

 4 

A Frailty CPG was established in July 2018. The meeting was well attended by a wide 

range of stakeholders, and successfully harnessed energy and enthusiasm for 

working together on frailty within Gloucestershire. The first meeting concentrated on 

defining a vision and key aims of the CPG. The vision of the Frailty CPG is to work 

together to: 

 Develop a collaborative way of working across health, social care and third 

sector to support people who are at risk of becoming frail; 

 Ensure that people who are frail, at any age, have a person-centred approach 

aiming to improve their health and well-being; and 

 Reduce complications of frailty and improve the quality of life of those living 

with frailty. 

2.2 Commissioning Policies 
 
2.2.1 Assisted Conception Policy Update 
 

Following the annual clinical review of Gloucestershire CCG’s Assisted Conception 
Policy it was recognised to be out of line with the majority of CCGs both nationally 
and locally with regard to the number of assisted fertility attempts (IVF/ICSI cycles) 
that are funded by the NHS.  As at October 2017, GCCG was one of only 12% of 
CCGs in the country offering couples three or more attempts, with 23% offering 
two, 65% offering one and 4% offering none.   
 
Therefore GCCG will be updating its policy to a position of offering two assisted 
fertility attempts with all existing access criteria remaining unchanged.  It should be 
noted that IVF/ICSI success rates with the current assisted conception provider are 
very good in comparison to the national average and the updated policy will only 
apply to newly referred couples.  

 

2.3 Urgent Care 

2.3.1 Cinapsis (Advice and Guidance Tool) 

Gloucestershire Integrated Care System has invested in a telephony tool which will 

support GPs and on the scene Paramedics who are considering taking a patient to 

the acute trust. A direct conversation with the Physician of the day will support 

decision making on the most appropriate pathway, be it to an Emergency 

Department or elsewhere either on the day or in a planned slot. The aim of the 

project is to ensure appropriate advice and reduced admissions to hospital.  

We will go live with a pilot GP practice early this winter, supporting a test of the 

technical system and clinical pathways / governance. Full roll-out to GP practices 

is anticipated to support the delivery of services during winter 2018/19 with 

paramedic access scheduled for the new year. Planned care elements focusing on 

dermatology and ophthalmology are also in development, again aimed at ensuring 

advice on presenting condition and referral. 

2.4 Community Offer 

Page 122



 

 5 

2.4.1 Home Care – Test & Learn Initiatives 

During the summer, the Integrated Brokerage Team has commissioned various 

“test and learn” initiatives, to get people home from hospital as quickly as possible. 

These include: 

Bridging Service - To enable people who have existing packages of care 

to return home from hospital with care whilst their provider can re-rota in 

care and support to meet their needs, which may have changed after a 

period in hospital. Last winter, these people may have needed to be 

discharged to a care home for a short stay. 

Discharge Home to Assess (DH2A) - This is an enhanced Hospital to 

Home Service for people with dementia to enable discharge home with 

greater levels of support. 

Complex Care / Live-in Care - This is a three month pilot, operating on a 

hub and spoke basis. This service is designed to support dementia and 

complex care arrangements and / or prevent social admissions. 

2.4.2 Age UK / British Red Cross – Out of Hospital Service 

The Out of Hospital (OOH) service is formally commissioned by the CCG to 

provide an integrated service to support the overall discharge pathway and 

process within and across GHNHSFT. During 2017/18 the service extended its 

scope to support discharges from Cirencester Community Hospital as a pilot, with 

the view that this would have an associated and positive impact on the discharge 

flows within the acute hospitals. 

Following the evaluation of this pilot, with a small investment, this extension has 

been rolled out across all Gloucestershire Community Hospitals. It is envisaged 

that the service will provide the support needed to build resilience and increase 

confidence for older people to live well at home, thereby mitigating the risk of 

readmission, whilst simultaneously making an associated and material contribution 

to improving the discharge flows from Gloucestershire acute hospitals. 

2.4.3 System Wide Frequent Attenders 

There are a number of initiatives  to provide additional support to frequent 

attenders or high users of the health and social care system, for example the High 

Intensity Network, mental health frequent attender post in Emergency Departments 

and provider specific initiatives. A report has been built within the CCG to link 

pseudonymised1 health activity data for people who meet the criteria of a ‘frequent 

attender’ across the system, or in one or more urgent care services.  

These patients are often classified as ‘complex’ or ‘frail’. Currently the following 

services are included: ED attendances, outpatient appointments, emergency 

                                                
1
 Pseudonymization is a data management and de-identification procedure by which personally identifiable 

information fields within a data record are replaced by one or more artificial identifiers, or pseudonyms. A 
single pseudonym for each replaced field or collection of replaced fields makes the data record less 
identifiable while remaining suitable for data analysis and data processing. 

Page 123



 

 6 

admissions, some community and mental health services, NHS 111, Out of Hours 

and the Community Wellbeing service. Discussions are underway to include 

SWAST and primary care information within the dataset. The report provides 

aggregated information about the demographics of frequent users and their cost to 

the system, as well as individual level information about which services individuals 

use. Having a system-wide understanding of how frequent attenders are 

interacting with services gives commissioners and providers the opportunity to: 

 identify services where an earlier intervention could potentially reduce or avoid 

frequent attendance further upstream, providing improved health and wellbeing 

and better quality of care for individuals; 

 understand where resources can be better used to prevent pressure on acute 

services; and 

 ensure we are appropriately meeting the needs of this client group, including 

identifying commissioning gaps, reducing duplication and ensuring integrated 

approaches to their care. 

 

Discussions are ongoing with key stakeholders to scope how the model can be 

used within Integrated Locality Boards (ILBs) at population and individual level and 

early feedback is very positive. 

As requested at the HCOSC meeting in September 2018, there is a ‘focus’ on ILBs in the 

ICS Lead Report to this committee.  

2.4.4. Adult Mental Health - Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

The Adult Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy has co-produced with the Mental 

Health and Wellbeing Partnership Board. Over the next quarter we will be seeking 

approval from both the CCG and County Council to endorse the strategy. 

As requested at the HCOSC meeting in September 2018, there is a ‘focus’ on the work of 

the Mental Health Clinical Programme in the ICS Lead Report to this committee. 

 
2.5 Enabling Active Communities 
 
2.5.1 Community blood pressure testing 
 

£100,000 of new funding has been awarded bythe British Heart Foundation (BHF)  
to the CCG to pave the way for a ground-breaking community based approach to 
detect high blood pressure. 
 
With funding provided over two years the grant will be used to recruit and train 
local blood pressure champions. 
 
Once recruited, the champions will be trained on how to take blood pressure and 
interpret the readings, when to refer to other services, what lifestyle advice to give 
and the risks of high blood pressure. They will then create, advertise and run local 
blood pressure events, with the support of the CCG, within their own communities.  
 

Page 124



 

 7 

Their main aim will be to provide 5,000 tests each year to the people of 
Gloucestershire. It is hoped that this will identify some of the estimated 65,000 
people who are currently living with undiagnosed high blood pressure in the 
county. The project will firstly target the more deprived and Black and Minority 
(BME) communities in Gloucester city. 
 
Service specifications are currently being developed and the programme is 
planned to go live in April 2019. 
 
NHS Gloucestershire CCG will collaborate with Healthy Living Pharmacies, the 
Voluntary Sector, Healthy Lifestyles Service, the Friendship Cafe and locally run 
groups in Gloucester for the project. 

 
2.5.2 Five myths around the flu jab and who is eligible for a free vaccine 
 

Every year, we hear common misconceptions about the flu vaccination such as ‘I 
don’t need the flu jab, I’m fit as a fiddle’ or ‘I’m not having the vaccine as it gives 
you flu’. 
 
As a result, the CCG has compiled a list of the myths surrounding the 
immunisation programme and the real facts behind them in a bid to encourage 
those eligible to take up the vaccination. 
 
The Myths Debunked: 
 
You can’t die from flu  
 
According to Public Health England, there were an estimated 15,969 deaths from 
flu in 2017/18. This is a 9% decrease in flu related deaths between 2016/17 and 
2017/18 
 
The flu vaccine gives you flu 
 
You cannot get flu from the jab because the adult vaccine doesn’t contain live 
viruses.  Some people experience mild side effects such as soreness around the 
site of the jab or aching muscles but this is your immune system responding to the 
vaccine. 
 
I had the vaccine last year, so I am covered 
 
Just because you had the vaccination last year, it doesn’t mean you are covered 
from any new strains of flu circulating, so you need to have it every year. 
 
I feel well, so I can’t have flu 
 
You do not have to be showing any symptoms of flu to have it and therefore pass it 
on to someone else. Aside from having your flu vaccine, the best way to prevent 
the spread of flu is to practice good hand hygiene. Catch coughs and sneezes in a 
tissue, throw the tissue away and wash your hands. 
 
My child will need to have an injection? 
 
For most children, the flu vaccine is not usually an injection, just a quick and easy 
nasal spray. Children aged 2 and 3 receive the vaccine through their GP and 

Page 125



 

 8 

children in reception and years 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 receive it in school. If you have a 
child who is of the eligible age, make sure you sign the consent form allowing them 
to have the flu vaccine at school. 
 
This year, a new enhanced vaccine will be available for people over 65 to help 
their body’s immune system stay better protected from the disease. 
 
The free nasal spray vaccination programme will also be extended to children in 
year five at school. 
 
Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust’s maternity teams will be offering 
the vaccine to those attending its antenatal clinic appointments for the fourth year 
in a row. 
 
People working in the NHS are also being helped to receive the flu jab through a 
range of initiatives taking place including peer vaccination and drop-in clinics in the 
workplace. 
 
Who is eligible for the free flu vaccination this winter 2018/19: 
 

 Those aged 65 years and over 

 Pregnant women 

 Those living in a residential or nursing home 

 The main carer of an older or disabled person 

 Children aged 2-3 and those in reception class, and school years 1-5 (to 
those in year 5 for the first time) 

 Frontline health and social care workers should also be offered the flu 
vaccination by their employer. 

 Those aged under 65 with serious health conditions including: 

 A heart problem 

 A chest complaint or breathing difficulties, including COPD, bronchitis, 
emphysema or asthma 

 Kidney disease 

 Lowered immunity due to disease or treatment (such as steroid medication 
or cancer treatment) 

 Liver disease 

 Stroke or a transient ischaemic attack (TIA) 

 Diabetes 

 A neurological condition e.g. multiple sclerosis (MS), cerebral palsy or 
learning disability 

 A problem with spleen e.g. sickle cell disease, or you have had spleen 
removed. 

 
For more information, visit our Flu Free pages 
https://www.gloucestershireccg.nhs.uk/your-health/health-topic/winter/seasonal-
flu/seasonal-flu-vaccination/ 

 
To book your flu jab, contact your GP surgery or local pharmacy by the end of 
November. 
 
 

 

Page 126

https://www.gloucestershireccg.nhs.uk/your-health/health-topic/winter/seasonal-flu/seasonal-flu-vaccination/
https://www.gloucestershireccg.nhs.uk/your-health/health-topic/winter/seasonal-flu/seasonal-flu-vaccination/


 

 9 

3. Department of Health and Social Care and NHS England 
 Consultations 
 
3.1 Information regarding Department of Health and Social Care consultations is 
 available via the GOV.UK website: 
 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultat
 ions 

 
Information regarding NHS England consultations is available via the NHS 
England website: https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/ 
 
These websites also include responses to closed consultations. 
 

3.2 Engaging on the Long Term Plan for the NHS 
 
On 18th June 2018 the Prime Minister set out a funding settlement for the NHS 
in England for the next five years. 
 
In return, the NHS has been asked to set out a Long Term Plan for the future of 
the NHS, setting out its ambitions for improvement over the next decade, and 
its plans to meet them over the five years of the funding settlement. 
 
18 national working groups, comprising local and national health and care 
system leaders, clinical experts and patient/voluntary sector representatives, 
have been engaging with relevant stakeholders to develop specific proposals 
for inclusion in the plan. 
 
During September 2018 those national working groups have organised or 
attended over 150 meetings with stakeholders and received hundreds of written 
submissions. 
 
An online call for views has also enabled other stakeholders, in particular 
members of the public and front-line NHS staff, to inform policy development. 
More than 2,000 submissions were received through the portal. 
 
The publication of the Long Term Plan, expected before Christmas 2018, will 
be followed by indicative five-year funding allocations for CCGs and other 
associated guidance. This will provide the basis on which local health and care 
organisations, working together as part of systems, can develop detailed plans 
for the next financial year by April 2019, and strategies for the next five years 
by the summer of 2019. 
 
Locally staff, patients, the public and other stakeholders will have the 
opportunity to help our local health and care system to determine what the long 
term plan means for Gloucestershire, and how local services need to adapt and 
improve in the short and medium term. The CCG will shortly be talking with 
community partners such as Healthwatch Gloucestershire to draw up plans for 
local engagement. HCOSC will receive regular updates.  
 

3.3.1 Calorie labelling for food and drink served outside of the home 
 https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/calorie-labelling-for-food-and-
 drink-served-outside-of-the-home 
 

Page 127

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/calorie-labelling-for-food-and-drink-served-outside-of-the-home
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/calorie-labelling-for-food-and-drink-served-outside-of-the-home


 

 10 

 This consultation is seeking views on making places that serve food and drink 
 outside of the home show calorie information (calorie labelling).  
 This consultation closes at 11:59pm on 7 December 2018. 
 
3.3.2 Ending the sale of energy drinks to children 
 https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/ending-the-sale-of-energy-drinks-
 to-children 
 The government is seeking views on whether the sale of energy drinks to 
 children should be stopped. 
 This consultation closes at 11:59pm on 21 November 2018 
 
3.4 Department of Health and Social Care Policies 
 

The following web link provides access to Department of Health and Social 
Care Policies: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/policies?keywords=&organisations%5B%5D=d
epartment-of-health  

 
 

4. Section B: Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning 
 Group (GCCG) primary medical care commissioning 
 update   

These items are for information and noting. 

 

4.1 Cirencester practices merger 
 

St Peters Road and The Avenue Surgeries in Cirencester merged contractually 

from October 2018. This merger contributes towards sustainable primary care 

services for the people of Cirencester.  

4.2 College Yard Surgery, Gloucester closure 

 

Unfortunately due to the unexpected illness of one of the partners, the Alney 

Practice had to apply to close its branch surgery at College Yard, Gloucester at the 

end of October 2018, an earlier date than previously approved by the CCG Primary 

Care Commissioning Committee (PCCC).  

 

4.3 Hesters Way and Spring Bank, Cheltenham 

 

Healthcare for people living in Hester’s Way and Springbank in Cheltenham is now 

secure with the move of Springbank Practice’s main surgery location to the Healthy 

Living Centre on Hester’s Way and with Springbank Community Resource Centre 

becoming a branch surgery location.  

 

4.4. Care Quality Commission 

 

The Care Quality Commission (CQC) has recently carried out inspections at 

Gloucester City Health Centre and Romney House Surgery in Tetbury; both have 

Page 128

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/ending-the-sale-of-energy-drinks-to-children
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/ending-the-sale-of-energy-drinks-to-children
https://www.gov.uk/government/policies?keywords=&organisations%5B%5D=department-of-health
https://www.gov.uk/government/policies?keywords=&organisations%5B%5D=department-of-health


 

 11 

retained a ‘good’ overall rating. Rosebank Health had been listed as ‘requires 

improvement’ overall. However, the practice completed the work highlighted from 

the previous visit and the CQC revisited in August 2018, and it has subsequently 

been rated as ‘good’ overall. 

 

4.5 Improved access cluster pilots 

 

The outcome of the evaluation of the 14 Improved Access Cluster Pilots in 

Gloucestershire is currently being compiled. Preliminary results indicate that the 

pilots have been received well by patients, with 99% of people saying they would 

‘absolutely’ or ‘probably recommend’ an Improved Access appointment to a friend 

or family member. Examples of feedback received include:  

“As I am working till 6.30 it was amazing news I can see a doctor today” 

“Excellent that I was able to see someone the same day. Can't improve on that!” 

Some of the new ways of working are already showing good results, for example 

the Paramedic delivering the Home Visiting Service in Tewkesbury Town sees an 

average of 6 people per day. This frees up an estimated 15 hours of GP time per 

week and provides patients with more timely visits.  

4.6 GP Forward View and Primary Care Strategy progress: Annual 

 Commissioning Event 

 

Attended by more than 200 primary care colleagues, the morning of the Annual 

Commissioning Event focussed on clinical topics for local GPs. The afternoon 

session, attended by system partners and National speakers, was a celebration of 

successes and progress over the last year and an opportunity to learn for the 

future.  

 

Speakers included: Dr Ned Naylor from NHS England; Professor Nick Harding 

OBE, Chair of Sandwell and West Birmingham CCG and NHSE Senior Medical 

Advisor on Integrated Care Systems; Dr Nav Chana, Chair of the National 

Association of Primary Care (NAPC) and Dr Stewart Smith a GP Partner from St 

Austell, who spoke about his experience of Primary Care Home.  

Primary Care Home is an innovative approach to strengthening and redesigning 

primary care. Developed by the National Association of Primary Care (NAPC), the 

model brings together a range of health and social care professionals to work 

together to provide enhanced personalised and preventative care for their local 

community. Staff come together as a complete care community - drawn from GP 

surgeries, community, mental health and acute trusts, social care and the voluntary 

sector – to focus on local population needs and provide care closer to patients’ 

homes. 2. 

                                                
2
 https://www.england.nhs.uk/new-care-models/pch/ 

 

Page 129

https://www.england.nhs.uk/new-care-models/pch/


 

 12 

4.7 General Practice Development Programme 

The final element of the General Practice Development Programme ‘Releasing 

Time for Care’ commenced in September 2018. Building on programmes at 

individual and Practice level, clusters will now be facilitated to work on High 

Impacts Actions of their choice. Nine practices are taking part in this programme at 

this time, with a further cohort starting in January 2019. 

4.8 Learning Disability Enhanced Service (LDES) 

The Learning Disability Enhanced Service (LDES) was first introduced in 2008/09. 

The current enhanced service is designed to encourage practices to identify all 

patients aged 14 and over with learning disabilities, to maintain a learning 

disabilities 'health check' register and offer them an annual health check, which will 

include producing a health action plan. 

An annual health check is an opportunity for a holistic review of a person’s health, 

lifestyle, medication and interrelated risks to health and wellbeing. It is also a 

chance to meet people when they are more likely to be well, to understand more 

about their lives and to gain mutual trust to help develop a long-term relationship. 

In Gloucestershire there are 3,329 people registered with a learning disability on 

GP registers who would be eligible for an annual health check. In 2017/18, 2,155 

claims were made by practices for completed annual health checks, 64.3% of the 

people registered with a learning disability on GP registers. This is slightly down 

from 2016/17, when 2,209 (66%) annual health checks were completed. The NHS 

England target is currently 65%, which rises to 75% in 2018/19. 

An Annual Health Check Working Group was set up in 2017 to improve the uptake 

and quality of annual health checks in line with the national requirements. 

It is disappointing that the uptake of LD annual health checks has not increased 

during 2017/18. However it should be noted every Gloucestershire practice has 

now signed up to take part in the DES in 2018/19. 

There has been significant training and support provided to GP Practices through 

individual practices and Localities. We are hopeful that the investment into local LD 

resources, communication with GPs, practice managers, providers of LD services 

there will be an improvement in uptake in 2018/19. 

 

Page 130



 

 13 

5. Section C: Local Providers’ updates  
 

This Section includes updates from 2gether NHS Foundation Trust 
(2GNHSFT), Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust (GCSNHST) and 
Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT),  
 

These items are for information and noting. 
 
 

5.0 Trusts Merger update 
 

In September 2018, the Boards of 2gether (2GNHSFT) and Gloucestershire 
Care Services NHS Trust (GCSNHST) formally approved the submission of the 
Strategic Case to join the two Trusts in order to transform the way in which 
community physical health, mental health and learning disability services are 
delivered. 2GNHSFT’s Council of Governors has also given the case its full 
support, and the document is now with NHS Improvement for review. 
Preparation of a Full Business Case is under way, with a view to seeking formal 
approvals to merge the organisations during the summer of 2019.  
 
As previously reported, engagement has been taking place with stakeholders 
throughout. Most recently this has included a ‘Values Week’, during which 
approximately 2,000 colleagues and 50 service users, patients and carers 
gathered together to help shape the culture, vision and values of the new 
organisation. Further engagement will take place, involving colleagues as well 
as the people the two Trusts serve.  
 
Work has also commenced on determining the name of the new organisation 
and on appointing a ‘Shadow Board’ for the new Trust. While the Trusts remain 
two separate legal entities, many of the more informal Trust forums are now 
held jointly. This includes joint team meetings, Senior Leadership Network 
events, and Joint Staff Forums. Work is under way to align the overarching 
strategies and policies of both Trusts.  
 
Although the formal merger of the Trusts will not be completed until next year, 
early work to transform service delivery is already under way. While this is likely 
to take at least three years, many benefits to our communities will be delivered 
sooner. 
 
 

5.1 
2
gether NHS Foundation Trust (

2
GNHSFT) 

 
5.1.1 World Mental Health Day 
 

October 10 is World Mental Health Day, and the theme for this year’s awareness 
raising occasion was young people’s mental health. A range of activities took 
place, involving partners across Gloucestershire, including an event showcasing 
third sector organisations working to promote mental wellbeing in our communities. 
2gether attended and was involved in organising the event, held at Forest Green 
Rovers Football Club, with partners such as the CCG, VCS Alliance and Office of 
the Police and Crime Commissioner.  
 

Page 131



 

 14 

Other activities included a stand at Tewkesbury Community Hospital, as well as a 
wide range of social media activity, including blogs from people who have either 
experienced mental illness as a young person, or who have expertise in supporting 
and treating young people with their mental health.  
 

5.1.2 Volunteer Tea Party 
 

A tea party has been held to celebrate the contribution of the Trust’s 150 
volunteers and experts by experience.  
 
The event was the sixth annual celebration of its sort, and included the 
presentation of certificates to many volunteers, as well as the Trust’s experts by 
experience – people who use their own personal experience of mental illness or 
learning disability to act as advisors. 
 
Trust Chair Ingrid Barker hosted the occasion, which was a fantastic celebration 
and an opportunity for us to pay tribute to everything our volunteers and experts by 
experience do for the Trust and the communities it serves. 
 
This group of colleagues bring significant expertise, energy and knowledge and 
enhance the Trust and its services. More than 54 volunteers are registered with 
²gether, and they offer their time to enhance and improve the services the Trust 
provides. 
 
Their roles include: 

 Running a walking group 

 Providing music as therapy 

 Working in the Trust library, supporting reading groups and delivering books 
to inpatients 

 Driving service users to and from appointments 

 Helping at individuals at meal times 

 Providing peer support at the Severn & Wye Recovery College 
 

There are more than 95 experts by experience registered with the Trust. They also 
help in a variety of ways, including sitting on interview panels when staff are being 
recruited, advising on trust policies, helping to provide staff training, and 
participating in focus groups to provide feedback on important issues the Trust is 
working on, including its long term strategies. 

 
5.1.3 Annual ROSCAs 
 

The care, compassion, commitment and dedication of 2gether colleagues was 
celebrated during the 11th annual Recognising Outstanding Service and 
Contribution Awards (ROSCAs), held in July 2018. Around 125 staff, volunteers, 
service users and carers from across Gloucestershire and Herefordshire attended 
and awards were presented in 10 categories. In addition, long service awards were 
presented to staff who have given either 20, 30 or 40 years’ dedication to the NHS, 
totalling an impressive 2580 years between them. 
 
Paul Roberts, Chief Executive, 2GNHSFT acknowledged the success of colleagues 
who go the extra mile every day. Shining examples of teamwork, innovation, 
leadership and putting service users and carers at the heart of everything were 
heard in over 200 nominations from staff, service users and carers. 

Page 132



 

 15 

The ROSCAs judging panel consisted of service users, trust governors, trade 
unions and sponsors. 

 
5.1.4 PLACE Assessments 
 

The latest Patient Led Assessment of the Care Environment (PLACE) results put 
2GNHSFT above the national average for mental health and learning disability 
settings in all of the six domains for the first time since PLACE began in 2013. The 
2018 assessments took place between April and May this year. 
 
The results demonstrate the great care and attention that is paid to providing high 
quality, therapeutic facilities for service users which has a positive impact on the 
experience people feel while being cared for by the Trust. 
 
PLACE are self-assessments carried out by local volunteers who go into hospitals 
as part of a team. The teams assess how well the environment supports a number 
of non-clinical aspects of the premises identified as important by patients and the 
public.  These aspects are known as domains: privacy and dignity, food, 
cleanliness, general building maintenance, and how well the needs of patents with 
dementia and disabilities are met. 
 
The criteria for each domain represent good practice as identified by professional 
organisations whose members are responsible for the delivery of these services, 
including the Hospital Caterers Association (HCA); Health Estates and Facilities 
Management Association (HefmA) and Association of Healthcare Cleaning 
Professionals (AHCP); all three of which the Trust or its leadership team are 
members of. 
 
PLACE focuses entirely on the care environment and does not cover clinical care 
provision or how well staff are doing their job.  It is the only non-clinical 
assessment of the Trust’s activities. 
 
PLACE aims to promote the principles established by the NHS Constitution that 
focus on areas that matter to patients, families and carers: putting patients first, 
active feedback from the public, patients and staff, adhering to basics of quality 
care and committing to ensure services are provided in a clean and safe 
environment that is fit for purpose. Where standards fall short, they should be able 
to draw it to the attention of managers and hold the service to account. 
The assessments take place every year, and the results are reported publicly via 
NHS Digital to help drive improvements in the care environment. 
 
Healthwatch Gloucestershire and Healthwatch Herefordshire were the lead 
partners in undertaking the PLACE assessments for ²gether this year. Healthwatch 
provided patient assessors who made up a minimum of 50% of an inspection team 
with a minimum of two patient assessors on each inspection. The Trust provided 
the other 50% of the inspection team, providing at least one senior nursing lead 
and one Estates and Facilities Department lead on each inspection team. 
 
The following sites were assessed this year: 

 Wotton Lawn Hospital (Gloucester) 

 Charlton Lane Hospital (Cheltenham) 

 Laurel House (Cheltenham) 

 Honeybourne (Cheltenham) 

Page 133



 

 16 

 Berkeley House (Stroud) 

 Oak House (Herefordshire)  

 Stonebow (Herefordshire)  
 

Domain Cleanliness 
Food 
overall 

Privacy, 
dignity and 
wellbeing 

Condition, 
appearance 
and 
maintenance 

Dementia Disability 

Overall 
²gether score 

99.64% 94.60% 93.11% 99.20% 90.18% 91.19% 

National Average 
MH/LD 

98.40% 90.60% 91.00% 95.40% 88.30% 87.70% 

 
 
5.1.5 AHPs Day 
 

The first annual Allied Health Professionals Day took place on October 15th 2018. 
The occasion celebrated the contribution of the 14 different categories of Allied 
Health Professionals:  

 Art Therapists 

 Drama therapists 

 Music therapists 

 Chiropodists/podiatrists 

 Dietitians 

 Occupational therapists 

 Operating Department Practitioners 

 Orthoptists 

 Osteopaths 

 Paramedics 

 Physiotherapists 

 Prosthetists and Orthotists 

 Radiographers 

 Speech and language therapists 
 
At ²gether, we have five of the 14 professions working within our teams. They 
make a huge contribution to enabling recovery and supporting wellbeing across all 
age groups in hospital and community settings. Arts therapists, dietitians, 
occupational therapists, physiotherapists and speech and language therapists 
work alongside medical and nursing colleagues to provide their unique perspective 
and expertise to work with service users and carers to achieve their goals. The 
occasion was celebrated in various ways, particularly on social media.  

 
5.1.6 Equally Well  
 

Colleagues from 2gether attended the launch of an historic charter for equal health 
and the launch of the new Equally Well initiative at the Royal College of Nursing.  
The Charter for Equal Health offers a vision for improved physical health support 
for anyone living in the UK with a severe mental illness. It sets out how 
organisations working nationally and locally will tackle one of the biggest 
inequalities in health anywhere in the UK.  

Page 134



 

 17 

 
Today, people living with a severe mental illness such as schizophrenia have a life 
expectancy that is up to 20 years shorter than average. Equally Well UK will bring 
together organisations that have a part to play in reducing this inequality to take 
concerted action to achieve significant and sustained change. 

 
5.1.7 Interim Director of Nursing 
 

John Trevains has been appointed as Interim Director of Quality for 2GNHSFT , 
following the departure of Marie Crofts, who has taken up a new position with 
Birmingham Women’s and Children’s Hospital Trust.  John is exceptionally well 
qualified for this role having held a range of posts across health and social care 
settings over a 22-year long career. Well known both nationally and locally within 
the NHS, John is currently the Head of Mental Health and Learning Disabilities 
Nursing for NHS England. Prior to this he has held a number of senior leadership 
roles including Assistant Director of Nursing, Patient Experience, Safeguarding and 
Mental Health Homicide Investigations (NHS England South Central), Clinical Lead 
for the National Transformation Care Programme and Deputy Director of Nursing 
for ²gether. 
 
A Registered Mental Health Nursing graduate of Plymouth University, John also 
holds an MSc in Quality Improvement in Healthcare. He officially started in his new 
role on 22 October 2018.  

 
5.2 Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust (GCSNHST) 

 
5.2.1 Sexual Assault Service increases accessibility for victims in need of help 
 and support 

 

The Trust’s Sexual Assault Referral Centre (SARC) has expanded its service to 
improve accessibility for people affected by rape or sexual assault in need of help 
and support. 

 

Based at Hope House, Gloucestershire Royal Hospital, the SARC is available 
24/7, 365 days a year, to provide victims of rape or sexual assault, their friends 
and families, with access to emotional, psychological, medical and practical help. 

 

As well as expanding its service, the SARC has launched a new website which 
provides lots of information about what the service does and how it can assist 
those in need of help and support. To find out more, please visit 
www.hopehousesarc.nhs.uk 

 

5.2.2 League of Friends’ generosity sees hospital’s endoscopy service receive 
 state-of-the-art technology 

 

The generosity of a Cirencester community charity has seen the installation of 
brand-new, state-of-the-art endoscopy equipment at the town’s hospital. 

Members of Cirencester Hospital League of Friends funded the new £80,000 
endoscopy system, which is now in daily use at Cirencester Hospital. 

 

Page 135

http://www.hopehousesarc.nhs.uk/


 

 18 

The Olympus 290 Elite video system, complete with monitor and screen, has been 
in use for almost four months. It is housed on a wheeled cart designed to stack a 
light source, camera, image capture devices and attachments for endoscopy 
procedures. The hospital’s Endoscopy Department is busier than ever, having 
recently taken on additional activity, meaning more patients can be seen locally. 

 

5.2.3 Complex Care at Home commissioned by Forest of Dean Integrated Locality 
 Board 

 

Following on from the early success of the Complex Care At Home Service in 
Cheltenham and Gloucester, the Integrated Locality Board in the Forest of Dean 
has commissioned the Trust to set up a service in their locality, using the same 
model.  

 

The service will be delivered in partnership with GPs, and will use a proactive, 
preventative enhanced community case management model, which will aim to 
prevent unnecessary admissions to hospital. This will identify and provide 
appropriate support to the cohort of adults with complex long-term conditions, 
and/or frailty, who may also have complex social situations. It is a planned, 
proactive service, not an urgent care model responding to those in crisis. 

 

Working closely with local GPs and a Gloucestershire Royal Hospital geriatrician, 
the service will comprise community matrons, well-being coordinators, with 
physiotherapy, occupational therapy and dietetic input. The Trust will also work in 
partnership with 2gether NHS Foundation Trust, Adult Social Care (GCC), the 
Forest of Dean District Council, as well as the community and voluntary sector.    

 

Intended outcomes of the service include: people’s health, well-being and self-
management of conditions are improved; people being more effectively managed 
in the community; reduction and prevention of hospital admissions; reduction in the 
demand for primary care and in care home placements. 

 

5.2.4 Location for a new Community Hospital in the Forest of Dean 

 

Following both the Trust Board and Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning 
Group’s decision to site the new community hospital in the Cinderford location, 
work is progressing in developing the Outline Business Case (OBC) for the Trust 
Board to consider in due course. 

 

The Trust is reviewing the identified sites in the location, and an options appraisal 
will be undertaken which will include the site selection criteria identified in the 
Strategic Case for Change, as well as those criteria recommended by the  

Citizens’ Jury earlier this year.  
 

Engagement has continued to support the development of a new community 
hospital for the Forest of Dean.  Representatives from the Forest Health Forum 
and Leagues of Friends of both Lydney and Dilke Hospitals have met with both the 
CCG and GCS representatives and the Forest of Dean Reference Group, made up 
of local community representatives, will be meeting in November 2018 to discuss 
next steps. 

 

 

Page 136



 

 19 

5.2.5 Director of Workforce Race Equality Standard (WRES) Implementation at 
 NHS England visits the Trust 

 

Yvonne Coghill OBE, Director of Workforce Race Equality Standard (WRES) 
Implementation at NHS England visited the Trust in September 2018. In 2013 
Yvonne was voted by colleagues in the NHS as one of the top 50 most 
inspirational women, one of the top 50 most inspirational nurse leaders and one of 
the top 50 BME pioneers, two years in a row. Yvonne was awarded an OBE for 
services to healthcare in 2010 and was appointed as Director for WRES 
Implementation in June 2015. 

 

As part of her visit to the Trust, there was an opportunity for Yvonne to meet staff 
from Black and Minority Ethnic groups from across the organisation, to understand 
their experiences of working in the Trust. 

 

 

5.2.6 National Guardian for the NHS visits the Trust 

 

Dr Henrietta Hughes, National Guardian for the NHS, visited GCS in October 2018 
to meet colleagues from the Trust and representatives from all Trusts in the South 
West. This coincided with the national Speak Up Month campaign.  

 

Every Trust in England has a Freedom to Speak Up Guardian, so that colleagues 
are able to share issues or concerns which may ultimately affect patient safety or 
staff experience. 

 

Dr Hughes met with members of the Board and colleagues from the Trust, sharing 
her thoughts and insight on why it’s so important for workers to be able to speak up 
in a supportive environment. 

 

 

5.3 Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
 (GHNHSFT)  
 
5.3.1 Cheltenham & Gloucester Hospitals Charity launch £1.2m scanner appeal  
 

The Cheltenham & Gloucester Hospitals Charity has launched its CT Scanner 
appeal to raise a further £1.2m for three new CT scanners and two new mobile 
digital X-ray machines for Gloucestershire. 
 
Almost 80,000 people have a scan or mobile X-ray taken at Cheltenham General 
(CGH) and Gloucestershire Royal Hospitals (GRH) every year, and our existing 
scanner provision is at full capacity. Scanners are vital for early detection, 
diagnosis and treatment and can help save lives in an emergency when every 
second counts. 
 
New state of the art scanning technology will make a huge difference for people 
with a wide range of conditions, including those fighting cancer or heart disease, 
and emergency patients with head injuries. Everyone will benefit, from older people 
with dementia to premature babies who need urgent medical treatment.  
 

Page 137



 

 20 

To date £1.2m has already raised for the appeal. If you would like to support you 
can find out to donate/fundraise by visiting www.gloshospitals.nhs.uk/charity 
  

5.3.2 Flu jab uptake  
 

GHNHSFT has had an encouraging number of staff receive their seasonal flu jab 
with more staff than ever having a jab at this point in the season compared to the 
same period in previous years. 2724 (52%) staff have now had their flu vaccination 
(3rd week of October), this compares very well to 2017 when at the end of the 
month we had vaccinated 2646 staff. We are some way ahead and on track to 
achieve our 80% target. It’s quite a turnaround, given that the year before last 
(2016) GHNHSFT achieved just 57% and that was the best year by some margin.  

 
5.3.3 SHED launched to support Dads at Gloucestershire’s Neonatal Unit 
 

GHNHSFT has officially launched a new support group at Gloucestershire Royal 
Hospital. S.H.E.D, or Support and Help for Every Dad, is a new group aimed to 
support fathers of babies who start their life at Gloucester’s neonatal unit. The 
group was officially launched on Saturday 2 October 2018.  
 
S.H.E.D was established this year to run alongside the broader support group 
HOPE and offers peer support for Dads who are coping with the wide range of 
issues associated with having a baby on the unit.  
 
The group has been supported in its establishment by Trust staff members led by 
Sister Betty Tenn-Stewart and is looking to help make the journey through 
neonatal care less stressful. Gloucestershire’s Better Births improvement 
programme has funded a new video which can be watched on the Trust’s YouTube 
channel by searching for SHED. The video focuses on the stories of fathers who 
have had their babies cared for on our unit.  

 
5.3.4 Kier appointed to deliver £39.5m capital programme 
 

Following the announcement in March this year that Cheltenham General and 
Gloucestershire Royal Hospitals had successfully bid for £39.5m of capital funding 
to modernise hospital buildings and transform services, we are pleased to 
announce that Kier will be our partner for this project.  
 
The money, awarded by NHS England and allocated under the Gloucestershire 
Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP), will be used to develop the 
next generation of care at the county’s two main acute hospitals.  
 
A significant amount of the money will be used to improve acute care facilities at 
the Gloucestershire Royal Hospital and replace outdated ward environments, 
whilst at Cheltenham General Hospital the investment will support the development 
of theatre and day surgery facilities. Around £4m will be used to address areas 
within the existing estate backlog.  
 
We are now working with healthcare planners to establish more detailed plans, 
with our staff at are the heart of this initial concept work. We look forward to inviting 
patients and members of the public to inform the detail of these plans as they 
develop. 
 

Page 138

http://www.gloshospitals.nhs.uk/charity


 

 21 

To date, the hospitals two main sites have sometimes been seen as a problem but 
the Trust believes they present us with a huge opportunity to develop our vision of 
Centres of Excellence providing outstanding specialist care where more patients 
can be treated, with lower waiting times, enhanced patient experience and patient 
outcomes amongst the best. Importantly, this capital will be invested at both GRH 
and CGH signalling that both have a vibrant future; the investment at GRH will be 
targeted at addressing the challenges in urgent and emergency care whilst at CGH 
it will support the delivery of highly efficient, patient-centred planned care. 

 
5.3.5 Care Quality Commission (CQC) Inspection 
 

At the time of writing, GHNHSFT is in the process of being inspected by the Care 
Quality Commission (CQC). The inspection process comprises three parts:  
 

 Core Services (9/10/18 – 12/10/18):  An unannounced visit by a team of 
inspectors and service experts who observed our services in action and 
talked to our staff (individually or in groups) to assess what it is like to be a 
patient or member of staff in our hospitals 

 Use of Resources Inspection (18/10.18): Led by NHS Improvement, the 
team assessed us on how effectively we utilise our resources 

 Well-led (13/11/18 – 15/11/18): will look to find out how our organisation is 
governed and the impact of the Board and senior leaders on the 
organisation. They will hold group and individual interviews as well as 
reviewing some of our documentation and processes. 

 
Feedback to date has been encouraging, although the final inspection rating will be 
published in the new year. The Trust was last inspected in January 2017 when 
73% of our services were rated Good or Outstanding by the CQC (compared to 
68% in 2015) though the overall rating was Requires Improvement.  
 
The CQC always ask the following five questions of services: 
 

 Are they safe? People are protected from abuse and avoidable harm. 

 Are they effective? People’s care, treatment and support achieves good 
outcomes, promotes a good quality of life and is based on the best 
evidence. 

 Are they caring? Staff involved in treating people with compassion, 
kindness, dignity and respect. 

 Are they responsive to people’s needs? Services are organised so they 
meet people’s needs. 

 Are they well-led? The leadership, management and governance of the 
organisation makes sure the delivery of high quality person-centred care, 
supports learning and innovation and promotes an open and fair culture. 

 
5.3.6 Emma Samms MBE opens new cancer information hub at GRH  
 

British actress Emma Samms MBE has officially launched a new cancer support 
service at Gloucestershire Royal Hospital. The Macmillan information hub, 
developed in partnership with Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Trust, is the first 
service of its kind for the hospital, and offers a friendly environment in the main 
atrium for patients and their families, friends or carers to access a comprehensive 
range of information and support. It also features a private consultation area. 
 

Page 139



 

 22 

Cancer services are a key area of focus for the Trust and this is an area where we 
are constantly driving improvements. The new service from Macmillan can only 
serve to enhance the care we offer, now and in the years to come. 
 
With around 22,000 people living with cancer in Gloucestershire, access to 
information is becoming increasingly important. Providing cancer information and 
support can make a real difference to a person’s quality of life by helping them 
make decisions about their treatment and care and improving their ability to 
manage life with cancer. 
 
In Cheltenham, the Maggie’s Centre, situated close to Cheltenham General 
Hospital, offers free practical, emotional and social support to people with cancer 
and their families and friends. Help is offered freely to anyone with any type of 
cancer. 
 

5.3.7 £1.7m bid for LINAC successful  
 

GHNHSFT has been advised by NHS England that we have been successful in 
our bid to the National Modernising Radiotherapy Fund and will receive £1.7m of 
capital for a new Linear Accelerator (or Linac - a state of the art radiotherapy 
machine). We had previously been awarded capital last year but were unable to 
draw down the funding in the end due to some conditions in relation to Trusts in 
Financial Special Measures. Patients and staff can expect to benefit from the new 
technology next Summer. 
 

6. Recommendations 
 

This report is provided for information and HCOSC Members are invited to note 

the contents. 

 
 

Dr Andrew Seymour    Mary Hutton  
Clinical Chair      Accountable Officer 
NHS Gloucestershire CCG    NHS Gloucestershire CCG 
 
5 November 2018 

Page 140


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2017/18
	5 Quarter 2 Public Health Performance Report
	6 Quarter 2 Adult Social Care Performance Report
	7 Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group Performance Report
	8 One Gloucestershire ICS Lead Report
	11 Director of Public Health Report
	12 Director of Adult Social Services Report
	13 GCCG Clinical Chair/Accountable Officer Report



